

# City of Leadville Planning & Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda

Date: 4/26/23 Time: 6:00pm

(Held in person & via Zoom)

Join Zoom Meeting

<https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/89683947349?pwd=Umq0QmxXVmlhR1ptaW5JQXdmN0VIZz09>

Meeting ID: 896 8394 7349

Passcode: 80461

Dial by your location

+1 719 359 4580 US

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

Meeting ID: 896 8394 7349

- |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                |                                                 |                                         |
|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------|
| <p><b>1. Governance Items:</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• <b>Call to Order and Roll Call</b></li><li>• <b>Approval of Agenda/Revisions</b></li><li>• <b>Approval of minutes:</b><br/>4/12/23 Minutes</li></ul>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                | <p>Motion of approval of agenda and minutes</p> | <p>Chair, Staff</p>                     |
| <p><b>2. Public comment- Items not on Agenda:</b></p>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |                                                 |                                         |
| <p><b>3. General Updates:</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>o None</li></ul>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       |                                                 | <p>Chair, Staff</p>                     |
| <p><b>4. Continued Business:</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"><li>• Public Hearing: Title 17 – Zoning: Definitions, Uses amendments *</li></ul>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | <p>*Items for formal vote</p>                   | <p>Chair, Staff, Commission Members</p> |
| <p><b>5. Goal Setting 2023-</b></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"><li>1. Title 17 – Zoning: Definitions, Uses amendments (4/26)</li><li>2. Title 17 – Zoning: PAT Recommended amendments (3/22 &amp; 4/12 Work Sessions)</li><li>3. STRs – Recommendations to City Council on numerical limit for STR licenses</li><li>4. P&amp;Z By-laws and Commissioner terms</li><li>5. Commissioner legal training</li><li>6. Housing</li><li>7. Parking District/commercial fee-in-lieu program</li><li>8. 2025 Comprehensive Plan</li><li>9. R-1 Zone assessment</li><li>10. Residential permit parking program</li><li>11. Exterior lighting regulations</li></ol> |                                                 | <p>Chair, Staff, Commission Members</p> |
| <p><b>6. Adjourn</b></p> <p>Next meeting – 5/10/23 - TBD</p>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |                                                 |                                         |

**Wednesday, April 12, 2023- 6:00pm**  
**Leadville Planning & Zoning Commission**  
**Regular Meeting DRAFT Minutes**  
**City Hall and via Zoom**

**1. Call to Order:** Mayor Labbe called the meeting to order at **6:07 pm**.

**Roll Call:** Chair Voeller (6:30pm), Mayor Labbe and Commissioners Law, Bauer and Alternate Edwards were present; Commissioners Tannous, Zhu and Ducharme were absent, City of Leadville Planning Director Chapin LaChance was also present.

**Agenda Approval/Revisions:** Agenda Revisions –NONE Agenda approved.

**Minutes Approval:** March 22, 2023 minutes: **Commissioner Edwards** moved to approve the minutes of 3/22/23, Commissioner Bauer seconded; all present were in favor.

**2. Public Comments on Items Not on the Agenda:**

- Kristi Galarza let the Commission know about a community meeting tomorrow (4/13) night at the FREIGHT from 6:30-8 pm, open to the public. Will be collecting community information on what benefits the community would like to see from the Leadville 7 development. Will provide day care, dinner. Chair Voeller asked Planning Director LaChance what the City Planning & Zoning Commission's role should be in this development, since it is in the County, but is adjacent to and impacts the City. LaChance replied, as this is not a formal application in front of the City, commissioners can attend meetings but should disclose whether any comments made are being made as a P&Z Commissioner or as a citizen. City P&Z is a referral agency and provided a comment letter to the county regarding this development. Commissioner Edwards asked if Galarza knew if the developers would be at the meeting tomorrow night; not that Galarza is aware, this is the first step in gathering information on what the community thinks about the proposed development, before they reach out to the developer.
- Tim Bergman, as a private citizen: Now that the snow is melting, remind & request the city parking lots – across and behind the Tabor, make sure there is handicapped parking available for residents as well as visitors.
- Public Comment letter included in packet from Amanda Fitzpatrick on ADUs as long-term rentals.

**General Updates:**

- Title 17 – Zoning: NHL District Amendments: HPC held a successful Open House last night, 4/11 regarding the proposed code amendments. Would like to see more in attendance, will broaden the advertising for the May 9<sup>th</sup> Open House, feel free to attend.
- Commissioner Zhu resignation – Moving part-time to Alaska, so no longer a full time Leadville resident, enjoyed serving on the P&Z Commission, but has resigned.
- Alternate Commissioner Edwards – move up to Commissioner, appointment at 4/18 City Council meeting, serves on the Historic Preservation Commission, Lake County Planning & Zoning Commission, is a business owner and contractor. Commissioner Edwards will have a 6-year term.

**3. New/Continued Business:**

- **Public Hearing: Application for Conditional Use Permit, Major Site Plan and Minor Subdivision for Lake County Community Justice Center (continuance requested):** Lake County Manager Tim Bergman present. LaChance referenced memo in packet, this was a public hearing on February 8, 2023 and continued to April 12<sup>th</sup> (today). Design team still working on revisions, date for next public hearing will be August 9<sup>th</sup>. Commission should continue tonight's

public hearing until August 9, 2023. Chair Voeller mentioned that date is usually a Race Series week, and typically the Commission has taken that week off. LaChance asked applicant Tim Bergman if he had any objections to continuing the public hearing until August 23, 2023 instead; Bergman sees no issues with 8/23. **Chair Voeller** moved to continue the public hearing of Lake County Community Justice Center Conditional Use Permit, Major Site Plan and Minor Subdivision, PL-2022-1214, located at 100 Harrison Avenue, to the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting of August 23, 2023; Labbe seconded, all present were in favor.

Before moving to the next item on the agenda, Chair Voeller asked if anyone had been following the land use bill at the state level? LaChance has; Voeller noted Leadville is not affected, as it does not fit in any of the 4 major categories, rural resort centers (not “resorty” enough for that criteria) and another tier is municipalities with population over 5,000. The bill talks about ADUs being use by right everywhere, which we are doing with the PAT recommendations. Labbe noted CML is strongly opposed to the bill, municipalities lose a lot of control.

**Title 17 – PAT Recommended Amendments Work Session:** Kristi Galarza, Policy Advisory Team present. LaChance noted this is an informal work session. Repeat of 3/22 meeting, as only 4 commissioners present at that meeting. LaChance presented memo which included the Purposes of PAT recommendations, a proposal summary, previous reviews, November 2022 work session recap, and updates since the Nov 2022 work session. **Updates since Nov 2022** were noted on memo included in packet; two code amendments have been rolled into the Table of Uses code update. LaChance discussed **comparable towns/cities density considerations**. Voeller mentioned comments every time we look at density, Bauer usually brings it up, potential parking issues. Voeller thinks we need to address this on more crowded street. LaChance mentioned later in this packet, parking is discussed. LaChance paused for questions: Labbe asked how the calculation would work on a single lot. LaChance noted currently on a minimum lot size, the calculation equates to .98 units allowed, we round up to allow a single-family home, but no room for ADUs; Voeller noted if we change the 19 units per acre to 40, all lots would be allowed to have an ADU. Labbe doesn’t think we should differentiate between R-1 and R-2, doesn’t think we should have an R-1 in City limits. Parking – we have to have some kind of parking requirements going forward, allowing the ADUs will increase parking issues. Incentive zoning discussed, more detail in packet and at last meeting (3/22). Several different option, fee-in-lieu, etc. Voeller does like the idea of a density bonus, but asks if LaChance has ever seen where it kicks in at a threshold. Would like to get to a point where its ADU and duplex by right, where there’s not a density bonus in allowing a person to go from one to two, but wondered if our threshold for a density bonus was slightly larger, at three or four. Density bonus is really complicated on a single lot, but the density makes sense and seems to be most beneficial on larger developments. Per LaChance’s experience, that is true; density bonus is mostly in multi-unit development. Yes, setting the threshold higher is something that can be done. LaChance discussed page 7 of his memo – **Parking Considerations**. 2021 Parking Study, and its recommendations are in the packet. LaChance included several options from that study in the memo. Memo notes current off-street parking requirements, as well as five parking Options. Law thinks the overlay makes a lot of sense. Thinks about the three potential new developments, in outside the overlay area. Labbe says overlay sounds good, but doesn’t help the residential parking beyond that overlay area. New developments will need to address parking. Labbe noted there’s no way in the C and RC zones we can have the parking requirement, as there is no where for that parking to be. Voeller asked

if we had taken out the parking requirement on apartment above shops on Harrison, from a couple of years ago. Law said there is no parking requirement for apartments above retail on Harrison. Voeller pointed out, there was at one point and we took it out, otherwise new business/buildings like 311/313 Harrison would not be able to happen, as there is nowhere for parking. Voeller is trying to balance the impact of design with the character we want, unfortunately parking requirements lend to a car oriented suburban design, which is not what Leadville is, or wants to be. Minimize the impact without changing the character. Voeller does not like option 1, where we would increase it to two parking spaces per unit, thinks its cost prohibitive, takes up a lot of land space. Compromise, any parcel that has two units, require one off street space, preferably alley loaded, reduces the impact on the character. Don't want to encourage garage forward with garages everywhere. Pay in-lieu to get out of parking requirement, so the City can buy lots. LaChance pointed out the Historic Preservation Commission is doing some code changes that would bring commercial and **additions** in the National Historic Landmark district before them, so that garage forward/driveways would not be in the guidelines of the historic district, which could help these issues. Point being everyone wants to maintain our historic character; agrees we should go more alley-loaded. Bauer kind of likes the general idea of the overlay on page 9 (option 5), understands the concern of front-loaded driveways/garages, but maybe we can work on that. LaChance asked Bauer for new development in the zone, what that might look like, spaces per unit. Bauer: other municipalities have like 2 spaces per residents, others move to off-street, city lots nearby. LaChance discussed two options within that – new development in that zone you can require off street parking, as they are drawing up their site plans; existing homes, not proposing new development, they don't have room for off-street parking, eligible to receive a city parking permit to park on the street. Bauer: that makes sense. LaChance, in requiring off-street parking for new development, just for multi-family/unit, is that a parking space per unit, including ADUs? Bauer: I would think multi-unit. Voeller asked what about two unit, think that is the threshold. Most important decision, two units or more than two, require a parking space. Bauer, at least one space; Voeller, zero or one, as long as it's alley-loaded, variance if you can't do alley loaded. Bauer prefers alley-loaded. Labbe agrees, Leadville plows alleys and alley-loaded makes sense. Edwards asked if alley access isn't an option, is it parking fee-in-lieu? Voeller said yes, or we have a hardship clause if you can't. If they just don't want to, can they buy their way out, how flexible to we want to be? Labbe says, not that flexible. Voeller, one space per two units. LaChance asked if we are talking outside the parking overlay district or within? Voeller/Labbe replied everywhere, city wide. Everywhere except Retail Core. Utility capacity considerations: all utilities are currently under capacity. Labbe previously stated he wanted the R-1 and R-2 zones treated the same, he now disagrees with himself, as that would take away our negotiating ability for density bonus. Staff needs direction, LaChance has questions for the Commission, by the end of the 4/12 meeting, to move forward:

1. Does the Commission find that allowed density should be increased for the R-1, R-2, TR, C and TC zones, up to 40 dwelling units per acre in some zones?

**Voeller** – Yes, except R-1; **Law** – Yes, except in R-1; **Bauer** – Yes TR, TC, C, not R-2; **Labbe** – Yes, except R-1; **Edwards** – Yes, except R-1

- a. If so, does the Commission find the increase in allowed density should be limited to an incentive density bonus for community housing?

**Voeller** – larger developments, five plus, not regular infill projects

**Labbe** – would like density bonus to start at 4 units

**Law** – five plus units, it makes sense

**Bauer**- five plus with incentive; hung up on more than doubling density in R-2

**Edwards** – start incentive bonus at 3, but would be ok with 4 units

- b. If so, what percentage of units in a development should be restricted to Community Housing in order to receive the density bonus?

**Voeller** – 25%

**Law** – 25%

**Bauer** – 25%

**Labbe** – 25%

**Edwards** – 25%

2. Does the Commission find that density should be regulated for ADUs and single-family dwellings consistently with how density is regulated for multiple family dwellings?

**Voeller** – Yes; **Law** – Yes; **Bauer** – Yes; **Labbe** – Yes; **Edwards** - Yes

3. Does the Commission find additional parking requirements should be implemented?

**Voeller** – Yes, 2+ units 1 parking space per unit, after the second unit alley loaded unless variance (hardship) interested in fee-in-lieu program (later)

**Law** – Agree; **Bauer** – Agree; **Law** – Agree; **Labbe** – Agree; **Edwards** – Agree

- a. If so, does the Commission prefer parking strategy 1, 2, 3, 4 or 5?

City-wide, except for Retail Core not an overlay district.

4. Does the Commission have any other comments or concerns?

**Voeller** – need graphic for public input; **Law** – NO; **Bauer** – NO; **Labbe** – NO; **Edwards** - NO

After getting these answers, LaChance would like to open it up for the Policy Advisory Team and get their input. Galarza asked is the Commission was more concerned with public opinion or councils for the understanding of the reality? Voeller is more concerned about council. LaChance suggests an Open House to inform the public. Galarza doesn't have budget to redo redlines, but can help out with public awareness and advocacy. Voller is not asking for new redlines.

#### 4. Goal Setting 2023:

1. Title 17 – Zoning: Definitions, Uses Amendments – (4/26)
2. Title 17 – Zoning: PAT Recommended Amendments
3. STRs – **Discussed and gave a recommendation, 3/22/23 meeting**
4. P&Z By-Laws and Commissioner Terms
5. Commissioner Legal Training
6. Housing
7. Parking District/Fee-in-Lieu program
8. 2025 Comprehensive Plan
9. R-1 Zone Assessment
10. Residential Permit Parking Program
11. Exterior Lighting regulations

**Voeller** - next meeting, 4/26, is the Public Hearing on the Table of Uses & Definitions project. **Labbe** has conflict, PBS presentation of the film they put together, at the Old Church and will not be at 4/26.

#### 5. Adjourn:

**Motion to Adjourn: Voeller** adjourned the meeting at 8:25 pm.

**Adjourned 8:25 pm**

Regular Meetings: Twice a month for spring/summer season

Next Meeting: April 26, 2023 6:00pm – **Public Hearing**, Table of Uses & Definitions project



# MEMO

---

**TO:** Planning and Zoning Commission

**FROM:** Chapin LaChance, AICP - Planning Director

**MEETING DATE:** April 26, 2023

**SUBJECT:** Public Hearing on Title 17 – Zoning: Definitions, Use Categories, and By-Right, Conditional and Prohibited Uses, Administrative Permits, Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses, and Title 5 – Short Term Rentals

---

Planning and Zoning Commission,

This is the first public hearing at Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission on these proposed code amendments. This memo explains the P&Z's review history, describes the attached documents, explains the changes made by the City Attorney and staff since the last review, and concludes with a staff recommendation. Both the Planning Director and the City's consultant will be present at the public hearing to explain the most recent amendments and to answer questions.

Review History:

These amendments have been reviewed by the P&Z at the following previous meetings:

- 11/29/2017 P&Z Work Session
- 3/28/2018 P&Z Work Session
- 2/27/2019 P&Z Work Session
- 3/27/2019 P&Z Work Session
- 12/18/2019 P&Z Work Session
- 8/24/2022 P&Z Work Session
- 11/15/2022 Joint Work Session, P&Z and City Council
- 1/25/2023 (P&Z public hearing, continued to 2/22/2023 meeting)
- 2/22/2023 (P&Z public hearing, continued to 04/26/2023 meeting)

### Consultant updates

After the 11/15/2022 Joint Work Session, the City's consultant, TJ Dlubac with Community Planning Strategies provided the following documents which are attached in this packet:

- Memo for public hearing (bottom of 2nd page explains most recent changes)
- Redline version of proposed amendments to Ch. 17.08 Definitions.
- Redline version of proposed amendments to Ch 17.48.010, Table of Uses

### City Attorney and staff amendments

The City attorney and staff conducted a review of the proposed amendments and made extensive additional amendments. Below is a description of the additional attached redlines made to each section.

#### **17.08.020 - Use Categories and 17.08.030 – Definitions**

Various amendments to animal, childcare, short-term rental, alcohol, marijuana, and formula businesses uses for consistency with Colorado Revised Statutes, the Table of Uses amendments, or previously adopted City ordinances. These amendments also include:

- Added definitions for “commercial use”, “density”, “fence”, “hostel”, and “modular construction”.
- Clarification that any “dwelling unit” can include modular construction.

#### **17.48.010 – Designation (Table of Uses)**

- Changed introductory statement so that uses not listed in the table are reviewed for compliance with 17.48.20 “Uses not listed” instead of being prohibited.
- Made various amendments for consistency with 17.08.020 - Use Categories and 17.08.030 Definitions.
- Listed “Short Term Rental” use type under “Lodging Facilities” use category, and listed as requiring an Administrative Permit in all zones per the City Council direction at the 02/28/2023 Joint Work Session.
- Removed accessory use zoning allowances from 17.60 Accessory Buildings and Uses and listed them under the Accessory Uses section of the table.

#### **17.48.020 - Uses not listed**

- Changed title from “Uses not itemized” to “Uses not listed”.
- This is an entire “repeal and replace” of this section. The amendments allows the Planning Official, instead of the City Council, to decide whether a proposed use not listed in the table is comparable to a listed use, and provides criteria for making that decision.

### **17.48.030 - Manufactured Homes and Mobile Homes**

- Removed zoning allowance from this section so that the zoning allowance is solely listed in the Table of Uses.

### **Chapter 17.50 – Administrative Permits**

- Changed reviewer from P&Z chair and Planning Official to solely Planning Official.
- Allow for reclassification of application to a CUP by Planning Official.
- Removed requirement for adjacent property owner notice.
- Simplified violation and permit revocation process.

### **Chapter 17.60 – Accessory uses, buildings, and structures**

- Changed title from “Accessory Building and Structures” to “Accessory Uses, Buildings, and Structures”.
- Removed use allowances by zone, leaving to be solely regulated by the Table of Uses, including accessory uses.
- Combined Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) standards for all zones into section titled ADU Requirements.
- Clarified that an ADU counts as a unit of density, and that a maximum of 1 ADU is allowed, per direction from the 01/25/2023 P&Z meeting.

### **Chapter 5.12 – Short-Term Rentals:**

- Added definition for “short-term rental unit”
- Changed references to the Zoning permit requirement from a conditional use permit to an administrative permit per the City Council direction at the 02/28/2023 Joint Work Session.
- Clarifications for short-term rental licenses for condominiums.

### Staff Recommendation

The City Attorney has compiled all of the amendments described above and/or attached hereto into the attached Ordinance. Staff recommends the P&Z recommend approval of this Ordinance to the City Council.

**Recommended motion: “I move the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend the City Council adopt the attached Ordinance 2 Series 2023, An Ordinance Amending Various Sections of Chapters 5.12, 17.08, 17.48, 17.50, And 17.60 Of The Leadville Municipal Code Concerning Updates To The Table Of Uses And Land Use Definitions.”**



**To:** City of Leadville Planning and Zoning Commissioner's  
**Cc:** Laurie Simonson, City of Leadville City Administrator  
Lori Tye, City of Leadville Administrative Assistant  
Chapin LaChance, City of Leadville Planning Director  
**Date:** January 15, 2023  
**Subject:** Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Land Use Table Updates

---

**BACKGROUND INFORMATION:**

This project began back in 2018 and was put on hold in 2019 to allow the city to focus on Short-Term Rentals ("STR"). During the period the project was active, there were multiple work sessions and discussions with the Planning and Zoning Commission ("P&Z"). For purposes of background, update memos from the previous work on this project have been attached to this memo to provide some context to the previous edits suggested and some context as to why.

As outlined in the March 23, 2018, memo, there were five objectives identified that guided this project:

1. Re-organize the overall table to be more readable and usable.
2. Remove duplicate uses from the table.
3. Where able, consolidate items into more general terms.
4. Add new uses where applicable.
5. Establish appropriate approval processes for the level of review needed (i.e., By-Right, Administrative, Conditional, etc.)

To move towards these objectives, multiple rounds of revisions sought to address the following:

1. Generally, use the same terms as in the current code and recategorize them based on use type. The reorganization divided uses into four categories:
  - a. Residential Uses
  - b. Public, Institutional, and Civic Uses
  - c. Commercial Uses
  - d. Industrial Uses
2. Divide the four general categories into "Use Categories" to allow more flexibility in interpreting uses that may not be known at this time. The intent of moving to this structure is to allow the city to manage for impacts of uses rather than a definition of a specific term. An inventory of other municipal codes from peer communities was evaluated to determine the desired structure of the table.
3. Remove uses that could be grouped with other similar uses, or that were unnecessary. For example, many of the telecommunications facility sub-uses were removed since they all fall under the umbrella definition and review procedures outlined in Sec. 17.72.070.
6. A review of the definitions section to add, delete, and amend definitions to fit the intent of the terms used in the table of uses.
7. Create a new section entitled "Use Categories" to allow a broader category of uses which allows a broader ability to interpret proposed uses.
8. Evaluate the level of approval for each use in each zoning district to ensure the appropriate level of oversight and review was being conducted. For some uses, the P&Z desired to reduce the level

of oversight by moving things to administrative approval or use by right. In other cases, the desire was to apply additional scrutiny for specific situations resulting in a conditional use being required. The suggested changes can be seen in the redline version of the table of uses attached to this memo.

**PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION WORK SESSION:**

CPS presented proposed updated documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission at a work session on August 24<sup>th</sup>. The memo provided to the Commission prior to that meeting is included in the background materials attached to this memo.

Based on the discussion at that meeting, CPS made a variety of changes to the definitions and table of uses. Changes made since that discussion are identified with yellow highlights throughout all documents. The redline drafts attached to this memo reflect proposed changes based on the version of the code currently adopted municipal code.

**JOINT CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION WORK SESSION:**

CPS presented proposed updated documents to a joint work session with the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission on November 15<sup>th</sup>. At this meeting, there was some discussion about possible next steps and additional code amendments, however, in general, there was consensus on the amendments and the proposed revisions. Guidance was provided to proceed with the hearing process.

**SINCE JOINT WORK SESSION:**

Minor changes which have been made since the joint work session and they are listed below:

1. A lot of minor technical, grammatical, and word choice changes to finalize the proposal and prepare the various documents for hearing. All changes can be seen in the redlined version of the table of uses.
2. Allow Multiple-family dwelling (3-4 units) by right (R) in the TR and C zone districts. Since PAT did not include the 5+ units line in their recommendation, CPS reverted these back to Conditional Use (C) in the TR and C zone districts as well.
3. A definition of "Rental Shop" was added.
4. Reverted allowances for ADU's back to the current status (prohibited in the RC district) since the proposed changes to the Table of Uses conflicted with Sec. 17.60.020.B.

**01/15/2023 Proposed red-lined amendments by City's  
consultant, TJ Dlubac with Community Planning  
Strategies**

## Chapter 17.08 DEFINITIONS

### 17.08.010 Introduction.

As used in this title, unless the context requires otherwise, the following words and phrases shall be as stated below. Except as provided for in this title, the planning commission shall decide by a majority vote of the members present any questions or disputes regarding both the interpretation and the application of the definitions listed below and all words contained within this title but not specifically defined herein. Any such interpretation or application decided upon by the planning commission may be appealed by an applicant to the board of adjustment, which shall render a final decision by a concurring vote of four members.

### 17.08.020 ~~Definitions~~ Use Categories.

This section defines the general use categories listed in Table 1, By-Right, Conditional, and Prohibited Uses by Zoning District within Chapter 17.48. Definitions for specific use types are in alphabetical order in Section 17.08.030.

"Accessory use, building, or structure ~~or use~~" means a subordinate use, building, or structure ~~or use~~ customarily incidental and subordinate in function to the principal use, building, or structure ~~or use~~ and located on the same lot as the principal use, building, or structure ~~or use~~.

"Agricultural Uses" means Agricultural and farming activities, including nurseries and facilities for processing and selling agricultural products. Agricultural uses commonly involve farming, dairying, pasturage, apiculture, horticulture, floriculture, and viticulture.

"Child care facilities" means establishments that provide care for children on a regular basis away from their primary residence. Accessory uses commonly include offices, recreation areas, and parking. This category commonly does not include public or private schools or facilities operated in connection with an employment use, shopping center, or other principal use, where children are cared for while parents or guardians are occupied on the premises.

"Community and Cultural Facilities" means uses including buildings, structures, or facilities owned, operated, or occupied by a governmental entity or nonprofit organization to provide a service to the public.

"Educational Facilities" means public, private, and parochial institutions at the primary, elementary, middle, high school, or post-secondary level, or trade or business schools, that provide educational instruction to students. Accessory uses commonly include play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-school day care.

"Food and Beverage" means establishments involved in serving prepared food or beverages for consumption on or off the premises. Accessory uses commonly include food preparation areas, offices, and parking.

"Group Living" means uses characterized by residential occupancy of a structure by a group of people who do not meet the definition of "household living." Tenancy is arranged on a monthly or longer basis, and the size of the group may be larger than a family. Group living structures commonly have a common eating area for residents. The residents may receive care, training, or treatment, and caregivers may or may not also reside at the site. Accessory uses commonly include recreational facilities and vehicle parking for occupants and staff.

“Healthcare Facilities” means any facility providing direct health care to the public such as hospitals, mental health institutions, sanitariums, special care centers, and clinics.

“Household Living” means uses characterized by residential occupancy of a dwelling unit as a household. The tenancy is arranged on a month-to-month or longer basis (lodging where tenancy may be arranged for a period of fewer than 30 days is classified under the “lodging facilities” category). Accessory uses commonly include recreational activities, raising of pets, gardens, personal storage buildings, hobbies, home occupations, and parking of the occupants’ vehicles.

“Industrial Service and Research” means uses including the repair or servicing of agricultural, industrial, business, or consumer machinery, equipment, products, or by-products. Contractors and similar users may perform services off-site with few customers coming to the site. Accessory activities commonly include offices, parking, and indoor or outdoor storage.

Commented [TD1]: Removed "sales" offices..

“Lodging Facilities” means for-profit facilities where lodging, meals, and the like are provided to transient visitors and guests for a defined period of time.

“Manufacturing and Production” means uses including all transformative processes, regardless of whether or not the new product is finished or semi-finished. Production is commonly for commercial wholesaling rather than for direct sales.

“Marijuana Industries” means any and all industries, uses, facilities, licenses, or other activities allowed under the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code (Article 43.3 of Title 12, C.R.S., as amended) and Colorado Retail Marijuana Code (Article 43.3 of Title 12, C.R.S., as amended), and further regulated under the Colorado Department of Revenue, Marijuana Enforcement Division’s Medical Marijuana Code, 1, C.C.R. 212-1, as amended and/or Retail Marijuana Code, 1 C.C.R. 212-2, as amended.

“Offices” means uses that provide executive, management, administrative, or professional services, but do not involve the sale of merchandise except as incidental to a principal use. Common uses include real estate, insurance, property management, investment, employment, travel, advertising, law, architecture, design, engineering, accounting, call centers, and similar offices. Accessory uses commonly include cafeterias, health facilities, parking, or other amenities primarily for the use of employees in the firm or building.

“Parking Facilities” means any parking lot or parking structure that is used primarily or habitually for the parking of vehicles (excluding street or alley rights-of-way).

“Parks and Open Space” means uses with a focus on natural areas, large areas consisting mostly of vegetative landscaping or outdoor recreation, community gardens, or public squares. Lands tend to have few structures. Accessory uses commonly include clubhouses, playgrounds, maintenance facilities, concessions, caretaker's quarters, and parking.

“Personal Services” means establishments that provide individual services related to personal needs directly to customers at the site of the business, or that receive goods from or return goods to the customer, which have been treated or processed at that location or another location. Examples commonly include beauty and barbershops, laundromats, shoe repair shops, and tailor shops.

Commented [TD2]: Removed "...but not limited to..."

“Public Utilities and Facilities” means all lines, buildings, easements, passageways, or structures used or intended to be used by any public or private utility related to the provision, distribution, collection, transmission, or disposal of power, oil, gas, water, sanitary sewage, communication signals, or other similar services at a local level.

Updates based on Aug. 24<sup>th</sup> discussion with P&Z are highlighted in yellow.  
Green Highlights made on 1/11/2023

“Recreation and Entertainment” means uses that provide recreation or entertainment activities. Accessory uses commonly include concessions, snack bars, parking, and maintenance facilities.

“Retail” means uses involving the sale of a product directly to the final consumer for whatever purpose but not specifically or exclusively for the purpose of resale. Examples commonly include bookstores, antique stores, bakeries, grocery stores, household product stores, and similar uses.

“Temporary Use” means a use established for a limited duration of time with the intent to discontinue such use upon the expiration of the time period.

“Vehicles and Equipment” means a broad range of uses for the maintenance, sale, or rental of motor vehicles and related equipment. Accessory uses commonly include incidental repair, storage, and offices.

“Veterinary Services” means animal-related uses including the boarding and care of animals on a commercial basis. Accessory uses commonly include confinement facilities for animals, parking, and storage areas.

“Warehouse and Freight” means uses that are engaged in the storage or movement of goods for themselves or other firms. Goods are commonly delivered to other firms or the final consumer, except for some will call pickups. There is little on-site sales activity with the customer present. Accessory uses commonly include offices, truck fleet parking, and maintenance areas.

### Section 17.08.030 Definitions

In this Title, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless a contrary meaning is required by the context or is specifically prescribed:

“Accessory dwelling unit” or “ADU” means an integrated attached or detached residential dwelling unit that is incidental and subordinate in function and size to the principal building which shall be located on the same parcel as the principal building. ADUs are independently habitable and provide the basic requirements of shelter, heating, cooking, and sanitation.

“Accessory use, building, or structure” means a subordinate use, building, or structure customarily incidental and subordinate in function to the principal use, building, or structure and located on the same lot as the principal use, building, or structure.

“Adjoining property and adjacent” includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within one hundred (100) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.

“Adjoining property and adjacent specific to harboring of chickens” includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within twenty (20) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.

“Administrative permit” is a permit issued by the building planning official after determining that the proposed use satisfies conditions specified in the municipal code for the particular use and does not run with the land. Permits may be denied or referred to the planning and zoning commission and city council with a conditional use permit application as described in Chapter 17.52.

Commented [TD3]: Removed "...but not limited to..."

Commented [TD4]: Removed "...uses include..."

Commented [TD5]: Cross reference with Sec. 16.04.170 of the Subdivision Regulations to ensure consistency.

Commented [TD6]: Changed "Chapter" to "Title" to cover entire Title 17 Zoning.

Commented [TD7]: Reordered

"Agricultural production" means the production of a plant ~~or animal~~ which will ultimately be sold at retail, and which utilizes the cultivating of soil, planting, raising, and harvesting crops: ~~rearing, feeding and managing animals.~~

"Alley" or "alleyway" means a minor public roadway upon which the rear of building lots generally abuts, and which is generally used for service purposes.

"Alteration" means any act or process that changes one or more of the exterior architectural features of a structure, including but not limited to, the erection, construction, reconstruction, or removal of any structure or substantial portion thereof. With regard to a mobile home park or travel trailer park, alteration would be any act or process that changes density, lot size, and boundaries.

"Alternative tower structure" means any man-made trees, clock towers, bell steeples, light poles, water towers, and similar alternative design mounting structures that camouflage or conceal the presence of antennas or towers.

"Animal boarding and training" means an establishment where domesticated animals other than household pets are housed, groomed, bred, boarded, trained, or sold. This term shall not include the operation of a kennel.

"Animal production related to the commercial production of animals" means raising or fattening animals for the sale of animals or animal products. The subsector comprises establishments, such as ranches, farms, and feedlots primarily engaged in keeping, grazing, breeding, or feeding animals. These animals are kept for the products they produce or for eventual sale.

"Antenna" means any exterior apparatus designed for telephone, radio, or television communications through the sending and/or receiving of wireless communications signals.

"Antenna, dish" means dish (parabolic or cylindrical) antennas used for microwave and satellite transmission and reception for commercial purposes. This definition shall not apply to wireless cable satellite dish antennas or dish antennas less than one meter in diameter or measured diagonally.

"Antennas, panel" means an array of antennas, rectangular in shape, used to transmit and receive telecommunication signals.

"Antenna, whip" means a single antenna that is cylindrical in shape and omni-directional.

"Applicant" means any person making application for a land use change or other action encompassed by this title. See also "Person."

~~"Approved foundation" means the ADU must be attached to a permanent foundation system in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements for anchoring, support, stability, and maintenance. The foundation system must be appropriate for the soil conditions for the site and meet local and state codes. The foundation system will have a stem wall, slab, diamond pier, or concrete pylon.~~

"Architectural feature salvage" means the storage yard of a dealer in interior or exterior architectural elements recovered from structures, and may include facilities, but not motor vehicles, for the administration or management of the business and for the maintenance of equipment used in the business. Such use shall not include unenclosed and/or exposed building materials on more than twenty-five (25) percent of the property.

“Art gallery” means an establishment engaged in the sale, loan, or display of paintings, photography, sculpture, or other works of art and may include art classes, art studio space, and special events. Art Gallery does not include libraries, museums, or non-commercial art galleries.

“Arts and entertainment facility” means a structure, complex, or facility for the presentation of performing arts. Arts and entertainment centers do not include any business defined as a sexually-oriented business by this title.

“Arts and entertainment facility, indoor” means a structure, complex, or facility for the presentation of exclusively indoor performing arts, including indoor motion picture theaters, theaters for indoor live performances, and studios for arts education, such as dance or painting. Arts and entertainment facilities do not include any business defined as a sexually-oriented business by this title.

“Athletic facilities” means a developed recreation area that may contain a playground as well as fields for competitive sports such as baseball, football, or soccer. Bleachers or grandstands may be provided.

“Automotive, recreational vehicles, or marine sales and service” means the use of any building or land for a business involving the sale, leasing, ~~and~~ or servicing of new or used motor vehicles, boats, snowmobiles, ATVs, OHVs, UTVs, or recreational vehicles. Such establishments may include office space, parking lots for the display and storage of vehicles available for sale, parking areas for customers and employees, vehicle repair facilities, facilities for body work, painting, or restoration, and sale of parts.

Commented [TD8]: Changed "and" to "or"

"Awning" means a movable shelter supported entirely from the exterior wall of a building and of a type that can be retracted, folded, or collapsed against the face of the supporting building.

“Bars and lounges” mean a commercial enterprise whose primary activity is the sale of alcoholic beverages to be consumed on the premises. Bars and lounges include taverns, night clubs, private clubs, bottle clubs, and similar facilities serving alcoholic liquor.

"Bed and breakfast establishment" means a building or portion thereof with kitchen facilities for the customary service of breakfast at no additional cost to patrons and with sleeping rooms designed to be used, let, or hired for occupancy by persons on a temporary basis and containing not more than ~~ten (10)~~ five (5) such rooms.

"Block" means an area of land within a subdivision or proposed subdivision and bounded entirely by streets, roads, or other thoroughfares, except alleys or the external boundaries of the subdivision.

"Board of adjustment" means the board whose members are appointed by city council that is vested with the powers set forth in Chapter 17.88 of this title.

“Brewery” means an industrial use that brews ales, beers, meads, and/or similar beverages on site. Breweries are classified as a use that primarily manufactures beverages as defined herein and/or small breweries operated in conjunction with a bar, restaurant, or storage defined herein as an accessory use.

“Brewpub” means a restaurant that includes the brewing of beer as an accessory use. The brewing operation processes water, malt, hops, and yeast into beer or ale by mashing, cooking, and fermenting. The area used for brewing, including bottling and kegging, shall not exceed 25 percent of the total floor area of the commercial space and the facility shall have a capacity no more than that of a microbrewery.

"Buffer" means a screen which provides a visual barrier and noise abatement around the perimeter of mobile home parks and travel trailer parks excluding areas of ingress and egress. The screen can consist



of any combination of the following: a wood or masonry fence, essentially solid, with a minimum height of six feet; or landscaping or a landscaped berm consisting of trees, plants, flowers, or other natural vegetation. At no point can the screen be less than three feet in height. At the time of construction, sixty (60) percent of the perimeter area where the screen is to be placed must be at least six feet in height.

"Building" means any structure supported by columns and/or walls or other structures designed to enclose space.

"Building height" means the vertical distance as measured from the average finished grade to the point lying one-half the distance between the lowest and highest point on the roof of the building.

"Building official" means the city official(s) appointed or retained by the city to administer or enforce the building codes adopted by the city and other such codes and other regulations as the city may so designate.

"Café" means an informal restaurant primarily offering coffee, tea, and other beverages, where light refreshments and limited menu meals may also be sold.

"Campground" means an area to be used for transient occupancy by camping in tents, camp trailers, travel trailers, motor homes, recreational vehicles, and or similar movable or temporary sleeping quarters of any kind.

"Canopy" means a permanently roofed shelter wholly or partially covering a sidewalk, driveway, or ~~other similar area~~ another similar area, that may be wholly supported by a building or may be wholly or partially supported by columns, poles, or braces extended from the ground.

~~"Church"~~ "Cemetery" means land used or dedicated to the burial of the dead, including crematoriums, mausoleums, necessary sales, and maintenance facilities. Mortuaries shall be included when operated within the boundary of such cemetery.

"Child care center" means any facility providing less than 24-hour care for over six unrelated children during the daylight hours for compensation.

"Churches, places of worship or assembly " means any building which people regularly use to attend, participate in, or hold religious services, meetings, and other activities. This definition shall include buildings in which the religious services of any denomination are held.

"City" or "the city" means the city of Leadville, Colorado.

"Collector street" means a street of limited continuity serving or intended to serve as a feeder of local traffic into one or more major thoroughfares.

"Commercial greenhouse" means a greenhouse for agricultural production.

"Common open space" means a parcel of land, an area of water or a combination of land and water within the site designated for a planned unit development designed and intended primarily for the use or enjoyment of residents, occupants, and owners of the planned unit development.

The "commission" or the "planning commission" means the Leadville planning and zoning commission.

“Community Center” means a building or portion of a building used for nonprofit, cultural, educational, recreational, religious, or social activities which is open to the public or a designated part of the public, usually owned and operated by a public or nonprofit group or agency. Examples of community centers are learning centers, senior centers, and similar uses.

“Commercial cutting and storage of firewood” means the falling, chopping, cutting, splitting, or otherwise preparing timber or logs for commercial sales and/or storage of these products on the premises.

"Comprehensive plan" means a master plan or comprehensive plan adopted by the Leadville planning commission and/or the city council and all attachments and/or amendments to that plan.

"Conditional use permit" means a use as defined in Chapter 17.52 and may indefinitely run with the land rather than ceasing upon sale of the business as long as the land use remains the same and there are no violations of the municipal code.

"Construction" means the act of adding an addition or modifications to an existing structure or the erection of a new principal or accessory structure on a lot or parcel.

“Convalescent home”. See Nursing Home

"Cottage industry" means a commercial operation conducted within or adjacent to a dwelling unit, in which the dwelling unit is occupied as a a residence. In order to qualify for treatment as a cottage industry, the dwelling unit must be continuously occupied as a residence; the absence or cessation of the occupation of the dwelling unit as a residence shall render the cottage industry a commercial operation, subject to all of the requirements of this title.

1. The cottage industry may offer articles for sale or delivery on the premises;
2. The cottage industry use must be contained within or adjacent to and integrated with the dwelling unit, but is not required to be operated entirely within the dwelling unit;
3. Up to three persons, in addition to those persons residing within the dwelling unit may be employed in the operation;
4. All signs must be in compliance with the applicable requirements for the zoning district in which the property is located;
5. No more than three motor vehicles, in addition to those owned and operated by the persons dwelling in the dwelling unit, may be parked or stored at or adjacent to the cottage industry premises for more than three hours continuously.

"Demolition" means any act or process that destroys in part or in whole a designated historic structure or a structure within the National Historic Landmark District. \

~~"Detached accessory dwelling unit" means detached units that are located inside of accessory buildings including spaces inside of garages.~~

“Detoxification center”. See “Substance Abuse Treatment Facility”.

"Development" means any construction or activity which changes the basic character or the use of the land on which the construction or activity occurs.

“Distillery” means a facility for the on-site distillation of spirits in quantities not to exceed 75,000 gallons per year. The distillery operation processes the ingredients to make spirits by mashing, cooking and fermenting. The distillery operation does not include the production of any other alcoholic beverage. A distillery may include a tasting room open to the public.

“Distribution facility” means a use where goods are received and/or stored for delivery to the ultimate customer at remote locations.

"District" means a physical or geographic area where a common set of land use regulations and/or development standards apply.

"Dwelling unit" or "dwelling" means a building or structure or portion therein designed to be used as the living quarters for one person, family or housekeeping unit.

“Dwelling, multifamily” ~~“Multifamily dwelling”~~ means a dwelling that was designed to house or houses more than two families, as defined herein.

“Dwelling, single-family detached” ~~“Single-family dwelling, detached”~~ means a dwelling designed for or occupied by a single-family as defined herein. Except as otherwise indicated, a "manufactured home" is also included within the definition of a "single-family dwelling, detached." However, a "mobile home" is not included within the definition of a single-family dwelling, detached."

“Dwelling, single-family attached” ~~“Single-family dwelling, attached”~~ means a dwelling designed for occupancy and ownership by one family that is connected by a common wall to another single-family dwelling, such as a ~~town home~~ townhome.

“Dwelling, two-family” ~~“Two-family dwelling”~~ means a dwelling designed for occupancy by two families, such as a duplex.

“Educational institution” means public, private, or ~~parochial~~ institution at the primary, elementary, middle, high school, or post-secondary level, or trade or business schools, that provide educational instruction to students. Accessory uses include play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-school day care.

Commented [TD9]: Replaced "...and religious..."

“Electric vehicle (EV) charging station” means a motor vehicle parking lot where EVs can either recharge batteries for free or for a fee. EV charging stations may be allowed as an accessory use to any use where parking is required or provided.

“Electric vehicle (EV) charging station, private” means an EV charging station that is not open to the general public.

“Electric vehicle (EV) charging station, public” means an EV charging station that is accessible without restrictions on which drivers can utilize the station.

"Exterior architectural appearance" means the architectural character and general composition of the exterior of a structure, including but not limited to, the kind, color, and texture of the building material(s) and the type, design, and character of all windows, visible roof surfaces, doors, lighting fixtures, sign, and related elements.

"FAA" means the Federal Aviation Administration.

“Fabrication”. See “Manufacture of materials”.

"Family" means one or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and maintaining a common household but not including boarding or rooming houses, lodges, clubs, hotels or motels. Except as otherwise provided herein, "family" shall also include persons that are not related by blood, marriage, adoption, or legal custody occupying a residential dwelling unit and living as a single housekeeping unit if the occupants are handicapped persons as defined in Title VIII or the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988; or disabled persons as defined by Section 24-34-301, C.R.S.; additional necessary persons employed in the care and supervision of such handicapped or disabled persons.

“Family day care” means the use of a residence for the care of six or fewer children other than the occupant's own children for periods of less than 24 hours per day. Home child care is considered a home occupation.

“Farm stand” means a temporary building or structure, not to exceed a gross floor area of 500 square feet, from which agricultural products produced on the premises are sold.

"FCC" means the Federal Communication Commission.

“Frontage, ~~b~~Business”. “Business frontage” means the horizontal, linear dimension of that side of a building occupied by a single business or use which abuts a street, a mall, or other circulation area open to the general public and which has a public entrance to the building; in industrial districts, a building side with an entrance open to employees in a business frontage, where more than one business or use occupies a building, each such use having a public entrance (or, in industrial districts, an employee entrance) for its exclusive use is considered to have its own business frontage, which is the linear frontage of the portion of the building occupied by that business or use and containing the entrance.

“Garage—~~n~~Noncommercial” means a building designed for the shelter, storage or maintenance of motor vehicles owned and operated by the owner of such building which does not change the character of and is in harmony with the neighborhood and where no activity is carried out for profit.

“Gas pipeline” means any major pipeline and its appurtenant facilities designed for and capable of transporting gasses, excluding local distribution lines.

"Grade" means the mean point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between a structure (whether a building, sign structure, or other) and a point five feet distant from the structure, or the mean point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between the structure and the property lines if it is less than five feet distant from the structure. In case the structure is within five feet of a public sidewalk, alley or other public way, the grade shall be the elevation of the sidewalk, alley or public way.

“Greenhouse” means a building with a roof and sides constructed of glass or other transparent or translucent material and in which the temperature and humidity can be regulated for the cultivation of plants.

~~“Garage— Noncommercial” means a building designed for the shelter, storage or maintenance of motor vehicles owned and operated by the owner of such building which does not change the character of and is in harmony with the neighborhood and where no activity is carried out for profit.~~

"Gross density" means the average number of dwelling units per acre of a development or a proposed development.

"Gross floor area" means the total floor area of a structure as measured along the outside walls at floor level and including all floors but excluding open balconies and porches or enclosed parking areas and related features.

"Group homes" means a residential facility, whether or not licensed by the state, for the purpose of providing twenty-four-hour staff care, shelter, supervision, training and/or rehabilitation to eight or more developmentally disabled persons, mentally ill persons, or disabled persons, or a residential facility, whether or not licensed by the state, for any number of children, or for any number of persons sixty (60) years of age or older; provided, that such group home for elderly persons: (a) shall not be located within seven hundred fifty (750) feet of another such home; and (b) shall comply with any state, county, or municipal health, safety, and fire codes who do not need skilled and intermediate care facilities, plus no more than two live-in staff persons employed in the care and supervision of such elderly persons.

A group home or residential group home shall not include fewer than eight persons occupying a residential dwelling unit and living as a single housekeeping unit if the occupants are handicapped persons as defined in Title VIII or the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988; or disabled persons as defined by Section 24-34-501, C.R.S., and such additional necessary persons employed in the care and supervision of such handicapped or disabled persons.

~~"Guest unit" means any room, group of rooms, or other portion of a dwelling unit, accessory dwelling unit, hotel, motel, lodge, bed and breakfast establishment, time share estate, rooming or boarding house, or similar structure, that does not constitute the entire dwelling unit or other type of structure, is used or intended to be used for living and sleeping, has adequate egress, and is available for lease or rent as a single unit.~~

"Habitation" means occupancy of any dwelling unit, including dependent mobile homes, for more than twenty-four (24) hours in a seven-day period.

~~"Harboring of chicken" means activities, definitions, and regulations set forth in Section 6.04.020 if the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~1. "Adjoining property and adjacent specific to harboring of chickens" includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within twenty (20) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.~~

"Historic district" means the Leadville National Historic Landmark (NHL) district designated by the National Park Service.

"Home occupation" means any use within a dwelling and carried on by the inhabitants, which use is clearly additional and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which does not change the character thereof, nor generate traffic or parking requirements which significantly or adversely affect the residential character of the neighborhood. A home occupation is an occupation or a profession ~~which that:~~

1. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ Is customarily carried on in a dwelling unit;
2. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ Is carried on by a member of the family residing in the dwelling unit with not more than one assistant who is not a resident of the premises;
3. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ Is clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling unit for residential purposes; occupying not more than twenty-five (25) percent of the total floor area of the dwelling;

4. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ Conforms to the following additional conditions:

a. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ The occupation or profession shall be carried on wholly within the principal building.

b. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ A sign shall not be lit, not exceed two square feet, and be constructed of wood and nonreflective paint or other such materials as may be allowed by planning ~~official~~ officials.

c. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ No offensive noise, vibrations, smoke, dust, odors, heat or glare shall be produced.

d. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ No additions to or alterations of the exterior of the dwelling unit, including outside entrances for the purpose of the home occupation, shall be permitted.

e. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ The conduct of the home occupation and its external effects must not interfere with the peace, quiet, and dignity of the neighborhood and adjoining properties.

"Hospice". See Nursing Home.

"Hospital" means an institution designed for the diagnosis, treatment, and care of human illness or infirmity and providing health services, primarily for inpatients, including as related facilities, laboratories, outpatient departments, training facilities, and staff offices.

"Hotel," ~~"motel" or "lodge"~~ means a building or portion thereof with guest units ~~sleeping rooms~~ used or designated for use by or hired for occupancy by persons on a temporary basis and ~~containing~~ including at least ~~six such guest rooms and shall include hostels~~ 275 square feet.

"Improvements" means any utility, roadway, survey monument, building, structural or other changes to the land as may be required by or provided for in this title.

~~"Integrated accessory dwelling unit" means units that are created by dividing space within a principal building, or by adding floor area to an existing building.~~

"Junkyard" means a building, structure, or parcel of land or any combination thereof used for the collection, storage or sale of waste paper, rags, scrap metal, or discarded or abandoned materials and equipment or parts thereof or for the collecting, disassembly, storage or salvaging or demolition of vehicles, machinery or other materials and including the commercial sale of whole items or parts thereof, but not including architectural feature salvage.

"Kennel" means:

1. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ Any building, structure, area, or open space devoted wholly or partially to the raising, boarding or harboring of five or more ~~animals, domesticated,~~ animals that are over four months of age; or

2. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ \_\_\_\_\_ Any establishment for the boarding, raising or training of animals, domesticated, for which a fee is charged. ~~Such~~ The such establishment may include incidental grooming or the sale of pet supplies.

"Loading area" means a parking space other than a public street or alley for parking commercial vehicles for the purpose of loading or unloading materials or merchandise.

"Local street" means a street serving individual lots within a subdivision.

~~"Long term rental unit" means any dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or guest unit that is available for lease for a term of thirty (30) consecutive days or more.~~

"Lot" means a portion or parcel of land, including a portion of a platted subdivision, occupied or intended to be occupied by a building or use and its accessories, together with such yards as required under the provisions of this title, that is an integral unit of land held under unified ownership in fee or co-tenancy, or under legal control tantamount to such ownership.

"Lot area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot.

"Lot depth" means the average distance from the front to the rear lot lines of a lot.

"Lot width" means the average distance between the side lot lines of a lot.

"Lumberyard" means an area used for the storage, distribution, and sale of finished or rough-cut lumber and lumber products, but not including the manufacture or fabrication of lumber, lumber products, or firewood.

"Majority" means a majority of the members of the planning commission or city council present for a regular or special meeting to conduct business pursuant to this title, unless otherwise specified in state statute or city ordinance.

"Manufactured home" means a single-family dwelling which: (1) is partially or entirely manufactured in a factory; (2) is ~~not less than twenty four (24) feet in width and thirty six (36) feet in length;~~ (3) is installed on an engineered, permanent foundation; (4) has brick, wood, or cosmetically equivalent siding and a pitched roof; (5) is certified pursuant to the National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq., as amended; and (6) is built for the Colorado climate and snow load according to the Department of Housing and Urban Development Standards established under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq.

~~Master Plan. See "Comprehensive Plan."~~

"Manufacture of materials" means the mechanical or chemical transformation of materials or substances into new products, including the assembling of component parts, the manufacturing of products, and the blending of materials, such as lubricating oils, plastics, or resins.

"Mausoleum". See Cemetery.

"Medical Clinic" means a building or group of buildings in which the primary use is the provision of health care services to patients or clients. Examples include but are not limited to medical and dental laboratories, blood banks, oxygen providers, integrative medicine and holistic or homeopathic therapies, and other miscellaneous types of medical services.

"Medical marijuana center" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.44.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Medical marijuana establishment" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.44.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Medical marijuana optional premises cultivation operation" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.44.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

“Membership clubs and lodges” means permanent, headquarters-type, and meeting facilities for organizations operating on a membership basis for the promotion of the interests of the members, including facilities for: business associations; civic, social, and fraternal organizations; country clubs (golf courses separately defined); labor unions and similar organizations; political organizations; professional membership organizations; other membership organizations.

“Microbrewery” means a facility for the production and packaging of malt beverages of low alcoholic content for distribution, retail, or wholesale, on or off-premise, with a capacity of not more than 15,000 barrels per year. The development may include other uses such as a standard restaurant, bar or live entertainment as otherwise permitted in the zoning district

“Mobile home, d~~e~~pendent”-“~~Dependent mobile home~~” means any vehicular camping unit, travel trailer unit or similar mobile vehicular unit, including buses, equipped with or without a working flush toilet and working bathtub or shower.

“Mobile home, i~~n~~dependent”-“~~Independent mobile home~~” means a structure ~~which~~that: (1) is transportable in one or more sections; (2) is less than twenty-four (24) feet in width or thirty-six (36) feet in length; (3) is built on a permanent chassis; (4) is designed to be used as a place of living for a single-family, with or without a permanent foundation, when connected to the required utilities; and (5) includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical systems contained therein. "Manufactured home" is not included within the definition of "mobile home." However, structures commonly called "single-wide mobile homes" (whether certified pursuant to the National Mobile home Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq., as amended, or not) and any other form of transportable housing which does not meet the definition of a "manufactured home" under this title is included within the definition of "mobile home."

"Mobile home park" means a site or facility containing or proposed to contain two or more spaces for mobile homes.

"Mobile home space" means a plot of ground or a lot within a mobile home park designed to be occupied by one independent mobile home.

"Motel". See "Hotel".

“Motor vehicle parking lot” means an open space or an enclosed structure, exclusive of drives, turning areas or loading spaces, devoted to the parking of one or more motor vehicles.

“Museum” means an establishment operated as a repository for a collection of nature, scientific, literary curiosities, or objects of interest or works of art, not including the regular sale or distribution of the objects collected. Museums may include incidental retail and food/beverage sales.

"Nonconforming" means any preexisting building, structure or use conflicting with one or more provisions of this title applicable to the zoning district in which the building, structure or use is located.

“Nursery” means any land used to raise trees, shrubs, flowers, and other plants for sale or for transplanting.

“Nursing Home” means any facility which provides meals, lodging, and nursing care for compensation.



"Nudity" or "state of nudity" means:

- a. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ The appearance of human bare buttocks, anus, male genitals, female genitals, or the areola or nipple of the female human breast; or
- b. ~~\_\_\_\_\_~~ A state of dress ~~which that~~ fails opaquely and fully to cover ~~the~~ human buttocks, anus, male or female genitals, pubic region, or areola or nipple of the female breast.

"Open space" means the land area within a subdivision, proposed subdivision, or other development designated, reserved, and dedicated to outdoor uses, including but not limited to recreation, flood control, scenic uses, pathways, and related uses but excluding roadways.

"Orchard" means the establishment, care, and harvesting of more than 25 fruit-bearing trees for the purpose of selling the fruit to others.

"Outdoor Guiding" means a use where professional outdoor guides lead groups on outdoor activities such as hunting, fishing, skiing, camping, photography, or other outdoor recreational activities. This may include accessory retail or rental of equipment for the patrons participating in the outings. Outdoor guiding does not include outdoor recreational equipment rentals.

"Outdoor recreation equipment rental" means any use where motorized recreation equipment such as snowmobiles, off-highway vehicles, or utility vehicles are stored or displayed outdoors for rental purposes. This use may include office space and repair and maintenance of rental equipment."

"Outdoor storage" means the storage of materials, refuse, junk and/or other similar items outside of a building.

"Outdoor storage screened" means all outdoor storage of materials, supplies, equipment, trash, or similar items required to be screened from view from adjacent streets or the first floor of adjacent buildings.

"Outdoor storage, unscreened" means all outdoor storage not required to be screened from view from adjacent streets or the first floor of adjacent buildings.

"Outfitting". See Outdoor guiding.

"Owner" means any person with fee title to any parcel of land within the city who desires to permit the development of or to construct, install or erect a telecommunications facility upon such owner's property.

"Owner-occupied" has the same meaning as set forth in section 5.12.030 of this code.

"Parapet wall" means that part of a wall or railing which is entirely above the roof.

~~"Parking area" means an open space or an enclosed structure, exclusive of drives, turning areas or loading spaces, devoted to the parking of one or more motor vehicles. "Park" means an area or facility to be used for recreation, exercise, sports, education, rehabilitation, or similar activities, or an area intended to enhance the enjoyment of natural features or natural beauty.~~

"Parking area. See "Motor vehicle parking lot".

"Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, company or other public or corporate body including the federal government and any political subdivision, agency, instrumentality or corporation of the state.

Pipeline, Gas--"Personal services" means establishments primarily engaged in providing services involving the care of a person or his/her personal goods, including but not limited to, dry cleaning, cosmetics, beauty and barbershops, funeral services, and domestic services.

~~"Gas pipeline" means any major pipeline and its appurtenant facilities designed for and capable of transporting gasses, excluding local distribution lines.~~

"Planned unit development" means an area of land, controlled by one or more landowners, to be developed or developed under unified control or a unified plan of development for a number of dwelling units, commercial, educational, recreational or industrial uses, or any combination of the foregoing, the plan for which does not necessarily correspond in lot size, bulk, or type of use, density, lot coverage, open space or other restriction to the provisions contained elsewhere in this chapter.

"Planning commission" means the Leadville planning and zoning commission.

"Planning official" means the city officials(s) appointed or retained by the city to administer or enforce this title and associated regulations and other such codes and regulations as the city may so designate.

"Playground". See Park.

"Playing field". See Athletic facility.

"Processing". See Manufacture of materials.

"Professional and business offices" means professional or government offices including accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services; advertising agencies; architectural, engineering, planning, and surveying services; attorneys; counseling services; court reporting services; data processing and computer services; detective agencies and similar services; educational, scientific, and research organizations; employment, stenographic, secretarial, and word processing services; government offices including agency and administrative office facilities; management, public relations, and consulting services; photography and commercial art studios; writers and artists offices outside the home. This does not include medical offices or offices that are incidental and accessory to another business or sales activity that is the principal use.

"Public entrance" means an entrance to a building or premises that is customarily used or intended for use by the general public and excludes fire exits, special employee entrances, and loading dock entrances not generally used by the public.

"Public utility facility" means major buildings, structures, and facilities including but not limited to generating and switching stations, electrical substations, water or sewer pumping stations, and telephone exchanges, related to the furnishing (storage and transportation) of utility services, including but not limited to electric, gas, telephone, cable, water, sewer, and public transit, to the public. Major public utility facilities located in rights-of-way or easements are not uses required to be zoned.

"Recycling center" means a totally enclosed structure in which used materials are collected prior to shipment to others who will use those materials to manufacture new products.

"Referral agency" means an agency, organization, unit of government, political subdivision, group or organization to whom submittal materials and related text maps and graphic items are submitted for review, comment and/or recommendations to be returned to the Leadville ~~Planning Commission~~planning commission or the Leadville ~~City Council~~city council.

"Rental shop" means an establishment that conducts business with customers under conditions and terms agreed upon in a rental agreement or contract, which may be implied, explicit, or written.

"Restaurant" means an establishment where food and drink are prepared, table service is provided, and consumption takes place primarily within the principal structure.

"Restaurant with drive up windows" means a restaurant accommodating the patron's automobile from which the occupants may receive a service or in which products purchased from the restaurant may be received.

"Retail marijuana cultivation facility" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Retail marijuana establishment" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Retail marijuana products manufacturing facility" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Retail marijuana store" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Retail marijuana testing facility" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

"Retail sales, general" means a facility or area for the retail sale of general merchandise or food to the general public for direct use and not for wholesale. This use includes but is not limited to sale of general merchandise, clothing and other apparel, flowers and household plants, dry goods, convenience and specialty foods, hardware, liquor, and similar consumer goods.

"Retail store, grocery" means a retail establishment that primarily sells food for off-site consumption, but also may sell other convenience and household goods for off-site consumption. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to sales of food or beverages for on-site consumption, grocery delivery services, florists, and pharmacy services.

"Retirement home". See Senior living facility.

"Riding Stables" means a structure or land use in or on which equines are kept for sale or hire to the public. Breeding, boarding, or training of equines may also be conducted.

"Roadway" means that portion of a street right-of-way designated for vehicular traffic.

"Roof line" means the highest portion on any building where an exterior wall encloses usable floor space (including roof areas for housing mechanical equipment) or the highest point on any parapet wall if the parapet wall extends around the entire perimeter of the building.

"Rooming or boarding house" means a building or portion thereof with guest units/sleeping rooms designed to be used, let or hired for occupancy by persons as long-term rental units or on a permanent/temporary basis and containing at least/between one and five such guest units-rooms.

"Sawmill" means an operation or facility which has, as its predominant purpose, the sawing or planning of logs or trees into rough slabs.

"Scenic railways" means a railway that, in provides opportunities for the enjoyment of natural and/or man-made scenic resources and access or direct views to areas or scenes of exceptional beauty or historic or cultural interest. The aesthetic values of scenic routes often are protected and enhanced by regulations governing the development of property or the placement of outdoor advertising.

"School" means a facility that provides a curriculum of academic instruction, including kindergartens, elementary schools, middle schools, junior high schools, high schools, or the campus of a college or university.

"Self-storage facility" means a building or group of buildings that are rented and designed, through individual compartments or controlled stalls, for self-service storage purposes.

"Senior living facility" means a multifamily dwelling or complex containing dwelling units designed for and principally occupied by senior citizens. Such facilities commonly include a congregate meals program in a common dining area but exclude institutional care facilities such as nursing homes as elsewhere defined.

"Service Station" means an establishment primarily engaged in the repair or maintenance of motor vehicles, trailers, and similar large mechanical equipment, including paint, body and fender, and major engine and engine part overhaul, provided it is conducted within a completely enclosed building.

"Service Station, Gasoline" means any building, structure, or area of land used for the retail sale of automobile fuels, oils, and accessories, where repair service, if any, is incidental. May include the sale of propane or kerosene as accessory uses.

"Setback" means the distance required by the provisions of this title between the face of a building and the lot line opposite that building face, measured perpendicular to the building. In computing the minimum setback requirement, the following architectural features shall not be considered: open fire escapes projecting up to a distance of four feet from the face of a building, walls, rails or fences. Setback distances shall be measured from the edge of the eaves of the structure. Where angled buildings or lots exist or streets are curved, setbacks shall be measured from the shortest distance to the lot line.

"Sexually oriented business" means any adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty store, adult video store, adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, nude modeling studio, or sexual encounter center:

a. ———" "Adult arcade" means any commercial establishment to which the public is permitted or invited where, for any form of consideration, one or more still or motion picture projectors, or similar machines, or other image producing machines, for viewing by five or fewer persons per machine at any one time, are used to regularly show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic, digital, or electronic reproductions depicting specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas.

b. — "Adult bookstore, adult novelty store," or "adult video" store means a commercial establishment that devotes a significant or substantial portion of its business to any one or more of the following:

i. — The sale, rental or viewing (for any form of consideration) of books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or other visual representations which are characterized by the depiction or description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas; or

ii. — The sale or rental of instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use or marketed primarily for engaging in specified sexual activities; or

iii. — A significant or substantial portion of its business is shown by characteristics including, but not limited to, some or all of the following:

1. — A significant or substantial portion of its stock in trade consists of the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above; or

2. — A significant or substantial portion of its revenues is derived from the rental or sale of items listed in subsections a. and/or ~~(b.)~~ above; or

3. — A significant or substantial portion of its floor space, shelf space or storage space is devoted to the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above; or

4. — A significant or substantial portion of its advertising is devoted to the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above.

c. — "Adult cabaret" means a nightclub, bar, restaurant, concert hall, auditorium, or other commercial establishment which regularly features live performances that are characterized by the exhibition of specified sexual activities or the exposure of specified anatomical areas.

d. — "Adult motel" means a motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which offers public accommodations, for any form of consideration, and provides patrons with closed circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical type of material by means of a sign visible from the public right-of-way, or by means of any off premises advertising including, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television, and offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time less than five hours.

e. — "Adult motion picture theater" means any commercial establishment to which the public is permitted or invited, where for any form of consideration, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or similar photographic reproductions are shown for more than one hundred (100) days annually that have an emphasis on depicting or describing specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas. Any establishment meeting the definition of an adult arcade is not an adult motion picture theater.

f. — "Nude modeling studio" means any place where a person who appears in a state of nudity or displays specified anatomical areas is provided for money or any form of consideration to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed, or similarly depicted by other persons. The provisions of this definition shall not apply to:

1. — A college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or

2. — A private college or university that maintains and operates educational programs in which credits are transferable to a college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or

3. — A business located in a structure that has no sign visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that indicates a nude person is available for viewing.

g. — "Sexual encounter center" means a business or commercial enterprise that regularly offers, for any form of consideration, activities between male and female persons and/or persons of the same sex when one or more of the persons are in a state of nudity or ~~seminudity~~ semi nudity. This definition does not apply to any actions in compliance with any treatment or examination of another person for a bona fide medical purpose when such treatment or examination is conducted in a manner substantially consistent with reasonable medical practices, or to bona fide private parties not open to the general public.

h. — "Specified anatomical areas" means:

1. — Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus, or female breasts below a point immediately above the areola; or

2. — Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered.

i. — "Specified sexual activities" means:

1. — Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal, or tumescence;

2. — Masturbation, actual or simulated;

3. — Sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or simulated, including intercourse, oral copulation, or sodomy; and

4. — Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, anus, buttocks, or female breasts.

~~"Short-Term Rental unit" shall have the same meaning as defined in Section 5.12.030 means a dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or a guest unit within a dwelling unit or accessory dwelling unit that is available for lease for a term of less than thirty (30) consecutive days. The terms "vacation rental" and "short term vacation rental," if and as used elsewhere in this code, shall mean short term rental unit as defined in this section. The term "short term rental unit" shall not apply to hotels, motels, lodges, bed and breakfast establishments, hostels, or time share estates, or any guest units within such establishments.~~

"Solar energy device" means a facility, equipment or device, or structural design feature of a structure ~~which that~~ provides for the collection of sunlight and which comprises part of a system for the conversion of the sun's radiant energy into thermal, chemical, mechanical or electrical energy.

"Solar energy facility" means a solar energy conversion system with a nameplate generating capacity of 10 kW or greater including solar panels, arrays, and related equipment, pipes, batteries, and wiring that converts sunlight to heat or electricity for use either on-site or off-site for delivery to a power grid.

**Commented [TD10]:** Each power plant or generating facility has a "nameplate capacity" which indicates the maximum output that the generator can produce. Therefore, this terminology is correct.

“Special event” means an organized event or a group activity including, but not apply limited to hotels, motels, lodges, bed and breakfast establishments, hostels, or time share estates, or any guest units within such establishments, a performance, live music, broadcast music, commercial entertainment, assembly, contest, exhibit, ceremony, athletic competition, reading, or other similar gatherings where anything of value is exchanged in return for attendance or entry into the event. Special events do not include wedding events.

"Street" means a way for vehicular traffic, whether designated as or called a street, highway, road, avenue, parkway or however else named or designated.

"Structural alteration" means any addition to or subtraction of parts of a building or structure.

"Structure" means anything constructed or erected upon the ground except utility poles and like protrusions, flag poles or walls and fences up to six feet in height.

"Subdivision" means a tract of land which is divided into two or more lots, tracts, parcels, sites, separate interests (including leasehold interests), interests in common or other division for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of transfer of ownership or for building or other development or for street use by reference to such subdivision or recorded plat thereof; or a tract of land, including land to be used for condominiums, apartments or any other multiple-dwelling units, or for time-sharing dwelling units.

“Substance Abuse Treatment Facility” means a facility for the purposes of temporary or long-term inpatient treatment of victims of alcohol or drug use or addiction.

"Telecommunication facility" means a facility that transmits and/or receives electromagnetic signals. It includes antennas, cables, wires, conduit, microwave dishes, and other types of equipment for the transmission or receipt of such signals, telecommunication towers or similar structures supporting said equipment, equipment buildings, parking area, and other accessory development. A telecommunication facility operates at less than one thousand (1,000) watts of effective radiated power. A telecommunication facility does not include:

1. Residential television antennas;
2. Wireless cable satellite dish antennas;
3. Amateur radio antennas; or
4. Dish antennas less than one meter in diameter or measured diagonally.

"Telecommunication facility, accessory equipment" means equipment, including buildings and cabinets, used to protect and enable the operation of radio switching equipment, baek-upbackup power, and other devices, but not including antennas, that is-are necessary for the operation of a telecommunication facility.

"Telecommunication facility, building roof-mounted" means a telecommunication facility that is supported and/or projects above the roof of a legally existing building or transmission structure.

"Telecommunication facility, building wall, or facade-mounted" means a telecommunication facility that is supported and/or mounted on the wall of a legally existing building or transmission structure and does not project above the roof line. Facilities mounted on the side of a penthouse, mechanical screening, or other appurtenance, provided it would not project above the side of the appurtenance, and

facilities mounted on towers for high voltage electrical transmission shall also be considered wall-mounted telecommunication facilities.

"Telecommunication facility, freestanding" means a telecommunication facility that consists of a stand-alone support structure or tower, antennas, and accessory equipment.

"Temporary Use" means a use that may or may not be permitted under the regulations for a given zoning district but may be allowed on a nonpermanent and temporary basis following the procedures in Chapter 17.64, Temporary Buildings and Uses.

"Time share estate" means any interest in real property, including condominiums, owned or leased by five or more persons or other devices including ownership in a corporation, cooperative, partnership, or joint venture whereby the owners or lessees have formally or informally agreed that such owners or lessees shall have the preferred or exclusive use during specified periods of time. Any conveyance of a fractional fee estate or undivided interest by separate deed is within this definition and is hereby regulated within this title. A time share estate shall be deemed to be created upon the marketing, promotion, selling, or offering for sale a specified period or periods of time of occupancy in one or more residential units.

The issuance of a conditional use permit by city council is required prior to the creation of any time share estate in Leadville.

"Tower" means any structure that is designed and considered primarily for the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including self-supporting lattice towers, guy towers, or monopole towers. The term includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers, ~~common carrier~~common-carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, alternative tower structures, and the like.

"Tower, lattice" means a tower or structure designed and constructed primarily to support antenna or antennae and comprised of interconnected poles, pipes, bars, beams, strips, wires, or cross-members. A lattice tower shall include any type or form of a tower that incorporates guy or supporting wires. A lattice tower is not a monopole tower.

"Tower, monopole" means a structure designed and constructed to support ~~antenna~~antennae or antennae for the purpose of providing telecommunications services and which consists solely of a stand-alone, ground-mounted support pole, pipe, or other solid structure. A monopole tower shall not include any tower supported or attached to ~~the~~ guy or support wires. A monopole tower is not a lattice tower.

"Tract" means a parcel of land or a contiguous combination thereof.

"Transmission line" means any electric transmission line and its related facilities which emanate from a power plant or from a substation and terminate at a substation and which are designed for or are capable of the transmission of electricity at sixty-nine (69) kilovolts (KV) or more.

"Travel trailer park" means a site or facility containing or proposed to contain two or more travel trailer ~~or camping~~ unit spaces.

"Travel trailer space" means a plot of ground or a lot within a travel trailer park or portion of a mobile home park designed to be occupied by one travel trailer unit or one camping unit.

"Travel trailer unit" means any pickup camper, a pickup with shell, motorhome, travel trailer, tent trailer, or similar mobile unit with sleeping quarters and not exceeding eight feet in body width at its widest



point or forty (40) feet in body length and designed and used principally for recreational purposes or for the support of recreational or commercial uses.

"Use" means the purpose or function for which any land, structure or building is designed, constructed, maintained, or occupied.

"Use, accessory". See Accessory Use, Building, or Structure.

"Use by right" means permitted uses designated as use by right are subject to all other applicable regulations of this code and state and federal law.

"Use, principal" means the main use to which the premises is devoted and the principal purpose for which the premises exists.

"Use variance" means a deviation from Chapter 17.48 listing of prohibited uses by zoning district whereby an otherwise prohibited use in a given zoning district may be treated as a conditional use, and processed accordingly, for purposes of historic conservation. See also "variance" and Sectionsection 17.44.080 and Chapters 17.48 and 17.52.

"Vacation Lodge". See Hotel.

"Vacation Rental". See Short Term Rental.

"Variance" means any deviation, except a use variance, from the requirements of this title as allowed for by the board of adjustment. See also "use variance."

"Veterinary clinic" means an establishment that provides medical treatment and care to animals, and which may include temporary or overnight boarding of animals that are recuperating from treatment. A veterinarian clinic or office shall not include a kennel.

"Wholesale" means the sale of goods and merchandise for resale instead of for direct consumption.

"Yard" means the space on the same lot as a building or structure that is usually unoccupied and open to the sky except for landscaping improvements.

## Chapter 17.48 BY-RIGHT, CONDITIONAL AND PROHIBITED USES

### Sections:

#### 17.48.010 Designated.

The table on the following pages indicates which land-use(s) are allowed by right, which require an administrative permit, and which are conditional uses (that is, uses which the city may allow following detailed review) Any use not included in the list and/or identified as a by-right, administrative, or conditional use is prohibited and which are prohibited uses in each of the zoning districts listed in Section 17.12.010. Uses not listed are considered to be conditional uses.

**TABLE 1**  
 By-Right, Conditional and Prohibited Uses by Zoning District

R = A uUse allowed by right

~~P~~ = Use prohibited

A = A use requiring an Administrative ~~conditional use~~/permit as defined in Chapter 17.50-required

C = A use requiring a Conditional ~~use~~/permit required as defined in Chapter 17.52

~~R/C~~ = Subject to use-specific conditions and review

|                                                                                                                                                | R-1            | R-2           | TR            | RC             | C              | TC             |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------|---------------|---------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|
| 1. Single-family dwelling- (attached and detached)                                                                                             | R              | R             | R             | <del>P</del>   | C              | R              |
| 2. Two-family dwelling                                                                                                                         | R              | R             | R             | <del>P</del>   | C              | R              |
| 3a. Multiple-family dwelling (3–4 units)                                                                                                       | <del>CP</del>  | <del>RC</del> | <del>P</del>  | <del>P</del>   | <del>C</del>   | <del>R</del>   |
| 3b. Multiple-family dwelling (5+ units)                                                                                                        | <del>P</del>   | <del>C</del>  | <del>C</del>  | <del>C</del>   | <del>C</del>   | <del>C</del>   |
| 3c. Residential <del>d</del> Dwellings above or below commercial use.                                                                          | <del>P</del>   | A             | A             | R              | A              | R              |
| 4. <u>Group Homes</u> <del>Boarding and rooming houses and retirement homes</del>                                                              | <del>P</del>   | C             | C             | <del>C</del>   | <del>C</del>   | <del>R-C</del> |
| 5a. Bed and breakfast establishments (3 or fewer guest units)                                                                                  | <del>A-C</del> | <del>CA</del> | <del>RA</del> | <del>CA</del>  | <del>CA</del>  | <del>RA</del>  |
| 5b. Bed and breakfast establishments (4 or more guest units)                                                                                   | <del>P</del>   | <del>C</del>  | <del>C</del>  | <del>C</del>   | <del>C</del>   | <del>C</del>   |
| 6. <u>Hospitals, medical clinics, <del>nursing homes</del> Rest, nursing, convalescent and hospices</u>                                        | <del>P</del>   | C             | C             | <del>P-C</del> | <del>P-R</del> | C              |
| 7. <u>Group homes</u> <u>Family <del>Dwelling</del></u>                                                                                        | R              | R             | C             | <del>P</del>   | <del>P</del>   | C              |
| 8. <u>Hospitals, clinics, detoxification centers and mortuaries</u> <u>Child care <del>Center</del></u>                                        | <del>P-C</del> | C             | C             | C              | <del>R-C</del> | C              |
| 9a. <u>Public and private schools and/or, child care facilities, educational institutes</u> <del>institutions, and training centers</del>      | C              | C             | C             | C              | C              | C              |
| 9b. Museums                                                                                                                                    | C              | C             | C             | R              | R              | R              |
| 10. Churches, <u>place of worship or assembly</u> <u>and</u> religious institutes including church camps                                       | C              | C             | C             | C              | C              | C              |
| 11. <del>Private heliports</del>                                                                                                               | <del>P</del>   | <del>P</del>  | <del>P</del>  | <del>P</del>   | <del>C</del>   | <del>P</del>   |
| 12. Cemeteries <u>and</u> mausoleums                                                                                                           | <del>P</del>   | <del>P</del>  | <del>P</del>  | <del>P</del>   | C              | <del>P</del>   |
| 13. Parks, playgrounds, <u>and</u> athletic facilities <u>and</u> playing fields                                                               | R              | R             | R             | C              | R              | R              |
| 14. Essential public and government utility uses, facilities, services <u>and</u> <u>in</u> buildings, <u>excluding water storage and high</u> | C              | C             | C             | C              | <del>C-R</del> | C              |

**Commented [TD1]:** Per phone call with Chapin on 1/13, Changed from "R" to "C". PAT recommendation was only for 3-4 units.

**Commented [TD2]:** Per phone call with Chapin on 1/13, changed from "R" to "C". PAT recommendation was only for 3-4 units.

|                                                                                                              |     |     |     |     |     |     |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| <del>voltage electric transmission facilities and accessory uses to these facilities</del>                   |     |     |     |     |     |     |
| 15. Agricultural production related to the commercial production of animals                                  | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | P   |
| 15a. Orchards, nurseries, and <del>related</del> related uses for commercial purposes                        | P   | P   | C   | P   | C   | C   |
| 15b. Commercial greenhouses < 500 square feet                                                                | A   | A   | A   | C   | A   | A   |
| 15c. Commercial greenhouses > 500 square feet                                                                | P   | C   | C   | P   | C   | C   |
| 15d. Agricultural Production                                                                                 |     |     |     |     | C   | C   |
| 16a. Commercial cutting and storage of firewood                                                              | €   | €   | €   | P   | C   | €   |
| <del>16b. Sales of firewood</del>                                                                            | P   | P   | €   | €   | R   | €   |
| 17. Roadside outlets for the sale of agricultural products                                                   | P   | P   | C   | C   | R   | C   |
| 18. <del>Commercial</del> riding stables                                                                     | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | P   |
| 19. Kennels and veterinary clinics                                                                           | P   | P   | €   | P   | C   | C   |
| 20. <del>Campgrounds and</del> travel trailer parks (See Chapter 17.56)                                      | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | C   |
| <del>21. Mobile home parks (See Chapter 17.56)</del>                                                         | P   | P   | €   | P   | P   | P   |
| <del>22. Individual mobile homes</del>                                                                       | P   | P   | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| 23. <del>Outdoor amusement and entertainment facilities including scenic railways</del>                      | C   | C   | C   | C   | C   | C   |
| 24. Membership clubs and lodges                                                                              | P   | C   | C   | R   | R   | R   |
| 24a. <del>Membership clubs and lodges</del> Community Center                                                 | A   | A   | A   | R   | R   | R   |
| 25. Professional and business offices                                                                        | P   | C   | €R  | R   | R   | R   |
| 26. Personal services <del>outlets such as beauty and barber shops, Laundromats, travel agencies, etc.</del> | P   | C   | C   | R   | R   | R   |
| 27. Cottage industry                                                                                         | A   | A   | A   | A   | R   | R   |
| 27a. Home occupation                                                                                         | R   | R   | R   | R   | R   | R   |
| 28. General retail sales stores > 1,500 sq. ft.                                                              | P   | C   | C   | R   | R   | C   |
| 28a. General retail sales stores < 1,500 sq. ft.                                                             | P   | C   | C   | R   | R   | R   |
| <del>29. Hotels, motels and lodges, including time share estates</del>                                       | P   | P   | €   | €   | €   | €   |
| <del>29a. Time share estates (3 or fewer guest units)</del>                                                  | A   | A   | A   | A   | A   | A   |
| 29b. Hotels, motels, <del>or vacation lodges (3 or more guest units)</del>                                   | P   | €   | C   | €R  | €R  | C   |
| 30. <del>Restaurants and cafes</del>                                                                         | P   | €   | C   | R   | R   | R   |
| 31. Microbrewery, distillery                                                                                 |     |     | C   | R   | R   | C   |
| <del>31. Restaurants, fast food with drive-up windows</del>                                                  | P   | P   | P   | P   | €   | €   |
| 32. Bars and lounges, Brewpub                                                                                | €   | €   | C   | R   | R   | C   |
| 32a. Retail marijuana store                                                                                  | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | C   |
| 32b. Retail marijuana cultivation facility                                                                   | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | P   |
| 32c. Retail marijuana products manufacturing facility                                                        | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | C   |
| 32d. Retail marijuana testing facility                                                                       | P   | €   | €   | P   | C   | C   |
| 32e. Retail/medical marijuana combined facility                                                              | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | C   |
| 32f. Medical marijuana center                                                                                | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | C   |
| 32g. Medical marijuana infused product manufacturer                                                          | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | C   |
| 32h. Medical marijuana optional premises cultivation operation                                               | P   | P   | P   | P   | C   | P   |
| 33. Outdoor storage                                                                                          | P R | P R | P R | P R | € R | P R |
| 33a. Outdoor Storage Un-Screened                                                                             | P   | €   | €A  | P   | C   | €A  |
| 33b. Outdoor Storage Screened                                                                                | P   | A   | A   | P   | CA  | A   |
| <del>33c. Outdoor Storage of snow and associated debris</del>                                                |     |     |     |     |     |     |

|                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       |   |   |     |     |     |     |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---|---|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| <del>33d. Outdoor Storage for less than one year of dirt, stones, firewood or other natural materials but not construction or demolition debris.</del>                                                                                                                                | R | R | R   | A   | R   | R   |
| <del>33e. Outdoor Storage for more than one year of dirt, stones, firewood or other natural materials but not construction or demolition debris.</del>                                                                                                                                | A | A | A   | A   | A   | A   |
| <del>33f. Portable Storage Structures larger than 200 square feet</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                               | A | A | A   | A   | A   | A   |
| 34. Automotive, recreational vehicles or marine sales and service, excluding service stations                                                                                                                                                                                         | P | P | C   | C   | R   | C   |
| 35. Gasoline <del>S</del> service stations, gasoline                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  | P | P | P   | C   | R   | P   |
| <del>36. Bulk fuel sales and storage</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            | P | P | P   | P   | C   | P   |
| 37. Wholesale sales and/or distribution with <del>outdoor</del> open storage of goods                                                                                                                                                                                                 | P | P | C   | P   | R   | C   |
| 38. Wholesale sales and/or distribution without <del>open outdoor storage of goods</del>                                                                                                                                                                                              | P | C | C   | R   | R   | C   |
| 39. Motor vehicle parking lots                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        | C | C | C   | C   | R   | C   |
| 40. Lumber yards <del>or</del> sawmills                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               | P | P | P   | P   | C   | P   |
| <del>41. High voltage (&gt;69KV) electric transmission lines in existing transmission corridors and underground high pressure gas lines</del>                                                                                                                                         | C | C | C   | P   | C   | C   |
| <del>42. High voltage electric transmission lines in new corridors</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                              | P | P | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| <del>43. Reservoirs, towers and water storage facilities</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                        | C | C | C   | P   | C   | C   |
| 44. Telecommunications facility                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | C | C | C   | C   | C   | C   |
| <del>44a. Building roof mounted</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 | C | C | R/C | R/C | R/C | R/C |
| <del>44b. Building wall or facade mounted</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       | C | C | R/C | R/C | R/C | R/C |
| <del>44c. Dish antenna</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          | C | C | R/C | R/C | R/C | R/C |
| <del>44d. Telecommunication facility, freestanding</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                              | C | C | C   | C   | C   | C   |
| <del>44e. Alternative tower structure</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           | C | C | R/C | R/C | R/C | R/C |
| 45. Recycling center                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  | C | C | C   | P   | C   | C   |
| <del>46. Landfills and disposal sites</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           | P | P | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| <del>47. Manufacture or storage of gases or above ground storage of flammable liquids such as gasoline for other than residential uses in bulk quantities</del>                                                                                                                       | P | P | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| <del>48. Railroad facilities including repair sheds and switch yards and trucking terminals, but excluding scenic railways</del>                                                                                                                                                      | P | P | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| <del>49. Junk or wrecking yards</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 | P | P | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| <del>50. Batch plants and hot mix plants and all accessory uses</del>                                                                                                                                                                                                                 | P | P | P   | P   | P   | P   |
| 51. Manufacture, fabrication or processing of all materials not otherwise listed and which will not cause noise, heat, dust, fumes <del>excessive traffic or parking</del> or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood                                            | P | C | C-A | C-A | C-R | C-R |
| <del>51a. Manufacture, fabrication or processing of all materials not otherwise listed and which will not cause noise, heat, dust, fumes, excessive traffic or parking or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood and occupying less than 500 square feet.</del> | A | A | A   | A   | R   | R   |
| <del>51b. Manufacture, fabrication or processing of all materials not otherwise listed and which will not cause noise, heat, dust, fumes, excessive traffic or parking or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood and occupying more than 500 square feet.</del> | P | C | C   | C   | A   | C   |
| 52. Manufacture, fabrication or processing of all materials not otherwise listed and which will cause noise, heat, dust,                                                                                                                                                              | P | P | C   | P   | C   | C   |

|                                                                                                                              |          |          |          |          |          |          |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
| fumes or other consequences that will impact the neighborhood                                                                |          |          |          |          |          |          |
| 53. Self-storage and mini-warehouse facilities                                                                               | <b>R</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | R        | C        |
| 54. Non commercial garages                                                                                                   | C        | C        | C        | C        | C        | C        |
| 55. Accessory dwelling units (Refer to Ch. 17.60)                                                                            | R        | R        | R        | <b>P</b> | C        | R        |
| 56. Sexually oriented business                                                                                               | <b>P</b> | <b>P</b> | <b>P</b> | <b>P</b> | C        | <b>P</b> |
| 57. Harboring of chickens                                                                                                    | A        | A        | A        | <b>P</b> | A        | A        |
| 58a. Short-term rental units (1 short-term rental unit on a single parcel)**                                                 | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| 58b. Short-term rental units on parcels that are not owner-occupied (3 or more short-term rental units on a single parcel)** | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> |
| 58c. Short-term rental units on owner-occupied parcels (2 or more short-term rental units on a single parcel)**              | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> |
| 59. Rooming and boarding house; or and retirement home                                                                       |          | C        | C        | C        | C        | R        |
| 60. Art and entertainment facility, outdoor                                                                                  | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> |
| 61. Art and entertainment facility, indoor                                                                                   |          |          | C        | C        | C        | C        |
| 62. Art Gallery                                                                                                              |          |          | R        | R        | R        | R        |
| 63. Outdoor recreation equipment rental, without outdoor storage                                                             |          |          | R        | R        | R        | R        |
| 64. Outdoor recreation equipment rental, with outdoor storage                                                                |          |          | C        | C        | R        | R        |
| 65. Service Stations                                                                                                         |          |          |          |          | C        | C        |
| 66. Brewery                                                                                                                  |          |          |          |          | C        |          |
| 67. Screened or un-screened outdoor storage                                                                                  |          |          | <b>R</b> |          | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| 68. Wholesale sales and/or distribution with outdoor storage                                                                 |          |          | <b>R</b> |          | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| 69. Wholesale sales and/or distribution without outdoor storage                                                              |          | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| 70. Self-storage facilities                                                                                                  |          |          |          |          | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| 71. Accessory use, building, or structure (Refer to Ch. 17.60)                                                               | R        | R        | R        | R        | R        | R        |
| 73. Solar energy facility                                                                                                    |          |          | A        |          | A        | A        |
| 74. Short-Term Rentals (Refer to Sec. 5.12 of LMC)                                                                           | R        | R        | R        | R        | R        | R        |
| 78. Rental Shop (Recreation and Entertainment)                                                                               |          | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| 79. Outdoor Guiding                                                                                                          |          |          | R        | R        | R        | R        |
| 80. Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations, Public or Private                                                               |          |          | <b>C</b> | <b>C</b> | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| Retirement Home, Senior living center                                                                                        |          | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |          | <b>R</b> | <b>R</b> |
| Times Share estate                                                                                                           |          |          |          |          |          |          |

**Commented [TD3]:** Per phone call with Chapin on 1/13, allowing ADUs in the RC zone conflicts with standard in Sec. 17.60.020.B which prohibits ADUs in the RC zone district. Therefore, reverted table back to current status of not allowing ADUs in the RC zone district.

\* See Chapter(s) 17.50 and 17.52 on administrative permits and conditional use provisions.

\*\* The number of short-term rental licenses available, regardless of whether the use is a use by right or conditional use pursuant to this section, is subject to the maximum number of licenses available under Chapter 5.12 of this code.

**04/26/2023 Additional red-lined amendments proposed  
by City Attorney and Planning Director**

## Chapter 17.08 DEFINITIONS

### 17.08.010 Introduction.

As used in this title, unless the context requires otherwise, the following words and phrases shall be as stated below. Except as provided for in this title, the planning commission shall decide by a majority vote of the members present any questions or disputes regarding both the interpretation and the application of the definitions listed below and all words contained within this title but not specifically defined herein. Any such interpretation or application decided upon by the planning commission may be appealed by an applicant to the board of adjustment, which shall render a final decision by a concurring vote of four members.

### 17.08.020 Use Categories.

This section defines the general use categories listed in Table 1, By-Right, Conditional, and Prohibited Uses by Zoning District within Chapter 17.48. Definitions for specific use types are in alphabetical order in Section 17.08.030.

"Accessory ~~Uses, building, or structure~~" means a subordinate use, building, or structure customarily incidental and subordinate in function to the principal use, building, or structure and located on the same lot as the principal use, building, or structure.

~~"Agricultural Uses" means uses related to the commercial production of field crops for food, fiber, or energy. Agricultural uses commonly include farming, orchards, horticulture, dairying, pasturage, and aquaculture. Agricultural uses also include the raising or breeding of livestock such as cattle, horses, poultry, and the keeping of bees. The term includes the necessary accessory uses for storing the products and inputs needed to produce them. means Agricultural and farming activities, including nurseries and facilities for processing and selling agricultural products. Agricultural uses commonly involve farming, dairying, pasturage, apiculture, horticulture, floriculture, and viticulture.~~

~~"Animal Services" means animal-related uses including the boarding and care of animals on a commercial basis. Accessory uses commonly include confinement facilities for animals, parking, and storage areas.~~

~~"Child Care Facilities" means any and all facilities or other activities allowed under the Child Care Licensing Act (Article 5, Part 3 of Title 26.5, C.R.S., as amended), and further regulated under the Colorado Department of Human Services' General Rules for Child Care Facilities, 12 C.C.R. 2509-8, Section 7.701 et seq., as amended. "Child care facilities" means establishments that provide care for children on a regular basis away from their primary residence. Accessory uses commonly include offices, recreation areas, and parking. This category commonly does not include public or private schools or facilities operated in connection with an employment use, shopping center, or other principal use, where children are cared for while parents or guardians are occupied on the premises.~~

"Community and Cultural Facilities" means uses including buildings, structures, or facilities owned, operated, or occupied by a governmental entity or nonprofit organization to provide a service to the public.

"Educational Facilities" means public, private, and parochial institutions at the primary, elementary, middle, high school, or post-secondary level, or trade or business schools, that provide educational instruction to students. Accessory uses commonly include play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-school day care.

**Commented [CM1]:** Child care definitions throughout this section and the next section have been revised for consistency with and to cross-reference current state law and regulations.

“Food and Beverage” means establishments involved in serving prepared food or beverages for consumption on or off the premises. Accessory uses commonly include food preparation areas, offices, and parking.

“Group Living” means uses characterized by residential occupancy of a structure by a group of people who do not meet the definition of “household living.” Tenancy is arranged on a monthly or longer basis, and the size of the group may be larger than a family. Group living structures commonly have a common eating area for residents. The residents may receive care, training, or treatment, and caregivers may or may not also reside at the site. Accessory uses commonly include recreational facilities and vehicle parking for occupants and staff.

“Healthcare Facilities” means any facility providing direct health care to the public such as hospitals, mental health institutions, sanitariums, special care centers, and clinics.

“Household Living” means uses characterized by residential occupancy of a dwelling unit as a household. The tenancy is arranged on a month-to-month or longer basis (lodging where tenancy may be arranged for a period of fewer than 30 days is classified under the “lodging facilities” category). Accessory uses commonly include recreational activities, raising of pets, gardens, personal storage buildings, hobbies, home occupations, and parking of the occupants’ vehicles.

“Industrial Service and Research” means uses including the repair or servicing of agricultural, industrial, business, or consumer machinery, equipment, products, or by-products. Contractors and similar users may perform services off-site with few customers coming to the site. Accessory activities commonly include offices, parking, and indoor or outdoor storage.

“Lodging Facilities” means for-profit facilities where lodging, ~~meals, and the like are is~~ provided to transient visitors and guests for a defined period of time and where meals and the like may be provided.

“Manufacturing and Production” means uses including all transformative processes, regardless of whether or not the new product is finished or semi-finished. Production is commonly for commercial wholesaling rather than for direct sales.

“Marijuana Industries” means any and all industries, uses, facilities, licenses, or other activities allowed under the Colorado ~~Medical~~ Marijuana Code (~~Article 10 of Title 44~~Article 43.3 of Title 12, C.R.S., as amended) ~~and Colorado Retail Marijuana Code (Article 43.3 of Title 12, C.R.S., as amended)~~, and further regulated under the Colorado Department of Revenue, Marijuana Enforcement Division’s ~~Medical Marijuana Code~~Colorado Marijuana Rules, 17 C.C.R. 212-31, as amended ~~and/or Retail Marijuana Code, 17 C.C.R. 212-2, as amended.~~

“Offices” means uses that provide executive, management, administrative, or professional services, but do not involve the sale of merchandise except as incidental to a principal use. Common uses include real estate, insurance, property management, investment, employment, travel, advertising, law, architecture, design, engineering, accounting, call centers, and similar offices. Accessory uses commonly include cafeterias, health facilities, parking, or other amenities primarily for the use of employees in the firm or building.

“Parking Facilities” means any parking lot or parking structure that is used primarily or habitually for the parking of vehicles (excluding street or alley rights-of-way).

“Parks and Open Space” means uses with a focus on natural areas, large areas consisting mostly of vegetative landscaping or outdoor recreation, community gardens, or public squares. Lands tend to have

**Commented [CM2]:** Updated citations to current state statutory sections.



few structures. Accessory uses commonly include clubhouses, playgrounds, maintenance facilities, concessions, caretaker's quarters, and parking.

"Personal Services" means establishments that provide individual services related to personal needs directly to customers at the site of the business, or that receive goods from or return goods to the customer, which have been treated or processed at that location or another location. Examples commonly include beauty and barbershops, laundromats, shoe repair shops, and tailor shops.

"Public Utilities and Facilities" means all lines, buildings, easements, passageways, or structures used or intended to be used by any public or private utility related to the provision, distribution, collection, transmission, or disposal of power, oil, gas, water, sanitary sewage, communication signals, or other similar services at a local level.

"Recreation and Entertainment" means uses that provide recreation or entertainment activities. Accessory uses commonly include concessions, snack bars, parking, and maintenance facilities.

"Retail" means uses involving the sale of a product directly to the final consumer for whatever purpose but not specifically or exclusively for the purpose of resale. Examples commonly include bookstores, antique stores, bakeries, grocery stores, household product stores, and similar uses.

~~"Temporary Use" means a use established for a limited duration of time with the intent to discontinue such use upon the expiration of the time period.~~

**Commented [CM3]:** Removed from this section, and definition for "temporary use" revised in next section.

"Vehicles and Equipment" means a broad range of uses for the maintenance, sale, or rental of motor vehicles and related equipment. Accessory uses commonly include incidental repair, storage, and offices.

~~"Veterinary Services" means animal related uses including the boarding and care of animals on a commercial basis. Accessory uses commonly include confinement facilities for animals, parking, and storage areas.~~

"Warehouse and ~~Freight Distribution~~" means uses that are engaged in the storage or movement of goods for themselves or other firms. Goods are commonly delivered to other firms or the final consumer, except for some will call pickups. There is little on-site sales activity with the customer present. Accessory uses commonly include offices, truck fleet parking, and maintenance areas.

**Section 17.08.030 Definitions.**

In this Title, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless a contrary meaning is required by the context or is specifically prescribed:

"Accessory dwelling unit" or "ADU" means an attached or detached residential dwelling unit that is incidental and subordinate in function and size to the principal building which ~~shall is~~ be located on the same parcel as the principal building.

"Accessory use, building, or structure" means a subordinate use, building, or structure customarily incidental and subordinate in function to the principal use, building, or structure and located on the same lot as the principal use, building, or structure.

"Adjoining property and adjacent" includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within one hundred (100) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.

"Administrative permit" is a permit issued by the planning official after determining that the proposed use satisfies conditions specified in the municipal code for the particular use and does not run with the land. Permits may be denied or referred to the planning and zoning commission and city council with a conditional use permit application as described in Chapter 17.52.

"Agricultural production" means the production of a plant which will ultimately be sold at retail, and which utilizes the cultivating of soil, planting, raising, and harvesting crops.

"Alley" or "alleyway" means a minor public roadway upon which the rear of building lots generally abuts, and which is generally used for service purposes.

"Alteration" means any act or process that changes one or more of the exterior architectural features of a structure, including but not limited to, the erection, construction, reconstruction, or removal of any structure or substantial portion thereof. With regard to a mobile home park or travel trailer park, alteration would be any act or process that changes density, lot size, and boundaries.

"Alternative tower structure" means any man-made trees, clock towers, bell steeples, light poles, water towers, and similar alternative design mounting structures that camouflage or conceal the presence of antennas or towers.

~~"Animal boarding and training" means an establishment where domesticated animals other than household pets are housed, groomed, bred, boarded, trained, or sold. This term shall not include the operation of a kennel.~~

~~"Animal production related to the commercial production of animals" means raising or fattening animals for the sale of animals or animal products. The subsector This use comprises establishments, such as ranches, farms, and feedlots primarily engaged in keeping, grazing, breeding, or feeding animals. These animals are kept for the products they produce or for eventual sale.~~

~~"Animal shelter" means a facility used to house or contain stray, homeless, abandoned, or unwanted animals and that is owned, operated, or maintained by a public body, established humane society, animal welfare society (such as the Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals), or other nonprofit organization devoted to the welfare protection and humane treatment of animals.~~

"Antenna" means any exterior apparatus designed for telephone, radio, or television communications through the sending and/or receiving of wireless communications signals.

"Antenna, dish" means dish (parabolic or cylindrical) antennas used for microwave and satellite transmission and reception for commercial purposes. This definition shall not apply to wireless cable satellite dish antennas or dish antennas less than one meter in diameter or measured diagonally.

"Antennas, panel" means an array of antennas, rectangular in shape, used to transmit and receive telecommunication signals.

"Antenna, whip" means a single antenna that is cylindrical in shape and omni-directional.

"Applicant" means any person making application for a land use change or other action encompassed by this title. See also "Person."

"Architectural feature salvage" means the storage yard of a dealer in interior or exterior architectural elements recovered from structures, and may include facilities, but not motor vehicles, for the administration or management of the business and for the maintenance of equipment used in the business. Such use shall not include unenclosed and/or exposed building materials on more than twenty-five (25) percent of the property.

"Art gallery" means an establishment engaged in the sale, loan, or display of paintings, photography, sculpture, or other works of art and may include art classes, art studio space, and special events. Art Gallery does not include libraries, museums, or non-commercial art galleries.

~~"Arts and entertainment facility" means a structure, complex, or facility for the presentation of performing arts. Arts and entertainment centers do not include any business defined as a sexually oriented business by this title.~~

~~"Arts and entertainment facility, indoor" means a structure, complex, or facility for the presentation of exclusively indoor performing arts, including indoor motion picture theaters, theaters for indoor live performances, and studios for arts education, such as dance or painting. Arts and entertainment facilities do not include any business defined as a sexually oriented business by this title.~~

**Commented [CM4]:** Changed to "entertainment facility". See below.

"Athletic facilities" means a developed recreation area that may contain a playground as well as fields for competitive sports such as baseball, football, or soccer. Bleachers or grandstands may be provided.

"Automotive, recreational vehicles, or marine sales and service" means the use of any building or land for a business involving the sale, leasing, and/or servicing of new or used motor vehicles, boats, snowmobiles, ATVs, OHVs, UTVs, or recreational vehicles. Such establishments may include office space, parking lots for the display and storage of vehicles available for sale, parking areas for customers and employees, vehicle repair facilities, facilities for body work, painting, or restoration, and sale of parts.

"Awning" means a movable shelter supported entirely from the exterior wall of a building and of a type that can be retracted, folded, or collapsed against the face of the supporting building.

~~"Bars and lounges" mean a commercial enterprise establishments whose primary activity is the sale of alcoholic beverages, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, to be consumed on the premises. Bars and lounges include taverns, night clubs, private clubs, bottle clubs, and similar facilities serving alcohol beverages or liquor.~~

**Commented [CM5]:** Alcohol/liquor uses definitions updated for consistency with state law definitions where appropriate and updated to cross-reference applicable state laws where needed.

"Bed and breakfast establishment" means a building or portion thereof with kitchen facilities for the customary service of breakfast at no additional cost to patrons and with ~~sleeping rooms~~ guest units designed to be used, let, or hired for occupancy by persons on a temporary basis and containing not more than five (5) such rooms.

"Block" means an area of land within a subdivision or proposed subdivision and bounded entirely by streets, roads, or other thoroughfares, except alleys or the external boundaries of the subdivision.

"Board of adjustment" means the board whose members are appointed by city council that is vested with the powers set forth in Chapter 17.88 of this title.

"Brewery" means an ~~establishment that manufactures malt liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, on site, industrial use that brews ales, beers, meads, and/or similar beverages on site. Breweries are classified as a use that primarily manufactures beverages as defined herein and/or small breweries operated in conjunction with~~ Accessory uses may include but are not limited to a bars, restaurants, tasting rooms, or storage defined herein as an accessory use.

"Brewpub" means a restaurant that includes ~~the brewing of beer~~ the manufacturing of malt liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, as an accessory use. ~~The brewing operation processes water, malt, hops, and yeast into beer or ale by mashing, cooking, and fermenting. The area used for brewing, including bottling and kegging, shall not exceed 25 percent of the total floor area of the commercial space, and the facility shall have a capacity no more than that of a microbrewery.~~

"Buffer" means a screen which provides a visual barrier and noise abatement around the perimeter of mobile home parks and travel trailer parks excluding areas of ingress and egress. The screen can consist of any combination of the following: a wood or masonry fence, essentially solid, with a minimum height of six feet; or landscaping or a landscaped berm consisting of trees, plants, flowers, or other natural vegetation. At no point can the screen be less than three feet in height. At the time of construction, sixty (60) percent of the perimeter area where the screen is to be placed must be at least six feet in height.

"Building" means any structure supported by columns and/or walls or other structures designed to enclose space.

"Building height" means the vertical distance as measured from the average finished grade to the point lying one-half the distance between the lowest and highest point on the roof of the building.

"Building official" means the city official(s) appointed or retained by the city to administer or enforce the building codes adopted by the city and other such codes and other regulations as the city may so designate.

"Café," ~~See "Restaurant," means an informal restaurant primarily offering coffee, tea, and other beverages, where light refreshments and limited menu meals may also be sold.~~

"Campground" means an area to be used for transient occupancy by camping in tents, camp trailers, travel trailers, motor homes, recreational vehicles, and/or similar movable or temporary sleeping quarters of any kind.

"Canopy" means a permanently roofed shelter wholly or partially covering a sidewalk, driveway, or another similar area, that may be wholly supported by a building or may be wholly or partially supported by columns, poles, or braces extended from the ground.

"Cemetery" means land used or dedicated to the burial of the dead, including crematoriums, mausoleums, necessary sales, and maintenance facilities. Mortuaries shall be included when operated within the boundary of such cemetery.

"Child care center" means a facility, by whatever name known, which is maintained for the whole or part of the day for the care of five (5) or more children eighteen (18) years of age or younger and not related to the owner, operator or manager thereof, whether such facility is operated with or without compensation for such care and with or without stated education purposes. ~~any facility providing less than 24 hour care for over six unrelated children during the daylight hours for compensation.~~

"Churches, places of worship or assembly " means any building which people regularly use to attend, participate in, or hold religious services, meetings, and other activities. This definition shall include buildings in which the religious services of any denomination are held. Accessory uses commonly include, but are not limited to, summer camps.

"City" or "the city" means the city of Leadville, Colorado.

"Collector street" means a street of limited continuity serving or intended to serve as a feeder of local traffic into one or more major thoroughfares.

"Commercial cutting and storage of firewood" means the falling, chopping, cutting, splitting, or otherwise preparing timber or logs for commercial sales and/or storage of these products on the premises.

"Commercial greenhouse" means a greenhouse for agricultural production.

"Commercial use" means ~~an~~ activity involving the sale of goods or services carried out for profit.

"Common open space" means a parcel of land, an area of water or a combination of land and water within the site designated for a planned unit development designed and intended primarily for the use or enjoyment of residents, occupants, and owners of the planned unit development.

The "commission" or the "planning commission" means the Leadville planning and zoning commission.

"Community ~~g~~Center" means a building or portion of a building used for nonprofit, cultural, educational, recreational, religious, or social activities which is open to the public, or a designated part of the public, usually owned and operated by a public or nonprofit group or agency. Examples of community centers are learning centers, senior centers, and similar uses.

~~"Commercial cutting and storage of firewood" means the falling, chopping, cutting, splitting, or otherwise preparing timber or logs for commercial sales and/or storage of these products on the premises.~~

"Comprehensive plan" means a master plan or comprehensive plan adopted by the Leadville planning commission and/or the city council and all attachments and/or amendments to that plan.

"Conditional use permit" means a use as defined in Chapter 17.52 and may indefinitely run with the land rather than ceasing upon sale of the business as long as the land use remains the same and there are no violations of the municipal code.

"Construction" means the act of adding an addition or modifications to an existing structure or the erection of a new principal or accessory structure on a lot or parcel.

"Convalescent home". See Nursing Home

"Cottage industry" means a commercial operation conducted within or adjacent to a dwelling unit, in which the dwelling unit is occupied as a residence. In order to qualify for treatment as a cottage industry, the dwelling unit must be continuously occupied as a residence; the absence or cessation of the occupation of the dwelling unit as a residence shall render the cottage industry a commercial operation, subject to all of the requirements of this title.

1. The cottage industry may offer articles for sale or delivery on the premises;

2. The cottage industry use must be contained within or adjacent to and integrated with the dwelling unit, but is not required to be operated entirely within the dwelling unit;

3. Up to three persons, in addition to those persons residing within the dwelling unit may be employed in the operation;

4. All signs must be in compliance with the applicable requirements for the zoning district in which the property is located;

5. No more than three motor vehicles, in addition to those owned and operated by the persons dwelling in the dwelling unit, may be parked or stored at or adjacent to the cottage industry premises for more than three hours continuously.

"Demolition" means any act or process that destroys in part or in whole a designated historic structure or a structure within the National Historic Landmark District. ~~A~~

~~"Density" means the number of dwelling units per acre of land.~~

"Detoxification center". See "Substance Abuse Treatment Facility".

"Development" means any construction or activity which changes the basic character or the use of the land on which the construction or activity occurs.

~~"Distillery" means a facility for the on-site distillation of spirits in quantities not to exceed 75,000 gallons per year. The distillery operation processes the ingredients to make spirits by mashing, cooking, and fermenting. The distillery operation does not include the production of any other alcoholic beverage. A distillery an establishment where spiritous liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, are manufactured. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to a tasting rooms open to the public.~~

~~"Distillery pub" means a restaurant that includes the manufacturing of spiritous liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, as an accessory use.~~

"Distribution facility" means a use where goods are received and/or stored for delivery to the ultimate customer at remote locations.

"District" means a physical or geographic area where a common set of land use regulations and/or development standards apply.

"Dwelling unit" or "dwelling" means a building or structure or portion therein, including a modular structure, designed to be used as the living quarters for one person, family or ~~housekeeping unit~~ household.

"Dwelling, multifamily" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, that was designed to house or houses more than two families, as defined herein.

"Dwelling, single-family detached" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, designed for or occupied by a single-family as defined herein. Except as otherwise indicated, a "manufactured home" is also included within the definition of a "single-family dwelling, detached." However, a "mobile home" is not included within the definition of a single-family dwelling, detached."

"Dwelling, single-family attached" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, designed for occupancy and ownership by one family that is connected by a common wall to another single-family dwelling, such as a townhome.

"Dwelling, two-family" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, designed for occupancy by two families, such as a duplex.

"Educational institution" means public, private, or parochial institution at the primary, elementary, middle, high school, or post-secondary level, or trade or business schools, that provide educational instruction to students. Accessory uses include play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-school day care.

"Electric vehicle (EV) charging station" means a motor vehicle parking lot where EVs can either recharge batteries for free or for a fee. EV charging stations may be allowed as an accessory use to any use where parking is required or provided.

"Electric vehicle (EV) charging station, private" means an EV charging station that is not open to the general public.

"Electric vehicle (EV) charging station, public" means an EV charging station that is accessible without restrictions on which drivers can utilize the station.

"Entertainment facility" means a structure, complex, or facility used for entertainment and amusement activities. Entertainment facilities, either indoor or outdoor, do not include any business defined as a sexually-oriented business by this title or athletic facilities.

"Entertainment facility, indoor" means a structure, complex, or facility for the presentation of exclusively indoor amusement and entertainment, including indoor motion picture theaters, theaters for indoor live performances, studios for arts education, such as dance or painting, bowling alleys, video arcades, and shooting ranges or arcades.

"Entertainment facility, outdoor" means a structure, complex, or facility used for amusement and entertainment that is fully or partially outdoors, including concert facilities, rodeos, racing facilities, golf courses or golf driving ranges, fairgrounds, and amusement parks.

"Exterior architectural appearance" means the architectural character and general composition of the exterior of a structure, including but not limited to, the kind, color, and texture of the building material(s) and the type, design, and character of all windows, visible roof surfaces, doors, lighting fixtures, sign, and related elements.

"FAA" means the Federal Aviation Administration.

"Fabrication". See "Manufacture of materials".

"Family" means one or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and maintaining a common household but not including boarding or rooming houses, lodges, clubs, hotels or motels. Except as otherwise provided herein, "family" shall also include persons that are not related by blood, marriage, adoption, or legal custody occupying a residential dwelling unit and living as a single ~~housekeeping unit~~ household if the occupants are handicapped persons as defined in Title VIII or the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988; or disabled persons as defined by Section

24-34-301, C.R.S.; additional necessary persons employed in the care and supervision of such handicapped or disabled persons.

"Family day care" means the use of a residence for the care of six or fewer children other than the occupant's own children for periods of less than 24 hours per day. Home child care is considered a home occupation. "Family child care home" means a facility for child care operated with or without compensation or educational purposes in a place of residence of a family or person for the purpose of providing less than twenty-four-hour care for children under the age of eighteen years who are not related to the head of such home. "Family child care home" may include infant-toddler child care homes, large child care homes, experienced provider child care homes, and such other types of family child care homes designated under the General Rules for Child Care Facilities, 12 C.C.R. 2509-8, Section 7.701 et seq., as amended. For purposes of this definition, the term "place of residence" means the place or abode where a person actually lives and provides child care.

**Commented [CM6]:** Revised to be consistent with the definition and rules for family child care homes that the city adopted when it passed Ordinance No. 5, Series 2022.

"Farm stand" means a temporary building or structure, not to exceed a gross floor area of 500 square feet, from which agricultural products produced on the premises are sold.

"Fence" means: aAn artificially constructed barrier of any material or combination of materials erected to enclose, screen, or separate areas.

"FCC" means the Federal Communication Commission.

"Formula business" means any restaurant, café, bar and lounge, hotel, rooming or boarding house, any retail business, automotive sales and services, and any personal services that has seven or more other establishments in operation, or with local land use or permit entitlements already approved and effective, located anywhere in the United States. Electric vehicle charging stations shall not be considered formula businesses. In addition to the seven establishments either in operation or with local land use or permit entitlements approved for operation, the business maintains two or more of the following features: A standardized array of merchandise, standardized array of services, a standardized facade, a standardized decor and color scheme, uniform apparel, standardized sign, a trademark, or a service mark.

1. "Standardized array of merchandise" means fifty (50) percent or more of in-stock merchandise from a single distributor bearing uniform markings.
2. "Standardized array of services" means as a common menu or set of services priced and performed in a consistent manner.
3. "Trademark" means a word, phrase, symbol or design, or a combination of words, phrases, symbols or designs that identifies and distinguishes the source of the goods from one party from those of others.
4. "Service mark" means a word, phrase, symbol or design, or a combination of words, phrases, symbols or designs that identifies and distinguishes the source of a service from one party from those of others.
5. "Facade" means the face or front of a building, including awnings, looking onto a street or an open space.
6. "Décor" means the style of interior furnishings, which may include but is not limited to, style of furniture, wall coverings or permanent fixtures.



7. "Color scheme" means a selection of colors used throughout the establishments, such as on the furnishings, permanent fixtures, and wall coverings, or as used on the facade.

8. "Uniform apparel" means standardized items of clothing including but not limited to standardized aprons, pants, shirts, smocks or dresses, hats, and pins (other than name tags), and standardized colors of clothing.

**Commented [CM7]:** Definition for "formula business" added back in from adoption of formula business overlay district ordinance (Ordinance No. 3, Series 2022).

"Frontage, business" means the horizontal, linear dimension of that side of a building occupied by a single business or use which abuts a street, a mall, or other circulation area open to the general public and which has a public entrance to the building; in industrial districts, a building side with an entrance open to employees in a business frontage, where more than one business or use occupies a building, each such use having a public entrance (or, in industrial districts, an employee entrance) for its exclusive use is considered to have its own business frontage, which is the linear frontage of the portion of the building occupied by that business or use and containing the entrance.

"Garage—noncommercial" means a building designed for the shelter, storage or maintenance of motor vehicles owned and operated by the owner of such building ~~which does not change the character of and is in harmony with the neighborhood and~~ where no activity is carried out for profit.

~~"Gas pipeline" means any major pipeline and its appurtenant facilities designed for and capable of transporting gasses, excluding local distribution lines.~~

"Grade" means the mean point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between a structure (whether a building, sign structure, or other) and a point five feet distant from the structure, or the mean point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between the structure and the property lines if it is less than five feet distant from the structure. In case the structure is within five feet of a public sidewalk, alley or other public way, the grade shall be the elevation of the sidewalk, alley or public way.

"Greenhouse" means a building with a roof and sides constructed of glass or other transparent or translucent material and in which the temperature and humidity can be regulated for the cultivation of plants.

"Gross density" means the average number of dwelling units per acre of a development or a proposed development.

"Gross floor area" means the total floor area of a structure as measured along the outside walls at floor level and including all floors but excluding open balconies and porches or enclosed parking areas and related features.

"Group homes" means a residential facility, whether or not licensed by the state, for the purpose of providing twenty-four-hour staff care, shelter, supervision, training and/or rehabilitation to eight or more developmentally disabled persons, mentally ill persons, or disabled persons, or a residential facility, whether or not licensed by the state, for any number of children, or for any number of persons sixty (60) years of age or older; provided, that such group home for elderly persons: (a) shall not be located within seven hundred fifty (750) feet of another such home; and (b) shall comply with any state, county, or municipal health, safety, and fire codes who do not need skilled and intermediate care facilities, plus no more than two live-in staff persons employed in the care and supervision of such elderly persons.

A group home or residential group home shall not include fewer than eight persons occupying a residential dwelling unit and living as a single ~~housekeeping unit~~ household if the occupants are handicapped persons as defined in Title VIII or the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair

Housing Amendments Act of 1988; or disabled persons as defined by Section 24-34-501, C.R.S., and such additional necessary persons employed in the care and supervision of such handicapped or disabled persons.

"Guest unit" means any room, group of rooms, or other portion of a dwelling unit, accessory dwelling unit, hotel, motel, lodge, bed-and-breakfast establishment, time share estate, rooming or boarding house, or similar structure, that does not constitute the entire dwelling unit or other type of structure, is used or intended to be used for living and sleeping, has adequate egress, and is available for lease or rent as a single unit.

"Habitation" means occupancy of any dwelling unit, including dependent mobile homes, for more than twenty-four (24) hours in a seven-day period.

"Harboring of chickens" means activities, definitions, and regulations set forth in Section 6.04.020 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

1. "Adjoining property and adjacent specific to harboring of chickens" includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within twenty (20) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.

"Historic district" means the Leadville National Historic Landmark (NHL) district designated by the National Park Service.

"Home occupation" means any use within a dwelling and carried on by the inhabitants, which use is clearly additional and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which does not change the character thereof, nor generate traffic or parking requirements which significantly or adversely affect the residential character of the neighborhood. A family child care home is not considered a home occupation. A home occupation is an occupation or a profession that:

1. Is customarily carried on in a dwelling unit;
2. Is carried on by a member of the family residing in the dwelling unit with not more than one assistant who is not a resident of the premises;
3. Is clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling unit for residential purposes; occupying not more than twenty-five (25) percent of the total floor area of the dwelling;
4. Conforms to the following additional conditions:
  - a. The occupation or profession shall be carried on wholly within the principal building.
  - b. A sign shall not be lit, not exceed two square feet, and be constructed of wood and nonreflective paint or other such materials as may be allowed by planning officials.
  - c. No offensive noise, vibrations, smoke, dust, odors, heat or glare shall be produced.
  - d. No additions to or alterations of the exterior of the dwelling unit, including outside entrances for the purpose of the home occupation, shall be permitted.
  - e. The conduct of the home occupation and its external effects must not interfere with the peace, quiet, and dignity of the neighborhood and adjoining properties.

"Hospice". See Nursing Home.

"Hospital" means an institution designed for the diagnosis, treatment, and care of human illness or infirmity and providing health services, primarily for inpatients, including as related facilities, laboratories, outpatient departments, training facilities, and staff offices.

~~"Hostel" means an establishment providing transient, overnight accommodations, typically characterized by low cost, shared use of a self-service kitchen, common areas, sleeping rooms, guest units (either private or shared) and bathroom facilities.~~

"Hotel" means a building or portion thereof with ~~sleeping rooms, guest units~~ used or designated for use by or hired for occupancy by persons on a temporary basis and including at least 275 square feet.

"Improvements" means any utility, roadway, survey monument, building, structural or other changes to the land as may be required by or provided for in this title. "Junkyard" means a building, structure, or parcel of land or any combination thereof used for the collection, storage or sale of waste paper, rags, scrap metal, or discarded or abandoned materials and equipment or parts thereof or for the collecting, disassembly, storage or salvaging or demolition of vehicles, machinery or other materials and including the commercial sale of whole items or parts thereof, but not including architectural feature salvage.

"Kennel" means ~~an establishment in which animals are boarded, groomed, bred, or trained for commercial gain. This does not include stables.~~

~~1. Any building, structure, area, or open space devoted wholly or partially to the raising, boarding or harboring of five or more domesticated animals that are over four months of age; or~~

~~2. Any establishment for the boarding, raising or training of animals, domesticated, for which a fee is charged. The such establishment may include incidental grooming or the sale of pet supplies.~~

"Loading area" means a parking space other than a public street or alley for parking commercial vehicles for the purpose of loading or unloading materials or merchandise.

"Local street" means a street serving individual lots within a subdivision.

~~"Long-term rental unit" means any dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or guest unit that is available for lease for a term of thirty (30) consecutive days or more.~~

"Lot" means a portion or parcel of land, including a portion of a platted subdivision, occupied or intended to be occupied by a building or use and its accessories, together with such yards as required under the provisions of this title, that is an integral unit of land held under unified ownership in fee or co-tenancy, or under legal control tantamount to such ownership.

"Lot area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot.

"Lot depth" means the average distance from the front to the rear lot lines of a lot.

"Lot width" means the average distance between the side lot lines of a lot.

"Lumberyard" means an area used for the storage, distribution, and sale of finished or rough-cut lumber and lumber products, but not including the manufacture or fabrication of lumber, lumber products, or firewood.

"Majority" means a majority of the members of the planning commission or city council present for a regular or special meeting to conduct business pursuant to this title, unless otherwise specified in state statute or city ordinance.

"Manufactured home" means a single-family dwelling which: (1) is partially or entirely manufactured in a factory; (2) is installed on an engineered, permanent foundation; (3) has brick, wood, or cosmetically equivalent siding and a pitched roof; (4) is certified pursuant to the National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq., as amended; and (5) is built for the Colorado climate and snow load according to the Department of Housing and Urban Development Standards established under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq.

"Manufacture of materials" means the mechanical or chemical transformation of materials or substances into new products, including the assembling of component parts, the manufacturing of products, and the blending of materials, such as lubricating oils, plastics, or resins.

~~"Marijuana hospitality business" means a facility, which may be mobile, licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Code to permit the consumption of marijuana in accordance with the Colorado Marijuana Code and the city's Code.~~

**Commented [CM8]:** Marijuana terms added or revised to be consistent with state marijuana laws and definitions where appropriate.

~~"Marijuana hospitality and sales business" means a facility, which cannot be mobile, licensed under the Colorado Marijuana Code to permit the consumption of only the retail marijuana or retail marijuana products it has sold pursuant to the provisions of the city's Code.~~

~~"Marijuana research and development facility" means a facility licensed pursuant to and used for the purposes set forth in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. 44-10-507.~~

"Mausoleum". See Cemetery.

"Medical Clinic" means a building or group of buildings in which the primary use is the provision of health care services to patients or clients. Examples include but are not limited to medical and dental laboratories, blood banks, oxygen providers, integrative medicine and holistic or homeopathic therapies, and other miscellaneous types of medical services.

~~"Medical marijuana center" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.44.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Medical marijuana establishment" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.44.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Medical marijuana optional premises cultivation operation" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.44.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Medical marijuana store" means a facility, licensed pursuant to C.R.S. 44-10-501, where medical marijuana is sold to registered patients or primary caregivers as defined in section 14 of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution. This definition does not include primary caregivers.~~

~~"Medical marijuana products manufacturer" means a facility licensed pursuant to and described in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. 44-10-503.~~

"Medical marijuana cultivation facility" means a facility licensed pursuant to and used for the purposes set forth in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. 44-10-502.

"Medical marijuana testing facility" means a facility licensed pursuant to and used for the purposes set forth in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. 44-10-504.

"Medical marijuana transporter premises" means the premises permitted under C.R.S. 44-10-505 to be maintained and operated by a person licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Code to operate a business as described in C.R.S. 44-10-505.

"Membership clubs and lodges" means permanent, headquarters-type, and meeting facilities for organizations operating on a membership basis for the promotion of the interests of the members, including facilities for: business associations; civic, social, and fraternal organizations; country clubs (golf courses separately defined); labor unions and similar organizations; political organizations; professional membership organizations; other membership organizations.

~~"Microbrewery" means a facility for the production and packaging of malt beverages of low alcoholic content for distribution, retail, or wholesale, on or off premise, with a capacity of not more than 15,000 barrels per year. The development may include other uses such as a standard restaurant, bar or live entertainment as otherwise permitted in the zoning district~~

"Mobile home, dependent" means any vehicular camping unit, travel trailer unit or similar mobile vehicular unit, including buses, equipped with or without a working flush toilet and working bathtub or shower.

"Mobile home, independent" means a structure that: (1) is transportable in one or more sections; (2) is less than twenty-four (24) feet in width or thirty-six (36) feet in length; (3) is built on a permanent chassis; (4) is designed to be used as a place of living for a single-family, with or without a permanent foundation, when connected to the required utilities; and (5) includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical systems contained therein. "Manufactured home" is not included within the definition of "mobile home." However, structures commonly called "single-wide mobile homes" (whether certified pursuant to the National Mobile home Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq., as amended, or not) and any other form of transportable housing which does not meet the definition of a "manufactured home" under this title is included within the definition of "mobile home."

"Mobile home park" means a site or facility containing or proposed to contain two or more spaces for mobile homes.

"Mobile home space" means a plot of ground or a lot within a mobile home park designed to be occupied by one independent mobile home.

"Modular structure" means a structure consisting of prefabricated modules that are primarily built off-site in a factory and are assembled on-site. Modular structures may be any type of residential structure or commercial structure. Modular structures may comprise an entire structure or a portion of a structure. A modular structure is not a manufactured home or a mobile home.

**Commented [CM9]:** Added to expressly allow for this type of structure within the city.

"Motel". See "Hotel".

“Motor vehicle parking lot” means an open space or an enclosed structure, exclusive of drives, turning areas or loading spaces, devoted to the parking of one or more motor vehicles.

“Museum” means an establishment operated as a repository for a collection of nature, scientific, literary curiosities, or objects of interest or works of art, not including the regular sale or distribution of the objects collected. Museums may include incidental retail and food/beverage sales.

“Nonconforming” means any preexisting building, structure or use conflicting with one or more provisions of this title applicable to the zoning district in which the building, structure or use is located.

“Nursery” means any land used to raise trees, shrubs, flowers, and other plants for sale or for transplanting.

“Nursing Home” means any facility which provides meals, lodging, and nursing care for compensation.

“Nudity” or “state of nudity” means:

a. The appearance of human bare buttocks, anus, male genitals, female genitals, or the areola or nipple of the female human breast; or

b. A state of dress that fails opaquely and fully to cover the human buttocks, anus, male or female genitals, pubic region, or areola or nipple of the female breast.

“Open space” means the land area within a subdivision, proposed subdivision, or other development designated, reserved, and dedicated to outdoor uses, including but not limited to recreation, flood control, scenic uses, pathways, and related uses but excluding roadways.

“Orchard” means the establishment, care, and harvesting of more than 25 fruit-bearing trees for the purpose of selling the fruit to others.

“Outdoor ~~g~~Guiding” means a use where professional outdoor guides lead groups on outdoor activities such as hunting, fishing, skiing, camping, photography, or other outdoor recreational activities. This may include accessory retail or rental of equipment for the patrons participating in the outings. Outdoor guiding does not include outdoor recreational equipment rentals.

“Outdoor recreation equipment rental” means any use where motorized recreation equipment such as snowmobiles, off-highway vehicles, or utility vehicles are stored or displayed outdoors for rental purposes. This use may include office space and repair and maintenance of rental equipment.”

“Outdoor storage” means the storage of materials, refuse, junk and/or other similar items outside of a building.

“Outdoor storage of snow”:- means the storage of snow outside a building.

“Outdoor storage screened” means all outdoor storage required to be screened from view from adjacent streets or the first floor of adjacent buildings.

“Outdoor storage, unscreened” means all outdoor storage not required to be screened from view from adjacent streets or the first floor of adjacent buildings.

“Outfitting”. See Outdoor guiding.

"Owner" means any person with fee title to any parcel of land within the city who desires to permit the development of or to construct, install or erect a telecommunications facility upon such owner's property.

"Parapet wall" means that part of a wall or railing which is entirely above the roof.

“Park” means an area or facility to be used for recreation, exercise, sports, education, rehabilitation, or similar activities, or an area intended to enhance the enjoyment of natural features or natural beauty.

"Parking area. See “Motor vehicle parking lot”.

"Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, company or other public or corporate body including the federal government and any political subdivision, agency, instrumentality or corporation of the state.

“Personal services” means establishments primarily engaged in providing services involving the care of a person or his/her personal goods, including but not limited to, dry cleaning, cosmetics, beauty and barbershops, funeral services, and domestic services.

"Pet store" means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of household pets.

"Planned unit development" means an area of land, controlled by one or more landowners, to be developed or developed under unified control or a unified plan of development for a number of dwelling units, commercial, educational, recreational or industrial uses, or any combination of the foregoing, the plan for which does not necessarily correspond in lot size, bulk, or type of use, density, lot coverage, open space or other restriction to the provisions contained elsewhere in this chapter.

"Planning commission" means the Leadville planning and zoning commission.

"Planning official" means the city officials(s) appointed or retained by the city to administer or enforce this title and associated regulations and other such codes and regulations as the city may so designate.

“Playground”. See Park.

“Playing field”. See Athletic facility.

“Processing”. See Manufacture of materials.

“Professional and business offices” means professional or government offices including accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services; advertising agencies; architectural, engineering, planning, and surveying services; attorneys; counseling services; court reporting services; data processing and computer services; detective agencies and similar services; educational, scientific, and research organizations; employment, stenographic, secretarial, and word processing services; government offices including agency and administrative office facilities; management, public relations, and consulting services; photography and commercial art studios; writers and artists offices outside the home. This does not include medical offices or offices that are incidental and accessory to another business or sales activity that is the principal use.

"Public entrance" means an entrance to a building or premises that is customarily used or intended for use by the general public and excludes fire exits, special employee entrances, and loading dock entrances not generally used by the public.

"Public utility facility" means major buildings, structures, and facilities including but not limited to generating and switching stations, electrical substations, water or sewer pumping stations, and telephone exchanges, related to the furnishing (storage and transportation) of utility services, including but not limited to electric, gas, telephone, cable, water, sewer, and public transit, to the public. Major public utility facilities located in rights-of-way or easements are not uses required to be zoned.

~~"Public and government facility, service, or building" means: the use of a property for a public purpose by any department or branch of government. Examples include but are not limited to libraries, post offices, law enforcement, and emergency services.~~

"Recycling center" means a totally enclosed structure in which used materials are collected prior to shipment to others who will use those materials to manufacture new products.

"Referral agency" means an agency, organization, unit of government, political subdivision, group or organization to whom submittal materials and related text maps and graphic items are submitted for review, comment and/or recommendations to be returned to the Leadville planning commission or the Leadville city council.

"Rental shop" means an establishment that conducts business with customers under conditions and terms agreed upon in a rental agreement or contract, which may be implied, explicit, or written.

"Restaurant" means an establishment where food and drink are prepared, table service is provided, and consumption takes place primarily within the principal structure, including but not limited to cafés.

"Restaurant with drive up windows" means a restaurant accommodating the patron's automobile from which the occupants may receive a service or in which products purchased from the restaurant may be received.

~~"Retail marijuana cultivation facility" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Retail marijuana establishment" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Retail marijuana products manufacturing facility" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Retail marijuana store" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

~~"Retail marijuana testing facility" has the same definition as set forth in Section 5.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code.~~

"Retail marijuana cultivation facility" has the same meaning as "marijuana cultivation facility" as defined in section 16(2)(h) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.



“Retail marijuana products manufacturer” has the same meaning as “marijuana product manufacturing facility” as defined in section 16(2)(j) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.

“Retail marijuana store” has the same meaning as defined in section 16(2)(n) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.

“Retail marijuana testing facility” means “marijuana testing facility” as defined in section 16(2)(l) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution and that is licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Code.

“Retail marijuana transporter premises” means the premises permitted under C.R.S. 44-10-605 to be maintained and operated by a person licensed by the Colorado Marijuana Code to operate a business as described in C.R.S. 44-10-605.

“Retail sales, general” means a facility or area for the retail sale of general merchandise or food to the general public for direct use and not for wholesale. This use includes but is not limited to sale of general merchandise, clothing and other apparel, flowers and household plants, dry goods, convenience and specialty foods, hardware, ~~liquor~~ alcohol beverages, and similar consumer goods.

~~“Retail store, grocery” means a retail establishment that primarily sells food for off site consumption, but also may sell other convenience and household goods for off site consumption. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to sales of food or beverages for on site consumption, grocery delivery services, florists, and pharmacy services.~~

“Retirement home”. See Senior living facility.

~~“Riding Stables” means a structure or land use in or on which equines are kept for sale or hire to the public. Breeding, boarding, or training of equines may also be conducted.~~

“Roadway” means that portion of a street right-of-way designated for vehicular traffic.

“Roof line” means the highest portion on any building where an exterior wall encloses usable floor space (including roof areas for housing mechanical equipment) or the highest point on any parapet wall if the parapet wall extends around the entire perimeter of the building.

“Rooming or boarding house” means a building or portion thereof with ~~sleeping rooms~~ guest units designed to be used, let or hired for occupancy by persons ~~on a temporary basis~~ long-term rental units or on a permanent basis and containing between one and five such guest ~~rooms~~ units.

**Commented [CM10]:** Revised to be consistent with the city's definition of "rooming and boarding house" adopted in Ordinance No. 6, Series 2020.

“Sawmill” means an operation or facility which has, as its predominant purpose, the sawing or planning of logs or trees into rough slabs.

“Scenic railways” means a railway that, in provides opportunities for the enjoyment of natural and/or man-made scenic resources and access or direct views to areas or scenes of exceptional beauty or historic or cultural interest. The aesthetic values of scenic routes often are protected and enhanced by regulations governing the development of property or the placement of outdoor advertising.

“School” means a facility that provides a curriculum of academic instruction, including kindergartens, elementary schools, middle schools, junior high schools, high schools, or the campus of a college or university.

“Self-storage facility” means a building or group of buildings that are rented and designed, through individual compartments or controlled stalls, for self-service storage purposes.

“Senior living facility” means a multifamily dwelling or complex containing dwelling units designed for and principally occupied by senior citizens. Such facilities commonly include a congregate meals program in a common dining area but exclude institutional care facilities such as nursing homes as elsewhere defined.

“Service Station” means an establishment primarily engaged in the repair or maintenance of motor vehicles, trailers, and similar large mechanical equipment, including paint, body and fender, and major engine and engine part overhaul, provided it is conducted within a completely enclosed building.

“Service Station, Gasoline” means any building, structure, or area of land used for the retail sale of automobile fuels, oils, and accessories, where repair service, if any, is incidental. May include the sale of propane or kerosene as accessory uses.

“Setback” means the distance required by the provisions of this title between the face of a building and the lot line opposite that building face, measured perpendicular to the building. In computing the minimum setback requirement, the following architectural features shall not be considered: open fire escapes projecting up to a distance of four feet from the face of a building, walls, rails or fences. Setback distances shall be measured from the edge of the eaves of the structure. Where angled buildings or lots exist or streets are curved, setbacks shall be measured from the shortest distance to the lot line.

“Sexually oriented business” means any adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty store, adult video store, adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, nude modeling studio, or sexual encounter center:

a. “Adult arcade” means any commercial establishment to which the public is permitted or invited where, for any form of consideration, one or more still or motion picture projectors, or similar machines, or other image producing machines, for viewing by five or fewer persons per machine at any one time, are used to regularly show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic, digital, or electronic reproductions depicting specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas.

b. “Adult bookstore, adult novelty store,” or “adult video” store means a commercial establishment that devotes a significant or substantial portion of its business to any one or more of the following:

i. The sale, rental or viewing (for any form of consideration) of books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or other visual representations which are characterized by the depiction or description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas; or

ii. The sale or rental of instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use or marketed primarily for engaging in specified sexual activities; or

iii. A significant or substantial portion of its business is shown by characteristics including, but not limited to, some or all of the following:

1. A significant or substantial portion of its stock in trade consists of the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above; or

2. A significant or substantial portion of its revenues is derived from the rental or sale of items listed in subsections a. and/or (b) above; or

3. A significant or substantial portion of its floor space, shelf space or storage space is devoted to the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above; or

4. A significant or substantial portion of its advertising is devoted to the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above.

c. "Adult cabaret" means a nightclub, bar, restaurant, concert hall, auditorium, or other commercial establishment which regularly features live performances that are characterized by the exhibition of specified sexual activities or the exposure of specified anatomical areas.

d. "Adult motel" means a motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which offers public accommodations, for any form of consideration, and provides patrons with closed circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical type of material by means of a sign visible from the public right-of-way, or by means of any off premises advertising including, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television, and offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time less than five hours.

e. "Adult motion picture theater" means any commercial establishment to which the public is permitted or invited, where for any form of consideration, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or similar photographic reproductions are shown for more than one hundred (100) days annually that have an emphasis on depicting or describing specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas. Any establishment meeting the definition of an adult arcade is not an adult motion picture theater.

f. "Nude modeling studio" means any place where a person who appears in a state of nudity or displays specified anatomical areas is provided for money or any form of consideration to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed, or similarly depicted by other persons. The provisions of this definition shall not apply to:

1. A college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or

2. A private college or university that maintains and operates educational programs in which credits are transferable to a college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or

3. A business located in a structure that has no sign visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that indicates a nude person is available for viewing.

g. "Sexual encounter center" means a business or commercial enterprise that regularly offers, for any form of consideration, activities between male and female persons and/or persons of the same sex when one or more of the persons are in a state of nudity or semi nudity. This definition does not apply to any actions in compliance with any treatment or examination of another person for a bona fide medical purpose when such treatment or examination is conducted in a manner substantially consistent with reasonable medical practices, or to bona fide private parties not open to the general public.

h. "Specified anatomical areas" means:

1. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus, or female breasts below a point immediately above the areola; or

2. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered.
  - i. "Specified sexual activities" means:
    1. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal, or tumescence;
    2. Masturbation, actual or simulated;
    3. Sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or simulated, including intercourse, oral copulation, or sodomy; and
    4. Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, anus, buttocks, or female breasts.

"Short-Term Rental" or "short-term rental unit" shall have the same meaning as defined in Section 5.12.030.

~~"Solar energy device" means a facility, equipment or device, or structural design feature of a structure that provides for the collection of sunlight and which comprises part of a system for the conversion of the sun's radiant energy into thermal, chemical, mechanical or electrical energy.~~

"Solar energy ~~facility~~system" means an energy system, including but not limited to a ground-mounted solar energy system, which converts solar energy to usable thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy to meet all or a significant part of a structure's energy requirements Solar energy systems may be comprised of devices such as a solar energy conversion system with a nameplate generating capacity of 10 kW or greater including solar panels, arrays, and related equipment, pipes, batteries, and wiring that converts sunlight to heat or electricity for use either on site or off site for delivery to a power grid.

"Special event" means an organized event or a group activity including, but not limited to a performance, live music, broadcast music, commercial entertainment, assembly, contest, exhibit, ceremony, athletic competition, reading, or other similar gatherings where anything of value is exchanged in return for attendance or entry into the event. Special events do not include wedding events.

"Stable" means an establishment designed for feeding, housing, and exercising of horses not owned by the owner of the premises and for which the owner of the premises may receive compensation.

"Street" means a way for vehicular traffic, whether designated as or called a street, highway, road, avenue, parkway or however else named or designated.

"Structural alteration" means any addition to or subtraction of parts of a building or structure.

"Structure" means anything constructed or erected upon the ground except utility poles and like protrusions, flag poles or walls and fences up to six feet in height.

"Subdivision" means a tract of land which is divided into two or more lots, tracts, parcels, sites, separate interests (including leasehold interests), interests in common or other division for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of transfer of ownership or for building or other development or for street use by reference to such subdivision or recorded plat thereof; or a tract of land, including land to be used for condominiums, apartments or any other multiple-dwelling units, or for time-sharing dwelling units.

"Substance ~~a~~Abuse ~~T~~Treatment ~~F~~Facility" means a facility for the purposes of temporary or long-term inpatient treatment of victims of alcohol or drug use or addiction.

"Telecommunication facility" means a facility that transmits and/or receives electromagnetic signals. It includes antennas, cables, wires, conduit, microwave dishes, and other types of equipment for the transmission or receipt of such signals, telecommunication towers or similar structures supporting said equipment, equipment buildings, parking area, and other accessory development. A telecommunication facility operates at less than one thousand (1,000) watts of effective radiated power. A telecommunication facility does not include:

1. Residential television antennas;
2. Wireless cable satellite dish antennas;
3. Amateur radio antennas; or
4. Dish antennas less than one meter in diameter or measured diagonally.

"Telecommunication facility, accessory equipment" means equipment, including buildings and cabinets, used to protect and enable the operation of radio switching equipment, backup power, and other devices, but not including antennas, that are necessary for the operation of a telecommunication facility.

"Telecommunication facility, building roof-mounted" means a telecommunication facility that is supported and/or projects above the roof of a legally existing building or transmission structure.

"Telecommunication facility, building wall, or facade-mounted" means a telecommunication facility that is supported and/or mounted on the wall of a legally existing building or transmission structure and does not project above the roof line. Facilities mounted on the side of a penthouse, mechanical screening, or other appurtenance, provided it would not project above the side of the appurtenance, and facilities mounted on towers for high voltage electrical transmission shall also be considered wall-mounted telecommunication facilities.

"Telecommunication facility, freestanding" means a telecommunication facility that consists of a stand-alone support structure or tower, antennas, and accessory equipment.

"Temporary ~~u~~Use" means a use established for a limited duration of time with the intent to discontinue such use upon the expiration of the time period. Such use ~~a use that~~ may or may not be permitted under the regulations for a given zoning district but may be allowed on a nonpermanent and temporary basis following the procedures in Chapter 17.64, Temporary Buildings and Uses.

"Time share estate" means any interest in real property, including condominiums, owned or leased by five or more persons or other devices including ownership in a corporation, cooperative, partnership, or joint venture whereby the owners or lessees have formally or informally agreed that such owners or lessees shall have the preferred or exclusive use during specified periods of time. Any conveyance of a fractional fee estate or undivided interest by separate deed is within this definition and is hereby regulated within this title. A time share estate shall be deemed to be created upon the marketing, promotion, selling, or offering for sale a specified period or periods of time of occupancy in one or more residential units.

~~The issuance of a conditional use permit by city council is required prior to the creation of any time share estate in Leadville.~~

**Commented [CM11]:** Removed because it conflicts with table of uses, which shows time shares approved via administrative permit.

"Tower" means any structure that is designed and considered primarily for the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including self-supporting lattice towers, guy towers, or monopole towers. The term includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers, common-carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, alternative tower structures, and the like.

"Tower, lattice" means a tower or structure designed and constructed primarily to support antenna or antennae and comprised of interconnected poles, pipes, bars, beams, strips, wires, or cross-members. A lattice tower shall include any type or form of a tower that incorporates guy or supporting wires. A lattice tower is not a monopole tower.

"Tower, monopole" means a structure designed and constructed to support antennae or antennae for the purpose of providing telecommunications services and which consists solely of a stand-alone, ground-mounted support pole, pipe, or other solid structure. A monopole tower shall not include any tower supported or attached to the guy or support wires. A monopole tower is not a lattice tower.

"Tract" means a parcel of land or a contiguous combination thereof.

"Transmission line" means any electric transmission line and its related facilities which emanate from a power plant or from a substation and terminate at a substation and which are designed for or are capable of the transmission of electricity at sixty-nine (69) kilovolts (KV) or more.

"Travel trailer park" means a site or facility containing or proposed to contain two or more travel trailer unit spaces.

"Travel trailer space" means a plot of ground or a lot within a travel trailer park or portion of a mobile home park designed to be occupied by one travel trailer unit or one camping unit.

"Travel trailer unit" means any pickup camper, a pickup with shell, motorhome, travel trailer, tent trailer, or similar mobile unit with sleeping quarters and not exceeding eight feet in body width at its widest point or forty (40) feet in body length and designed and used principally for recreational purposes or for the support of recreational or commercial uses.

"Use" means the purpose or function for which any land, structure or building is designed, constructed, maintained, or occupied.

"Use, accessory". See Accessory Use, Building, or Structure.

"Use by right" means permitted uses designated as use by right are subject to all other applicable regulations of this code and state and federal law.

"Use, principal" means the main use to which the premises is devoted and the principal purpose for which the premises exists.

"Use variance" means a deviation from Chapter 17.48 listing of prohibited uses by zoning district whereby an otherwise prohibited use in a given zoning district may be treated as a conditional use, and processed accordingly, for purposes of historic conservation. See also "variance" and section 17.44.080 and Chapters 17.48 and 17.52.

"Vacation ~~H~~odge". See Hotel.

"Vacation ~~R~~ental". See Short-~~T~~erm ~~R~~ental.

"Variance" means any deviation, except a use variance, from the requirements of this title as allowed for by the board of adjustment. See also "use variance."

~~"Veterinary clinic" means an establishment that provides medical treatment and care to animals, and which may include temporary or overnight boarding of animals that are recuperating from treatment. A veterinarian clinic or office shall not include a kennel. "Veterinary hospital" means an establishment that provides medical treatment and care to animals and which may include temporary or overnight boarding of animals that are recuperating from treatment. Common accessory uses may include but are not limited to kennels, parking, and storage.~~

-"Wholesale" means the sale of goods and merchandise for resale instead of for direct consumption.

"Winery" means an establishment where vinous liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, are manufactured. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to bars, restaurants, tasting rooms, or storage.

"Yard" means the space on the same lot as a building or structure that is usually unoccupied and open to the sky except for landscaping improvements.

**17.48 – BY-RIGHT, CONDITIONAL, AND PROHIBITED USES**

**17.48.010 – Designated**

The table on the following pages below indicates which principal use(s) are allowed by right, which require an administrative permit, and which uses are conditional uses (that is, uses which the city may allow following detailed review). Any use not included in the table shall reviewed for compliance with 17.48.20. A blank square in the table below indicates that a use is prohibited and/or identified as a by-right, administrative, or conditional use is prohibited.

TABLE 1  
 By-Right, Conditional and Prohibited Uses by Zoning District

R = A use allowed by Right  
 A = A use requiring an Administrative Permit as defined in Chapter 17.50  
 C = A use requiring a Conditional Permit as defined in Chapter 17.52

| Use Category                                 | Use Type                                                                                          | Zoning Districts |          |          |          |          |          |
|----------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|
|                                              |                                                                                                   | R-1              | R-2      | TR       | RC       | C        | TC       |
| <b>Residential Uses</b>                      |                                                                                                   |                  |          |          |          |          |          |
| Household Living                             | Dwellings above or below commercial use                                                           |                  | A        | A        | R        | A        | R        |
|                                              | Multifamily dwelling (3-4 units)                                                                  | C                | R        | R        |          | R        | R        |
|                                              | Multifamily dwelling (5+ units)                                                                   |                  | C        | C        | C        | C        | C        |
|                                              | Single-family dwelling (attached and detached)                                                    | R                | R        | R        |          | C        | R        |
|                                              | Two-family dwelling                                                                               | R                | R        | R        |          | C        | R        |
|                                              | <u>Mobile home park</u>                                                                           |                  |          | <u>C</u> |          |          |          |
| Group Living                                 | Group <del>h</del> Homes                                                                          |                  | C        | C        |          |          | C        |
|                                              | Retirement <del>h</del> Home, <del>s</del> Senior living <del>facility</del> center               |                  | R        | C        |          | C        | C        |
| <u>Lodging Facilities</u>                    | <u>Short-term Rentals (Refer to ChSee. 5.12)</u>                                                  | <u>A</u>         | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u> |
| <b>Public, Institutional, and Civic uses</b> |                                                                                                   |                  |          |          |          |          |          |
| Community and Cultural Facilities            | Cemeteries or mausoleums                                                                          |                  |          |          |          | C        |          |
|                                              | Churches, place of worship or assembly, <del>or religious institutes including church camps</del> | C                | C        | C        | C        | C        | C        |
|                                              | Community Center                                                                                  | A                | A        | A        | R        | R        | R        |
|                                              | Membership clubs and lodges                                                                       |                  | C        | C        | R        | R        | R        |
|                                              | Museums                                                                                           | C                | C        | C        | R        | R        | R        |



| Use Category                    | Use Type                                                                                                | Zoning Districts |          |              |              |              |              |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|----------|--------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|
|                                 |                                                                                                         | R-1              | R-2      | TR           | RC           | C            | TC           |
| Child Care Facilities           | Childcare center                                                                                        | C                | C        | C            | C            | C            | C            |
| Educational Facilities          | School and/or educational institutions                                                                  | C                | C        | C            | C            | C            | C            |
| Parks and Open Space            | Parks, Playgrounds, athletic facilities                                                                 | R                | R        | R            | C            | R            | R            |
| Public Utilities and Facilities | <del>PEssential public and government-utility-uses, facilities, services or buildings.</del>            | C                | C        | C            | C            | C            | C            |
|                                 | <u>Public and government, facilities, services or buildings.</u>                                        | <u>C</u>         | <u>C</u> | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     |
|                                 | Recycle Center                                                                                          |                  |          |              |              | C            | C            |
|                                 | Solar energy facility                                                                                   |                  |          | A            |              | A            | A            |
|                                 | Telecommunication facility                                                                              | C                | C        | C            | C            | C            | C            |
| Healthcare Facilities           | Hospitals, medical clinics, <del>or</del> nursing homes, <u>or substance abuse treatment facilities</u> |                  | C        | C            | C            | R            | C            |
| <u>Animal Services</u>          | <u>Animal shelter</u>                                                                                   | <u>C</u>         | <u>C</u> | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     |
| <b>Commercial Uses</b>          |                                                                                                         |                  |          |              |              |              |              |
| Agricultural Uses               | Agricultural production                                                                                 |                  |          |              |              | C            | C            |
|                                 | Agricultural production related to the commercial production of animals                                 |                  |          |              |              | C            |              |
|                                 | Commercial cutting and storage of firewood                                                              |                  |          |              |              | C            |              |
|                                 | Commercial greenhouses <500sf                                                                           | A                | A        | A            | C            | A            | A            |
|                                 | Commercial greenhouses >500sf                                                                           |                  | C        | C            |              | C            | C            |
|                                 | Lumber yard or sawmill                                                                                  |                  |          |              |              | C            |              |
|                                 | Orchards, nurseries, and/or related uses for commercial purposes                                        |                  |          | C            |              | C            | C            |
|                                 | <del>Roadside outlets for the sale of agricultural products</del> <u>Farm stand</u>                     |                  |          | C            | C            | C            | C            |
| Food and Beverage               | Bars and lounges, Brew pub, <u>Distillery pub</u>                                                       |                  |          | C            | R            | R            | C            |
|                                 | <del>Microbrewery, Distillery</del>                                                                     |                  |          | <del>C</del> | <del>R</del> | <del>R</del> | <del>C</del> |
|                                 | -Restaurants                                                                                            |                  |          | C            | R            | R            | R            |
|                                 | <u>Restaurant with drive up windows</u>                                                                 |                  |          |              |              | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     |
| Lodging Facilities              | Bed and Breakfast establishments                                                                        | C                | C        | R            | C            | C            | R            |
|                                 | <u>Hotels and, motels, or vacation lodges</u> <del>hostels</del>                                        |                  |          | C            | R            | R            | C            |
|                                 | Rooming and boarding house or retirement home                                                           |                  | C        | C            | C            | C            | R            |

| Use Category                 | Use Type                                                                                                             | Zoning Districts |     |    |    |              |              |
|------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|--------------|--------------|
|                              |                                                                                                                      | R-1              | R-2 | TR | RC | C            | TC           |
|                              | Time share estate                                                                                                    | A                | A   | A  | A  | A            | A            |
| Marijuana Industries         | <del>Medical marijuana center</del> <u>Medical and/or retail marijuana store</u>                                     |                  |     |    |    | C            | C            |
|                              | <del>Medical marijuana infused product manufacturer</del> <u>Marijuana hospitality business</u>                      |                  |     |    |    | C            | C            |
|                              | <del>Medical marijuana optional premises cultivation operation</del> <u>Marijuana hospitality and sales business</u> |                  |     |    |    | C            | <u>C</u>     |
|                              | <del>Retail marijuana cultivation facility</del>                                                                     |                  |     |    |    | <del>C</del> |              |
|                              | <del>Retail marijuana products manufacturing facility</del>                                                          |                  |     |    |    | <del>C</del> | <del>C</del> |
|                              | <del>Retail marijuana store</del>                                                                                    |                  |     |    |    | <del>C</del> | <del>C</del> |
|                              | <del>Retail marijuana testing facility</del>                                                                         |                  |     |    |    | <del>C</del> | <del>C</del> |
|                              | <del>Retail/medical marijuana combined facility</del>                                                                |                  |     |    |    | <del>C</del> | <del>C</del> |
| Offices                      | Professional and business offices                                                                                    |                  | C   | R  | R  | R            | R            |
| Parking Facilities           | Motor vehicle parking lots                                                                                           |                  | C   | C  | C  | R            | C            |
| Personal Services            | Personal services                                                                                                    |                  | C   | C  | R  | R            | R            |
| Recreation and Entertainment | <del>Art and Entertainment facility, indoor</del>                                                                    |                  |     | C  | C  | C            | C            |
|                              | <del>Art and Entertainment facility, outdoor</del>                                                                   | C                | C   | C  | C  | C            | C            |
|                              | Art Gallery                                                                                                          |                  |     | R  | R  | R            | R            |
|                              | Outdoor Guiding                                                                                                      |                  |     | R  | R  | R            | R            |
|                              | Outdoor recreation equipment rental, with outdoor storage                                                            |                  |     | C  | C  | R            | C            |
|                              | Outdoor recreation equipment rental, without outdoor storage                                                         |                  |     | R  | R  | R            | R            |
|                              | <del>Riding Stables (not permitted per Sec. 6.04.030)</del>                                                          |                  |     |    |    | C            |              |
|                              | Scenic railways                                                                                                      | C                | C   | C  | C  | C            | C            |
|                              | <del>Campgrounds and Travel trailer park (See Ch. 17.56)</del>                                                       |                  |     |    |    | C            | C            |
| Retail                       | General retail sales >1500sf                                                                                         |                  | C   | C  | R  | R            | C            |
|                              | General retail sales <1500sf                                                                                         |                  | C   | C  | R  | R            | R            |
|                              | <u>Architectural feature salvage</u>                                                                                 |                  |     |    |    | <u>C</u>     | <u>C</u>     |
|                              | Rental Shop                                                                                                          |                  | C   | C  | R  | R            | R            |
|                              | Sexually oriented business                                                                                           |                  |     |    |    | C            |              |
| Vehicles and Equipment       | Automotive, recreational vehicles, or marine sales and service, excluding service stations                           |                  |     |    | C  | R            | C            |

| Use Category                           | Use Type                                                                                                                                                                                              | Zoning Districts |     |          |    |          |          |
|----------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----------|----|----------|----------|
|                                        |                                                                                                                                                                                                       | R-1              | R-2 | TR       | RC | C        | TC       |
|                                        | EV Charging Station, Public or Private                                                                                                                                                                |                  |     | C        | C  | R        | R        |
|                                        | Motor vehicle parking lot                                                                                                                                                                             |                  | C   | C        | C  | R        | C        |
|                                        | Service Station                                                                                                                                                                                       |                  |     |          |    | C        | C        |
|                                        | Service station, gasoline                                                                                                                                                                             |                  |     |          |    | R        |          |
| <del>Veterinary Animal Services</del>  | <del>Kennels, and veterinary clinics</del> <u>hospitals and pet stores</u>                                                                                                                            |                  |     |          |    | C        | C        |
| <b>Industrial Uses</b>                 |                                                                                                                                                                                                       |                  |     |          |    |          |          |
| Manufacturing and Production           | <u>Brewery, Distillery, Winery</u>                                                                                                                                                                    |                  |     |          |    | C        |          |
|                                        | Cottage Industry                                                                                                                                                                                      | A                | A   | A        | A  | R        | R        |
|                                        | Manufacture of materials not otherwise listed and <b>which will cause</b> noise, heat, dust, fumes or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood.                                   |                  |     | C        |    | C        | C        |
|                                        | Manufacture of materials not otherwise listed and <b>which will not cause</b> noise, heat, dust, fumes, excessive traffic or parking or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood. |                  |     | A        | A  | R        | R        |
| <u>Industrial Service and Research</u> | <u>Repair or servicing of agricultural, industrial, business, or consumer machinery, equipment, products, or by-products</u>                                                                          |                  |     | <u>C</u> |    | <u>C</u> | <u>C</u> |
| Warehouse and Distribution             | Non-commercial garages                                                                                                                                                                                | C                | C   | C        | C  | C        | C        |
|                                        | Outdoor storage of snow                                                                                                                                                                               | R                | R   | R        | A  | R        | R        |
|                                        | Screened or un-screened outdoor storage                                                                                                                                                               |                  |     | A        |    | C        | A        |
|                                        | Self-storage facilities                                                                                                                                                                               |                  |     |          |    | R        | C        |
|                                        | Wholesale <del>sales</del> and/or distribution <u>facility</u> with outdoor storage                                                                                                                   |                  |     | C        |    | R        | C        |
|                                        | Wholesale sales and/or distribution <u>facility</u> without outdoor storage                                                                                                                           |                  | C   | C        | R  | R        | C        |
| <u>Marijuana Industries</u>            | <u>Medical and/or retail marijuana cultivation facility</u>                                                                                                                                           |                  |     |          |    | <u>C</u> |          |
|                                        | <u>Medical and/or retail marijuana products manufacturer</u>                                                                                                                                          |                  |     |          |    | <u>C</u> |          |
|                                        | <u>Medical and/or retail marijuana testing facility</u>                                                                                                                                               |                  |     |          |    | <u>C</u> |          |
|                                        | <u>Marijuana research and development facility</u>                                                                                                                                                    |                  |     |          |    | <u>C</u> |          |

| Use Category                              | Use Type                                                    | Zoning Districts |           |          |           |          |          |
|-------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----------|----------|-----------|----------|----------|
|                                           |                                                             | R-1              | R-2       | TR       | RC        | C        | TC       |
|                                           | <u>Medical and/or retail marijuana transporter premises</u> |                  |           |          |           | <u>C</u> |          |
| <b>Accessory Uses</b>                     |                                                             |                  |           |          |           |          |          |
| Accessory Uses                            | Accessory dwelling unit (Refer to Ch. 17.60)                | R                | R         | R        |           | C        | R        |
|                                           | Accessory use, building, or structure (Refer to Ch. 17.60)  | R                | R         | R        | R         | R        | R        |
|                                           | Harboring of chickens                                       | A                | A         | A        |           | A        | A        |
|                                           | Home occupation                                             | R                | R         | R        | R         | R        | R        |
|                                           | Outdoor Storage                                             | R                | R         | R        | R         | R        | R        |
|                                           | Short-Term Rentals (Refer to Sec. 5.12 of LMC)              | R                | R         | R        | R         | R        | R        |
|                                           | Solar energy <del>facility</del> system                     | <u>-A</u>        | <u>-A</u> | A        | <u>-A</u> | A        | A        |
|                                           | <u>Family child care home</u>                               | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
|                                           | <u>Garages, noncommercial</u>                               | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
|                                           | <u>Greenhouses</u>                                          | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
|                                           | <u>Swimming pools and hot tubs</u>                          | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
|                                           | <u>Satellite dishes</u>                                     | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>A</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
|                                           | <u>Fences up to 6 ft. in height</u>                         | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>A</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
|                                           | <u>Fences exceeding 6 ft. in height</u>                     | <u>A</u>         | <u>A</u>  | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u>  | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u> |
|                                           | <u>Amateur radio and television towers</u>                  | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>A</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u> |
| <u>Individual storage sheds</u>           | <u>A</u>                                                    | <u>A</u>         | <u>A</u>  | <u>A</u> | <u>A</u>  | <u>A</u> |          |
| <u>Fallout shelters for personal uses</u> | <u>R</u>                                                    | <u>R</u>         | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> | <u>R</u>  | <u>R</u> |          |

**17.48.020- Uses not ~~itemized~~ listed.**

~~Upon petition by any individual or organization or on its own initiative, the city council may, by ordinance, following review and recommendation by the planning commission, add to the itemized list of uses in Table 1, Section 17.48.010, any additional uses which conform to the following criteria:~~

- ~~A. That the use by right, conditional use or prohibited use conforms to the basic characteristics and purpose of the district to which it would be added;~~
- ~~B. That if there are zoning districts to which the additional use would be equally or more appropriate, such use shall also be added to those districts.~~

~~(Ord. 99-8 § 1 (part); prior code § 17.13.010)~~

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to promote the health, safety, convenience, and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of the city by protecting and enhancing the character of the city's zoning districts and providing for efficient and fair development that respect property rights and ensure quality development.

B. Generally. If a proposed use is not listed in section 17.48.010, then the planning official shall decide whether the proposed use is either functionally comparable to, or a subcategory of, a by-right, conditional, administratively permitted, or prohibited use. The planning official shall apply the following criteria to decide how the use will be regulated by this title:

1. A proposed use is a subcategory of a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use if, with regard to each of the decision criteria enumerated in subsection B, the proposed use's impacts are not materially greater than the by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use with the more general NAICS code.
2. A proposed use is functionally comparable to a by-right, conditional, administratively permitted use if it is reasonably comparable to the by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use, and with regard to each of the decision criteria enumerated in subsection B., the proposed use has no greater impacts than the by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use with which it is functionally comparable.

C. Decision Criteria. The following decision criteria shall be evaluated when the planning official decides whether a proposed use is a subcategory of, or is functionally comparable to, a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use:

1. Parking demand;
2. Average daily and peak hour trip generation (cars and trucks);
3. Impervious surface;
4. Noise;

5. Lighting;

6. Dust;

7. Odors;

8. Potentially hazardous conditions, such as projectiles leaving the site;

9. Use and storage of hazardous materials;

10. Character of buildings and structures;

11. Character of operation; and

12. Hours of operation.

D. Effect of Determination.

1. If the planning official approves an application for a decision pursuant to this section, then the use is allowed as a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use, with the same restrictions as the use to which it was compared for the purposes of the favorable decision.

If the planning official determines that a proposed use is not a subcategory of, or functionally comparable to, a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use, then the proposed use is a prohibited use.

---

### 17.48.030 Manufactured homes and mobile homes.

- A. **Manufactured Homes.** A manufactured home, as defined in Section 17.08.020, is treated as a single-family dwelling. A manufactured home is a permitted use in any zoning district where a single-family dwelling is a permitted use. A manufactured home is a prohibited use in those zoning districts in which a single-family dwelling is prohibited, and the installation of a manufactured home requires a conditional use permit or certificate of appropriateness in those zoning districts where one is required for a single-family dwelling. In all respects, a manufactured home is to be treated as a single-family dwelling for the purposes of this section. C.R.S. 31-23-301(5) applies.
- B. **Mobile homes.**
1. Independent mobile homes, as defined in Section 17.08.020, are allowed to be placed only in approved mobile home parks ~~or in the industrial zoning district by a conditional use permit pursuant to Chapter 17.36.~~
  2. Dependent mobile homes as defined in Section 17.08.020, shall be occupied only in approved travel trailer parks and city-designated time limited travel trailer parking areas. Dependent mobile homes shall not be parked for the purposes of storage or habitation (see the definition of habitation in Section 17.08.020) on any city street, alley, or roadway. All cooking apparatus, utilities, and heating systems in dependent mobile homes must be fueled by liquid propane or natural gas. Solid or other liquid fuels are specifically prohibited.

(Ord. 99-8 § 1 (part): prior code §§ 17.15.010, 17.15.020)

## Chapter 17.50 ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS

### 17.50.010 Introduction.

The administrative permit enumerated in Chapter 17.48 may be allowed in an eligible zoning district upon review ~~and recommendation by the planning commission chair~~ and action by the planning official to issue an administrative permit. Issuance of an administrative permit shall be subject to such reasonable conditions and safeguards in order that the administrative permit compliey'-s with the general intent and specific provisions of this chapter and be in harmony with the character of the surrounding area. Specific decision-making criteria are contained below.

Administrative permits shall be permitted ~~indefinitely, unless otherwise for a duration of time, up to indefinite,~~ specified by the planning official or until the land use changes or is terminated, whichever occurs first. ~~The planning official may reclassify the application to a Conditional Use Permit as deemed necessary by the Planning Official.~~ Each administrative permit approved by the planning official is subject to review as often as city council deems appropriate and reasonable. In addition, city council may, for proper cause, revoke an ~~administrative permit-CUP.~~

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

### 17.50.020 Submittal requirements.

Application for an administrative permit shall require submission of: (a) an application on a form provided by the city; (b) submission of a letter of intent; (c) submission of written answers to the ~~approval~~ criteria ~~points~~; and (d) submission of site plan.

The appropriate filing fees (see Chapter 17.96) shall accompany the submission of the above materials.

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

### 17.50.030 Procedures for review and action on administrative permit applications.

- A. Administrative permit applications, with all supporting documents and fees, shall be submitted to the planning official to review for compliance with the requirements of this title.
- B. ~~After a~~An application is determined to be complete by the planning official, ~~it will be forwarded to the commission chair for second review. If the commission chair finds the application incomplete, it will be returned to the planning official for appropriate action. If the commission chair finds the application complete and adequate, it will authorize the planning official to move forward with issuing an administrative permit.~~shall be reviewed for compliance with the criteria for approval stated below.
- C. ~~The applicant shall provide the city with the names and addresses of all adjacent property owners, as shown in the records of the Lake County assessor's office, and shall provide the planning official with a certificate of mailing.~~
- D. ~~The applicant shall notify all adjacent property neighbors within a twenty (20) foot radius of the chicken administrative permit request by sending the City of Leadville Notice of Consent Form by certified mail.~~
- E. A letter typed or printed on city stationary and signed by the planning official shall be considered to be a formal permit authorizing an administrative permit under this chapter.



- 
- F. An administrative permit will be revoked if the use has not been established within two years of the approval.

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

#### **17.50.040 Criteria for ~~action-approval of~~ an administrative permit application.**

All actions by the ~~planning commission chair and~~ planning official in reviewing and approving an administrative permit application shall be based in general upon the provisions of this chapter and specifically on the following criteria:

- A. That the proposed administrative permit use conforms to the requirements and provisions of this zoning regulation;
- B. That the proposed administrative permit use is consistent with and in compliance with the Leadville comprehensive plan, as amended;
- C. That the proposed administrative permit use is consistent with and in harmony with neighboring land uses and future intended land uses in the area;
- D. That the proposed administrative permit use will not result in overly intensive use of the land relative to the surrounding land;
- E. That the proposed administrative permit use will not result in excessive traffic congestion or hazards to vehicular or pedestrian traffic;
- F. That the proposed administrative permit use will not unnecessarily scar the land on which such use would be located and that the site be free from loose piles of soil or other materials and open, unprotected pits or holes;
- G. That the proposed administrative permit use will not be likely to prove detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of city residents nor cause hardship for neighboring persons;
- H. That the proposed site of the administrative permit use is and will be free from natural and manmade hazards or such hazards as have been identified can and will be adequately mitigated;
- I. That all roadway systems and access roads will be open and readily accessible to police, fire and other emergency and public safety vehicles on a year-round basis.

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

#### **17.50.050 Review and revocation of an administrative permit.**

At such intervals as the planning official ~~and the planning and zoning chair~~ may have specified in its initial decision, or when there is an alleged violation of the provisions of an administrative permit, the planning official shall review the terms, conditions or other provisions of the issued administrative permit. If the Planning Official determines that a violation exists, the Planning Official shall provide written notice of the violation to the property owner. Such notice shall ~~Upon review of the permit provisions, the planning official may~~ specify time period(s) in which any violations ~~of the terms or conditions~~ shall be corrected.

~~Review of alleged violations of the terms, conditions or other provisions of an administrative permit shall occur at time of notification and be completed within in thirty (30) business days.~~

~~The planning official shall forward all recommendations, the reasons for such recommendations, and specific time period(s) in which violations of the provisions of the permit, if any, must be corrected to planning and zoning chair and the permit holder within five days of the review. In the event the planning official recommends revocation of~~

---

~~any administrative permit, or if the violations of the terms or conditions are not corrected within the time period(s) specified by the planning official, such recommendation, the reasons for it, or a notice of noncompliance shall be forwarded to the planning and zoning chair within five days of the review. Within thirty (30) days the planning official shall render a decision.~~

~~Following the review and recommendation to the permit holder the planning official shall act to revoke, not to revoke or to impose additional or amended conditions or sanctions on the administrative permit holder.~~ Failure of the administrative permit holder to comply within the stipulated time period(s) with any of the conditions under which the permit was issued, or to comply with the original application provisions, shall be adequate reason for revocation of any administrative permit. If the violation is not corrected within the required time period, the Planning Official shall revoke the permit by providing written notice to the property owner of revocation and the effective date of revocation.

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

### **17.50.060 Administrative permit fees.**

- A. Fee Structure. The fee structure for the processing of administrative filing and application fees is available in the planning and zoning office.

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

### **17.50.070 Appeals procedure.**

- A. Appeals to city council may be made by any person(s) aggrieved by an inability to obtain an administrative permit or by the decision of any administrative officer or agency based upon or made in the course of the administration or enforcement of the provisions of this title. Appeals shall be made within thirty (30) days of the order, requirement, decision or refusal alleged to have occurred or to be in error.
- B. The concurring vote of four members of the council shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of any administrative official or agency or otherwise to decide in favor of an applicant or an appellant appearing before the council.
- C. City council shall set a public hearing date on all appeals. A notice of public hearing shall be published in a legal publication in the city at least seven days prior to the hearing with notification of the hearing date and subject of the hearing.

A copy of the notice shall be deposited in the United States mail by the applicant, first class postage prepaid, postmarked at least fifteen (15) days prior to the scheduled hearing date, and to all listed owners of record of all property owners within in a two hundred (200) foot radius. This mailed notice shall also be sent to all adjacent mineral rights owners and lessees and easement holders, as shown on the records of the office of the Lake County assessor. The notice shall include a short narrative describing the relief sought and an announcement of the date, time and location of the scheduled hearing. The applicant shall submit a signed affidavit, in a city-approved form, to the city prior to the date of the hearing evidencing that the required mailing was performed in accordance with this section. Failure to mail such notice shall not affect the validity of any hearing or determination by planning commission or city council, as applicable.

In addition, the applicant shall cause to have posted on the property in question, in a conspicuous location, a sign supplied by the city, stating the time, date, location and subject of the hearing. Such sign(s) shall be posted at least fourteen (14) days before the scheduled date of the hearing.

- D. All appeals shall be in writing and on such forms as shall be prescribed by city council. The appropriate filing fee shall accompany the application. Every appeal shall state what provision(s) of the zoning regulation is/are

---

involved, what relief from the provision(s) is being sought, and the grounds on which the relief should be granted to the applicant. The mayor shall call a meeting of the city council scheduled to take place within thirty (30) days of the submission of the appropriate materials, including proof of notification of a public hearing, and at the same time city council may transmit a copy of the appeal to the planning commission or other appropriate public bodies for review and comment.

- E. Appeal applications submitted to city council shall include a full and accurate legal description of the land involved.
- F. Upon reaching a decision in the manner described above, the city council shall notify the applicant(s) in writing within ten (10) working days after city council takes action on an appeal.

(Ord. No. 2016-6, § 1, 7-5-16)

## Chapter 17.60 ACCESSORY USES, BUILDINGS AND USESSTRUCTURES

### Sections:

#### 17.60.010 Introduction.

~~Integrated and detached accessory buildings must meet the same setback requirements as principal buildings. The following accessory uses are permitted in the following zoning districts, provided that they are incidental to and on the same premises as a permitted or conditional use. The following sections provide requirements for accessory uses, buildings, and structures in the City's zoning districts.~~

(Amended during 2002 codification: Ord. 99-8 § 1 (part): prior code § 17.20)

(Ord. No. 2016-8, § 3, 11-1-16)

#### 17.60.020 Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Requirements~~R-1, R-2, TR and TC zoning districts.~~

Unless otherwise stated, the following requirements shall apply to all zoning districts.

A. ~~Garages for the storage and owner maintenance of automobiles light trucks and recreational vehicles.~~

**~~B. Accessory buildings, structures or uses normally required in addition to or in conjunction with any use by right or approved conditional use in the district, including but not limited to accessory dwelling units in the R-1, R-2, TR, and TC zoning districts as a use by right but only with a conditional use permit in the C zoning district. Accessory dwelling units are prohibited in the RC zoning district.~~**

- ~~CA.~~ Detached ~~accessory dwelling units~~ADUs shall be placed on an approved foundation in compliance with applicable adopted building codes and regulations.
- ~~DB.~~ ~~Accessory dwelling units~~ADUs shall be no larger than fifty (50) percent of the size of the principal building and no smaller than one hundred (100) square feet.
- ~~EC.~~ ~~Design Standards. An~~ In all zoning districts except the C zoning district, ADUs, either integrated or detached, shall be consistent in design and appearance with the primary structure. Specifically, the roof pitch, siding materials, color and window treatment of the ADU shall be complementary with the primary structure. In the C zoning district, any exterior treatments of an ADU shall complement the principal building.
- ~~FD.~~ Each ~~accessory dwelling unit~~ADU shall have a bathroom with a sink, toilet, and shower or bath at a minimum.
- ~~GE.~~ Each ~~accessory dwelling unit~~ADU shall have a kitchen with an oven, stove (two-burner minimum), refrigerator and sink at a minimum.
- ~~HF.~~ Each ~~accessory dwelling unit~~ADU shall have a maximum of two bedrooms.
- ~~IG.~~ The owners of property upon which an ~~accessory dwelling unit~~ADU is located shall have an obligation to notify the applicable water and sanitation district of the existence and occupation of the accessory dwelling unit and shall comply at all times with the regulations of such water and sanitation district.

- 
- ~~H.~~ Each accessory dwelling unit must pass the inspection of the building official, ~~and~~ any subsequent structural standards which may be adopted by the City of Leadville.
  - ~~K.~~ Setbacks and heights of buildings that contain detached ADUs must adhere to applicable zoning regulations of the zoning district.
  - ~~J.~~ For the purposes of allowed density, each ADU shall be counted as one (1) unit of density.
  - ~~K.~~ A maximum of one (1) ADU shall be permitted per primary building.

(Ord. 99-8 § 1 (part); prior code § 17.20.010)

(Ord. No. 08-3, § 2; Ord. No. 2009-3, § 4, 9-1-09; Ord. No. 2016-8, § 3, 11-1-16; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 4, 2-2-21)

### ~~17.60.030 C zoning districts.~~

- ~~A.~~ ~~Garages as allowed in other districts.~~
- ~~B.~~ ~~Any accessory buildings, structures or uses required in addition to and in conjunction with any use by right or approved conditional use, including, but not limited to accessory dwelling units necessary to the maintenance or protection of a facility in the TC zoning district as a use by right but only with a conditional use permit in the C zoning district.~~
- ~~C.~~ ~~Solar energy devices shall maintain the same setbacks as are required for principal buildings, shall not be located within the front yard, and, if freestanding, shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height.~~
- ~~D.~~ ~~Detached accessory dwelling units shall be placed on an approved foundation in compliance with applicable adopted building codes and regulations.~~
- ~~E.~~ ~~Accessory dwelling units shall be no larger than fifty (50) percent of the size of the principal building and no smaller than one hundred (100) square feet.~~
- ~~F.~~ ~~Any exterior treatments of an accessory dwelling unit shall complement the principal building.~~
- ~~G.~~ ~~Each accessory dwelling unit shall have a bathroom with a sink, toilet, and shower or bath at a minimum.~~
- ~~H.~~ ~~Each accessory dwelling unit shall have a kitchen with an oven, stove (two-burner minimum), refrigerator and sink at a minimum.~~
- ~~I.~~ ~~Each accessory dwelling unit shall have a maximum of two bedrooms.~~
- ~~J.~~ ~~The owners of property upon which an accessory dwelling unit is located shall have an obligation to notify the applicable water and sanitation district of the existence and occupation of the accessory dwelling unit and shall comply at all times with the regulations of such water and sanitation district.~~
- ~~K.~~ ~~Each accessory dwelling unit must pass the inspection of the building official, or any subsequent structural standards which may be adopted by the City of Leadville.~~
- ~~L.~~ ~~Setbacks and heights of buildings that contain detached ADUs must adhere to applicable zoning regulations of the zoning district.~~

(Ord. 99-8 § 1 (part); prior code § 17.20.020)

(Ord. No. 08-3, § 3; Ord. No. 2009-3, § 5, 9-1-09; Ord. No. 2016-8, § 3, 11-1-16; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 4, 2-2-21)

---

### **17.60.0430 Requirements for other accessory uses, buildings, and structures.**

~~No additional accessory uses are permitted in any district except that household pets, private greenhouses, swimming pools and hot tubs, satellite dishes, fences, amateur radio and television towers, individual storage sheds and fallout shelters for personal uses are allowable accessory uses in all zoning districts so long as such accessory uses pose no threat to human health, safety and welfare to owners, users or adjacent residents and so long as they meet all applicable building, electrical and plumbing codes and have received all required permits. Integrated and detached accessory buildings and structures must meet the same setback requirements as principal buildings.~~

~~Fences which are not over six feet in height, and living fences of any height so long as they are not a traffic obstruction shall be considered permitted accessory uses in all districts. Taller fences are permitted accessory use upon inspection by the building official, who shall issue a permit for such fences upon determination that they would Fences exceeding six (6) feet in height shall not block light, sun, air, vision, or otherwise pose a health or safety hazard or a nuisance to adjacent properties.~~

~~No fence, shrubs, trees, sign or any other obstruction shall be permitted in any setback area if it obstructs the sight of drivers at any intersection. Cut firewood stacked in rows ~~shall not be defined as a fence for the purposes of this chapter and shall not be so regulated so long as it does not~~ obstruct the sight of drivers at an intersection.~~

~~Any accessory building, the floor area of which is two hundred (200) square feet in size or less, shall not require a building permit.~~

~~Any accessory dwelling structure, integrated or detached, intended for habitation shall require a building permit. Solar energy devices systems shall maintain the same setbacks as are required for principal buildings, shall not be located within the front yard, and, if freestanding, shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height.~~

(Ord. 05-7 § 1; Ord. 99-8 § 1 (part): prior code § 17.20.030)

(Ord. No. 2016-8, § 3, 11-1-16)

### **17.60.0570 Rentals in all zone districts.**

Accessory dwelling units in all zone districts where permitted may be used as long-term rental units of thirty (30) consecutive days or more and as short-term rental units of less than thirty (30) consecutive days. Such rentals shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 17.48 and Chapter 5.12 of this code, as applicable.

(Ord. No. 2020-6, § 4, 2-2-21)

## Chapter 5.12 SHORT-TERM RENTALS

### Sections:

#### 5.12.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to safeguard the public health, safety and welfare by establishing regulations to control the licensing, use, occupancy, and maintenance of short-term rental units in the city.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

#### 5.12.020 Applicability and interpretation.

This chapter applies to short-term rental units only, as that term is hereinafter defined, within any zone district where such use is permitted. This chapter does not apply to hotels, motels, lodges, bed-and-breakfast establishments, or long-term rental units, as those terms are defined in Chapter 17.08 of this code. This chapter does not supersede any private covenants or restrictions prohibiting short-term rental units. This chapter shall not regulate a short-term rental unit during periods when the property is not being used as a short-term rental unit and is instead being used solely for personal use by the owner of such property. This chapter shall not be construed to prohibit the leasing of properties within the city for more than thirty (30) days.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

#### 5.12.030 Definitions.

"Accessory dwelling unit" has the same meaning as set forth in Chapter 17.08 of this code.

"Dwelling unit" has the same meaning as set forth in Chapter 17.08 of this code.

"Guest unit" has the same meaning as set forth in Chapter 17.08 of this code.

"Local agent" means a management company or individual who is identified by an applicant as the responsible agent in the application for a short-term rental license and who is available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven days per week to respond as the initial point of contact for the short-term rental unit and who is able to respond to emergencies at the short-term rental unit within one hour of the agent's receipt of notice of the emergency. The local agent may be the owner of the short-term rental unit and must have access to the short-term rental unit, authority to assume management of the short-term rental unit, and the ability to take remedial measures as necessary.

"Owner" means the owner of a property within the city who intends to lease or leases the property or a portion thereof as a short-term rental unit.

"Owner-occupied" means a property on which an owner uses a dwelling unit of any kind, or portion thereof, as the owner's legal, primary residence.

"Parcel" means an area of land which is capable of being described with such specificity that its location and boundaries may be established and which has been or may be developed as a single unit of land.

---

"Renter" shall mean the party to a lease that has obtained the temporary right to use and occupy a short-term rental unit.

"Short-term rental" unit means a dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or a guest unit within a dwelling unit or accessory dwelling unit that is available for lease for a term of less than thirty (30) consecutive days. The term "short-term rental unit" shall not apply to hotels, motels, lodges, bed-and-breakfast establishments, hostels, or time share estates, or any guest units within such establishments. has the same meaning as set forth in Chapter 17.08 of this code.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.040 License required.**

It is unlawful to lease, advertise for lease, or permit the leasing of any short-term rental unit within the city without a valid license issued by the city pursuant to this chapter. No person who has obtained a license pursuant to this chapter shall be required to obtain a general business license pursuant to Chapter 5.04 of this code for the same business activity.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.050 Classes of licenses.**

An owner must obtain a license for each short-term rental unit within the city. There shall be two separate classes of licenses available for owners to operate short-term rental units within the city:

- A. Class 1: A Class 1 License is required to operate any dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or portion thereof as a short-term rental unit on an owner-occupied property within the city.
- B. Class 2: A Class 2 License is required to operate any dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or portion thereof as a short-term rental unit on a property within the city that is not owner-occupied.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.060 Application requirements.**

- A. Contents of Application. A complete application for a short-term rental license must be submitted to the city. The application shall be in writing on forms provided and approved by the city. The following documents and information must be included with the application for the application to be considered complete:
  - 1. The name, address and other contact information of the owner of the short-term rental unit;
  - 2. The address of the proposed short-term rental unit;
  - 3. A description of the property and dwelling unit or portion thereof that will be available for lease;
  - 4. The name, address, and contact information of the local agent for the proposed short-term rental unit;
  - 5. A site plan that identifies the location of the trash receptacles and available parking for the proposed short-term rental unit;
  - 6. An acknowledgement, signed by the owner and local agent, that the owner and local agent have read and understand all regulations pertaining to the operation of short-term rental units within the city and that, following issuance of a license, the city may contact the owner if the city deems it necessary or appropriate even if there is a separate local agent for the short-term rental unit;



- 
7. Proof of ownership of the proposed short-term rental unit;
  8. For owners that are business entities, proof of authorization signed by all applicable members of the business entity showing the applicant may submit a short-term rental license application on behalf of the business entity;
  9. A copy of a current and valid state sales tax license issued to the owner or local agent for the proposed short-term rental unit;
  10. A copy of a current and valid Lake County sales and lodging tax license issued to the owner or local agent for the proposed short-term rental unit;
  11. Proof that all property tax payments for the property on which the proposed short-term rental unit is located are current;
  12. An affidavit, on forms provided and approved by the city, signed by the owner attesting that the short-term rental unit has appropriate safety features;
  13. Proof of insurance covering the proposed short-term rental unit sufficient to operate a short-term rental unit;
  14. A copy of ~~a conditional~~ an administrative use permit issued by the city, if required under Section 5.12.070 of this chapter or Title 17 of this code;
  15. The applicable fee(s) as set forth in the city's fee schedule; and
  16. Such other information determined necessary or desirable by the city to evaluate the compliance of the application, licensed premises or proposed short-term rental activity with the requirements of this code, including but not limited to proof of primary residence acceptable to the city for Class 1 license applications.
- B. License Fee. All fees and fines set forth in this chapter shall be set by the city council by resolution and shall be included in the city's fee schedule.
- C. Parking. Each site plan must show the parking available for the short-term rental unit, which may be on-street parking, off-street parking, or a combination of both, for the purpose of indicating to renters where parking is available during their stay. The requirement to include available parking in the site plan does not obligate the owner to provide off-street parking for renters.
- D. Application Meeting. The city may require a meeting with the applicant prior to approval or denial of the license to address any issues or questions regarding the application and assist the applicant in resolving any application deficiencies.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.070 Application approval.**

- A. Approval Criteria. Short-term rental license applications shall be reviewed and approved administratively by the city designee. The city designee is the city staff person designated by city council to review applications and administer short-term rental licenses. The city designee shall not approve an application for a short-term rental license or issue a short-term rental license unless:
1. The applicant has submitted a complete application, including the payment of all applicable fees, as set forth in Section 5.12.060 of this chapter;
  2. The proposed short-term rental unit is within a zone district that allows short-term rental units;

- 
3. The site plan and other information provided with the application show that the property is in compliance with all applicable city ordinances and all applicable regulations regarding safety, parking and trash collection; and
  4. The applicant has obtained an ~~an administrative conditional use~~ permit, if and as required by this code.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.080 Term of license, renewal, and show cause hearings.**

- A. Term. Short-term rental licenses shall be effective from May 1 until April 30 each year. Applicants who apply for and obtain a short-term rental license any time on or after May 1 shall be responsible for paying the entire license fee. Any license issued after May 1 shall expire on the April 30 following the date of issuance regardless of the issuance date.
- B. Renewal. All short-term rental licenses must be renewed annually. All renewal applications must be submitted prior to April 30 each year on forms provided and approved by the city. For short-term rental licenses subject to the annual cap set forth in Section 5.12.090 of this code, all renewal applications meeting the requirements herein and submitted by the deadline set forth in this paragraph, with applicants who are in good standing, will be approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any license renewal applications received after the deadline set forth in this paragraph will be considered on a first-come, first-served basis. The city shall approve a renewal application if:
  1. The renewal form is complete and does not omit any required information;
  2. The renewal fee has been paid;
  3. The owner or local agent has submitted a new, current safety affidavit;
  4. Neither the owner, the local agent, nor the short-term rental unit is currently in violation of any applicable law, rule, or regulation, including the provisions of this code;
  5. The owner has not been cited by the city for or convicted by the Leadville Municipal Court or other court of competent jurisdiction of more than one violation related to the owner's short-term rental unit in the last twelve (12) months; and
  6. For any licenses subject to the annual license cap set forth in this chapter, the short-term rental unit was rented for at least fourteen (14) days during the previous license term. If the short-term rental unit was not rented for at least fourteen (14) days during the previous term, the renewal application shall not be approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an owner or local agent may complete an affidavit of non-use declaring the reasons for failing to rent the short-term rental unit as required in this paragraph. If a renewal application including such affidavit meets all other requirements of this code, then the city will approve the renewal application. Affidavits of non-use will not be allowed for subsequent renewal applications.
- C. Show Cause Hearings.
  1. At any time during the term of a license, if the city's records show that a licensee has had at least three complaints, with each complaint related to a separate incident, concerning the operation or maintenance of the short-term rental unit brought to the attention of the city during the current license term, which complaints would each constitute a violation of this code and have been substantiated or verified by the city, the city may notify the licensee in writing of the date and time established for a show cause hearing before the city council. At the show cause hearing, the licensee shall be required to show cause why its license should not be suspended or revoked. Notice of such hearing shall contain a brief description of the grounds for conducting the hearing, which shall include

---

the list of code violations charged. The hearing shall be held no sooner than ten (10) business days after notice has been delivered to the licensee.

2. At the hearing, the city shall present matters into evidence, and the licensee shall have an opportunity to present evidence on the licensee's behalf and to comment upon the evidence. The city shall furnish the licensee its decision in writing within thirty (30) days following the hearing. In the event of suspension or revocation of the license, no portion of any licensing fees paid shall be refunded.
3. In all cases where the evidence presented at a show cause hearing demonstrates that a violation of this code occurred, the city shall consider evidence and statements in mitigation and in aggravation of the violation prior to determining the appropriate penalty. Such evidence and statements may relate to and include, but shall not be limited to, the following factors:
  - a. Seriousness of the violation;
  - b. Corrective action taken by the licensee after the violation;
  - c. Prior violations at the short-term rental unit by the owner, local agent or renters and the effectiveness of prior corrective action;
  - d. Whether the violation is part of a repeated course of conduct or is an isolated occurrence;
  - e. Likelihood of recurrence;
  - f. All circumstances surrounding the violation;
  - g. Willfulness of the violation;
  - h. Length of time the license has been held by the licensee;
  - i. Previous sanctions imposed against the licensee; and
  - j. Other factors making the situation with respect to the licensee or the licensed premises unique.
4. The licensee shall be permitted to give evidence and statements in defense, explanation and mitigation at the show cause hearing if then prepared to do so. If such evidence is not available at the show cause hearing but can be obtained by the licensee, the licensee shall state the substance of such evidence and, upon the licensee's request, the hearing may be continued for not more than ten (10) business days to a date certain.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.090 Limitations and requirements.**

- A. **Local Agent.** The local agent for a short-term rental unit shall have access to and authority to assume management of the short-term rental unit and take remedial measures as necessary. The local agent shall be available to respond to tenant or neighbor concerns regarding the property twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven days a week. Local agents must respond to complaints, regardless of the source of the complaint, involving the short-term rental unit within twenty-four (24) hours.
- B. **Renter Information Notice.** Each short-term rental unit shall have a sign displayed in a conspicuous place within the short-term rental unit that contains the following information:
  1. Name and contact information of the local agent;
  2. The short-term rental license number;
  3. The physical address of the short-term rental unit;
  4. The occupancy limit for the short-term rental unit;

- 
5. The available parking for the short-term rental unit;
  6. A statement that all vehicles must be parked in the indicated available parking spaces unless such spaces are unavailable;
  7. Contact information for police, fire and ambulance service in case of an emergency; and
  8. The location of all fire extinguishers, fire escape routes, and contact information for renters to report safety concerns.
- C. Occupancy Limits. The occupancy limit for each short-term rental unit shall be two persons per bedroom available for lease within the short-term rental unit and two additional persons. By way of example and not limitation, a short-term rental that has three bedrooms available for lease has an occupancy limit of six persons plus two additional persons for a total occupancy limit of eight persons.
- D. Parking.
1. Good Neighbor Parking Information. Upon license issuance, the city will provide to the owner "good neighbor" parking information that outlines, among other things, information on parking limitations and best practices for parking recreational vehicles, trailers, and other similar vehicles. The owner shall post this information in the short-term rental unit in a conspicuous place and, if possible, shall provide this information to renters prior to their arrival at the short-term rental unit.
  2. Parking Notice in Advertising. The owner shall include in all official listings of a short-term rental unit a reference to the available parking for the short-term rental unit and the location of any designated parking area or spaces.
  3. Limitations. Parking is prohibited in any landscaped area, in any manner that blocks ingress or egress for adjacent properties, or in any manner that blocks access to mailboxes of adjacent properties.
- E. Trash Receptacles. Each short-term rental unit shall provide trash receptacles to accommodate all garbage generated by renters. Owners shall be responsible for ensuring that all garbage is placed in covered, secured trash receptacles within twenty-four (24) hours of the end of a rental period and shall ensure that all trash is removed from the short-term rental unit within seven calendar days of the end of any rental period.
- F. Safety Features. All short-term rental units must have an appropriate number of functional smoke detectors, carbon monoxide detectors, and fire extinguishers and must have adequate egress and other required safety features pursuant to applicable fire or building codes, as determined by the city's fire marshal and set forth in the city's short-term rental safety checklist.
- G. Change in Information. An owner shall notify the city of any change in ownership of the property, a change in the owner's address or contact information, or any change in local agent or local agent name or contact information within five days of such change.
- H. Taxes. Owners shall be responsible for making timely property tax payments for all short-term rental units, as applicable for each property. Owners shall also be responsible for keeping all applicable sales and lodging tax licenses current.
- I. Notices. Any notices or communications required or reasonably implied by this chapter may be sent to the owner and local agent by the city via U.S. mail or via electronic mail.
- J. Safety Checks. An owner or local agent of a short-term rental unit shall allow the city access to a licensed short-term rental unit once per year for the purpose of verifying the information set forth in the safety features affidavit submitted with the owner's license application or renewal application. An owner or local agent shall also allow the city access to a short-term rental unit to investigate a safety complaint about the short-term rental unit. Each safety check shall be subject to a fee set forth in the city's fee schedule. Following a safety check, the city may provide the owner or local agent instructions on how to bring the property into compliance with this code and a deadline for such compliance. If the city determines that the

---

owner or local agent has not complied with the instructions by the compliance deadline, the owner may be subject to the suspension or revocation or denial of a renewal application, as appropriate and in accordance with this code, of the owner's short-term rental license.

K. Maximum Number of Licenses Per Year. There shall be a maximum number of certain licenses available per year (from May 1 through April 30), which shall equal twelve (12) percent of the total number of residential parcels within the city. The total number of residential parcels shall be as determined by the city using information from the Lake County Assessor. The following types of licenses shall be subject to the cap set forth in this paragraph:

1. All Class 2 licenses, and
2. Class 1 licenses for parcels with two or more short-term rental units on a single parcel.

Class 1 licenses for parcels with only one short-term rental unit are not subject to the cap set forth in this paragraph. Licenses issued for owner-occupied parcels with two or more short-term rental units on a single parcel shall count as one license toward the license cap set forth in this paragraph. Notwithstanding the foregoing, owners or local agents must obtain a license for each proposed short-term rental unit in accordance with Section 5.12.050 of this chapter.

L. Maximum Number of Licenses Per Parcel.

1. The city shall issue no more than one license per parcel, subject to the provisions of this chapter.
2. Parcels may be eligible for more than one license on a case-by-case basis if the additional licenses are approved through the ~~conditional-use permit~~ permitting process set forth in Chapter ~~17-52~~ 17.50 of this code prior to issuance of a license in accordance with this chapter. Applicants seeking two or more licenses for a single owner-occupied parcel and applicants seeking three or more licenses for a single parcel that is not owner-occupied must obtain ~~a conditional-use~~ an administrative permit from the city before the city will process any such short-term rental license application.
3. The operation of two short-term rental units on a single parcel that is not owner-occupied is prohibited. In accordance with the requirements of this chapter, the city permits the operation and licensure of one short-term rental unit on a parcel that is not owner-occupied or may permit, following the issuance of ~~a conditional-use~~ an administrative permit as set forth in this section, the operation and licensure of three or more short-term rental units on a single parcel that is not owner-occupied. The operation of two or more short-term rental units on a single parcel that is owner-occupied is permitted.

M. Large Gatherings. Short-term rental units shall not be used to host large gatherings, which shall mean a gathering of people that exceeds the maximum occupancy limits set forth in this chapter.

N. Nuisances. All owners, local agents, and renters are prohibited from creating, operating, maintaining or conducting any nuisance as defined in Title 8 or in other sections of this code.

O. Eligibility. Only dwelling units and accessory dwelling units, or guest units within a dwelling unit or accessory dwelling unit, may be eligible for a short-term rental license. No vehicle shall be eligible for a short-term rental license.

P. Signs. Signs installed on a property related to the operation or management of a short-term rental unit must comply with the requirements of the Leadville Sign Code set forth in Chapter 17.80 of this code.

Q. License Non-Transferable. No license granted pursuant to this chapter shall be transferable from one person to another or from one location to another. An owner that is a business entity with a short-term rental license whose membership or ownership changes must notify the city of such change and apply for a new license within thirty (30) days of such change.

---

R. Limited Application of Certain Regulations to Condominium Units. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary set forth in this chapter, the following regulations apply to condominium units:

1. Each condominium unit is eligible for one short-term rental license and is required to obtain an administrative permit for such use in accordance with title 17 of this code.
2. Subsection 5.12.090(L) of this chapter does not apply to parcels containing condominium unit developments, ~~and applicants seeking a short-term rental license for a condominium unit shall not be required to obtain a conditional use permit if other condominium units on the same parcel have obtained short-term rental licenses.~~
3. All condominium units licensed as short-term rental units that are not owner-occupied are subject to the maximum number of licenses available per year set forth in subsection 5.12.090(K).
4. Condominium units are subject to all other provisions of this code, as applicable.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.100 Denial of application.**

The city designee shall deny a short-term rental license application or renewal application for any one or more of the following reasons:

- A. The applicable provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code have not been met;
- B. The required application fees have not been paid;
- C. The application is incomplete or contains false, misleading or fraudulent statements;
- D. The owner, local agent or other agent of the owner is currently in violation of this code or has failed to comply with any applicable requirement of this code; or
- E. For renewal applications only, the owner or local agent has been found guilty of more than one code violation regarding the short-term rental unit within the twelve (12) months preceding the renewal application.

Upon determining that an application must be denied, the city designee shall send a notice of denial to the address provided by the owner. Such notice of denial shall state the reasons for denial and inform the owner of his or her right to appeal the decision.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.110 Suspension or revocation of license.**

- A. Suspension. The city designee may suspend a short-term rental license upon a determination that an owner or local agent has:
  1. Been found guilty by the Leadville Municipal Court of violating any provision of this chapter on more than one occasion during the term of the current license; or
  2. Operated a short-term rental unit during the term of the current license in violation of a building, fire, health or safety code adopted by the city, which finding of violation shall be determined by an investigation by the department, division or agency charged with enforcing said code, and has failed to timely cure such violation after receipt of and in accordance with a notice of violation issued by the city.

---

Upon making a determination that one or more of the above reasons for suspension has occurred, the city designee may suspend a short-term rental license for a period not to exceed one year. The city designee shall send the owner a notice of suspension. Such notice of suspension shall state the reasons for suspension, the dates during which the suspension will be effective, and inform the owner of his or her right to appeal the decision. The suspension shall remain in effect until and including the last day in the notice of suspension or until such time as the violation at issue has been corrected, whichever is later. No license shall be suspended past the license expiration date. Any owners whose licenses have been suspended until the expiration of the license must apply for renewal of the license per the renewal provisions of this chapter.

- B. Revocation. The city designee shall revoke a short-term rental license upon determining that:
1. A short-term rental license has been suspended more than once during the preceding twelve (12) months;
  2. An owner or local agent gave the city false, misleading or fraudulent information in the materials submitted during the application process;
  3. An owner or local agent knowingly operated a short-term rental unit during a time when the short-term rental license was suspended; or
  4. Any fact or condition exists that, if it had existed or had been known to exist at the time of the application for the license or renewal of the license, would have warranted the denial of the license application.

When the city designee revokes a short-term rental license, the revocation shall continue for one year from the date of revocation, the owner shall not be issued a short-term rental license during the time such revocation is effective, and must submit a new license application after the revocation expires. The city designee shall send the owner a notice of revocation. Such notice of revocation shall state the reasons for revocation, the time period during which the revocation is effective, and inform the owner of his or her right to appeal the decision.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

### **5.12.120 Appeal of denial, suspension or revocation.**

- A. Appeal. An owner may appeal a denial of his or her application or suspension or revocation of his or her short-term rental license to the city council and shall be entitled to a public hearing before the city council. An appeal must be made in writing, stating the grounds for appeal, and delivered to the city within five business days of the date of the notice of denial, suspension or revocation by the city designee. In the event of an appeal of a suspension or revocation decision, the owner may continue to operate the short-term rental unit during the hearing process unless the continued operation of the short-term rental unit pending resolution of the appeal will endanger the public health, safety or welfare, as determined by the city.
- B. Hearing. A public hearing on the appeal shall be held within thirty (30) days of the date the appeal was submitted to the city. At the hearing, the city council shall hear such statements and consider such evidence as is offered that is relevant to the reasons alleged for denial, suspension or revocation. The city council shall make findings of fact from the statements and evidence offered at the hearing as to whether such reasons exist. The city council shall issue a written order either affirming or overturning the denial, suspension or revocation and stating the findings on which the council's decision is based. A copy of the order shall be sent to the owner within thirty (30) days of the date of the hearing.
- C. No Refund. In the event of suspension or revocation of a short-term rental license, no portion of the short-term rental license fee shall be refunded.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)

---

### **5.12.130 Violation, penalty and enforcement.**

- A. It is unlawful for any owner, local agent, other agent of the owner or renter to violate any provision of this chapter.
- B. In addition to the suspension and revocation actions set forth in this chapter, violations of this chapter are subject to the penalties set forth in Chapter 1.20 of this code.
- C. Any violation of this chapter shall constitute a nuisance under Chapter 8.08 of this code and may be subject to the abatement procedures set forth in Chapter 8.08.
- D. This Section 5.12.130 shall not be construed to prohibit the city from taking any action permitted by law or in equity to remedy a violation of this chapter, including but not limited to seeking an injunction in any court of competent jurisdiction.

(Ord. No. 2019-1, § 1, 4-2-19; Ord. No. 2020-6, § 2, 2-2-21)



**CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 2  
SERIES OF 2023**

**AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTERS  
5.12, 17.08, 17.48, 17.50, AND 17.60 OF THE LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL  
CODE CONCERNING UPDATES TO THE TABLE OF USES AND LAND  
USE DEFINITIONS**

**WHEREAS**, the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City Council”) possesses the authority pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-15-401 and its general police powers to pass and enforce regulations which may be necessary or expedient for the promotion of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Leadville; and

**WHEREAS**, the City has authority to enact, enforce, and amend land use regulations pursuant to Title 31, Article 23 and Title 29, Article 20 of the Colorado Revised Statutes; and

**WHEREAS**, the City desires to reorganize, streamline, and update its table of uses, land use definitions, related provisions of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, codified as Title 17 of the Leadville Municipal Code (“LMC”), concerning administrative permits, accessory uses, and related provisions concerning approval of certain short-term rental unit licenses; and

**WHEREAS**, making such updates requires repealing and replacing Chapter 17.08 and Section 17.48.010 of the LMC, and amending Sections 17.48.020, 17.48.030, 17.50.010 through 17.50.050, 5.12.030, 5.12.060, 5.12.070, 5.12.090, and Chapter 17.60 of the LMC; and

**WHEREAS**, the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission has carefully reviewed and considered this Ordinance in accordance with Chapter 17.92 of the Leadville Municipal Code and recommends that this Ordinance be adopted by City Council; and

**WHEREAS**, City Council has held the properly noticed public hearings required by Chapter 17.92 of the Leadville Municipal Code and has reviewed the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission; and

**WHEREAS**, the City Council finds that adoption of this Ordinance is in the best interests of the public health, safety and welfare.

**NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:**

**Section 1. Recitals.** The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as findings of the City Council and are incorporated herein by this reference.

**Section 2. Amendments to Chapter 5.12 of the Leadville Municipal Code.** Chapter 5.12 of the Leadville Municipal Code, titled Short-Term Rentals, is hereby amended as follows in

the sections shown below, with ~~strikethrough text~~ showing deletions and **bold, underlined text** showing additions:

#### 5.12.030 – Definitions.

[...]

"Short-term rental" unit” **means a dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or a guest unit within a dwelling unit or accessory dwelling unit that is available for lease for a term of less than thirty (30) consecutive days. The term "short-term rental unit" shall not apply to hotels, motels, lodges, bed-and-breakfast establishments, hostels, or time share estates, or any guest units within such establishments.** ~~has the same meaning as set forth in Chapter 17.08 of this code.~~

#### 5.12.060 – Application requirements.

A. Contents of Application. A complete application for a short-term rental license must be submitted to the city. The application shall be in writing on forms provided and approved by the city. The following documents and information must be included with the application for the application to be considered complete:

[...]

14. A copy of a ~~conditional use~~ **an administrative** permit issued by the city, if required under Section 5.12.070 of this chapter or Title 17 of this code;

[...]

#### 5.12.070 – Application approval.

A. Approval Criteria. Short-term rental license applications shall be reviewed and approved administratively by the city designee. The city designee is the city staff person designated by city council to review applications and administer short-term rental licenses. The city designee shall not approve an application for a short-term rental license or issue a short-term rental license unless:

[...]

4. The applicant has obtained **an administrative** ~~a conditional use~~ permit, if and as required by this code.

#### 5.12.090 – Limitations and requirements.

[...]

L. Maximum Number of Licenses Per Parcel.

1. The city shall issue no more than one license per parcel, subject to the provisions of this chapter.
2. Parcels may be eligible for more than one license on a case-by-case basis if the additional licenses are approved through the ~~conditional use permit~~ **permitting** process set forth in Chapter ~~17.52~~**17.50** of this code prior to issuance of a license in accordance with this chapter. Applicants seeking two or more licenses for a single owner-occupied parcel and applicants seeking three or more licenses for a single parcel that is not owner-occupied must obtain a ~~conditional use~~ **an administrative** permit from the city before the city will process any such short-term rental license application.
3. The operation of two short-term rental units on a single parcel that is not owner-occupied is prohibited. In accordance with the requirements of this chapter, the city permits the operation and licensure of one short-term rental unit on a parcel that is not owner-occupied or may permit, following the issuance of a ~~conditional use~~ **an administrative** permit as set forth in this section, the operation and licensure of three or more short-term rental units on a single parcel that is not owner-occupied. The operation of two or more short-term rental units on a single parcel that is owner-occupied is permitted.

**Section 3. Repeal and Replace Chapter 17.08 of the Leadville Municipal Code.**

Chapter 17.08 of the Leadville Municipal Code is hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows:

**17.08.010 - Introduction.**

As used in this title, unless the context requires otherwise, the following words and phrases shall be as stated below. Except as provided for in this title, the planning commission shall decide by a majority vote of the members present any questions or disputes regarding both the interpretation and the application of the definitions listed below and all words contained within this title but not specifically defined herein. Any such interpretation or application decided upon by the planning commission may be appealed by an applicant to the board of adjustment, which shall render a final decision by a concurring vote of four members.

**17.08.020 Use Categories.**

This section defines the general use categories listed in Table 1, By-Right, Conditional, and Prohibited Uses by Zoning District within Chapter 17.48. Definitions for specific use types are in alphabetical order in Section 17.08.030.

"Accessory Uses" means a subordinate use, building, or structure customarily incidental and subordinate in function to the principal use, building, or structure and located on the same lot as the principal use, building, or structure.

“Agricultural Uses” means uses related to the commercial production of field crops for food, fiber, or energy. Agricultural uses commonly include farming, orchards, horticulture, dairying, pasturage, and aquaculture. Agricultural uses also include the raising or breeding of livestock such as cattle, horses, poultry, and the keeping of bees. The term includes the necessary accessory uses for storing the products and inputs needed to produce them..

“Animal Services” means animal-related uses including the boarding and care of animals on a commercial basis. Accessory uses commonly include confinement facilities for animals, parking, and storage areas.

"Child Care Facilities" means any and all facilities or other activities allowed under the Child Care Licensing Act (Article 5, Part 3 of Title 26.5, C.R.S., as amended), and further regulated under the Colorado Department of Human Services' General Rules for Child Care Facilities, 12 C.C.R. 2509-8, Section 7.701 et seq., as amended. “Community and Cultural Facilities” means uses including buildings, structures, or facilities owned, operated, or occupied by a governmental entity or nonprofit organization to provide a service to the public.

“Educational Facilities” means public, private, and parochial institutions at the primary, elementary, middle, high school, or post-secondary level, or trade or business schools, that provide educational instruction to students. Accessory uses commonly include play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-school day care.

“Food and Beverage” means establishments involved in serving prepared food or beverages for consumption on or off the premises. Accessory uses commonly include food preparation areas, offices, and parking.

“Group Living” means uses characterized by residential occupancy of a structure by a group of people who do not meet the definition of “household living.” Tenancy is arranged on a monthly or longer basis, and the size of the group may be larger than a family. Group living structures commonly have a common eating area for residents. The residents may receive care, training, or treatment, and caregivers may or may not also reside at the site. Accessory uses commonly include recreational facilities and vehicle parking for occupants and staff.

“Healthcare Facilities” means any facility providing direct health care to the public such as hospitals, mental health institutions, sanitariums, special care centers, and clinics.

“Household Living” means uses characterized by residential occupancy of a dwelling unit as a household. The tenancy is arranged on a month-to-month or longer basis (lodging where tenancy may be arranged for a period of fewer than 30 days is classified under the “lodging facilities” category). Accessory uses commonly include recreational activities, raising of pets, gardens, personal storage buildings, hobbies, home occupations, and parking of the occupants’ vehicles.

“Industrial Service and Research” means uses including the repair or servicing of agricultural, industrial, business, or consumer machinery, equipment, products, or by-products. Contractors and similar users may perform services off-site with few customers coming to the site. Accessory activities commonly include offices, parking, and indoor or outdoor storage.

“Lodging Facilities” means for-profit facilities where lodging is provided to transient visitors and guests for a defined period of time and where meals and the like may be provided.

“Manufacturing and Production” means uses including all transformative processes, regardless of whether or not the new product is finished or semi-finished. Production is commonly for commercial wholesaling rather than for direct sales.

“Marijuana Industries” means any and all industries, uses, facilities, licenses, or other activities allowed under the Colorado Marijuana Code (Article 10 of Title 44, C.R.S., as amended), and further regulated under the Colorado Department of Revenue, Marijuana Enforcement Division’s Colorado Marijuana Rules, 1 C.C.R. 212-3, as amended.

“Offices” means uses that provide executive, management, administrative, or professional services, but do not involve the sale of merchandise except as incidental to a principal use. Common uses include real estate, insurance, property management, investment, employment, travel, advertising, law, architecture, design, engineering, accounting, call centers, and similar offices. Accessory uses commonly include cafeterias, health facilities, parking, or other amenities primarily for the use of employees in the firm or building.

“Parking Facilities” means any parking lot or parking structure that is used primarily or habitually for the parking of vehicles (excluding street or alley rights-of-way).

“Parks and Open Space” means uses with a focus on natural areas, large areas consisting mostly of vegetative landscaping or outdoor recreation, community gardens, or public squares. Lands tend to have few structures. Accessory uses commonly include clubhouses, playgrounds, maintenance facilities, concessions, caretaker's quarters, and parking.

“Personal Services” means establishments that provide individual services related to personal needs directly to customers at the site of the business, or that receive goods from or return goods to the customer, which have been treated or processed at that location or another location. Examples commonly include beauty and barbershops, laundromats, shoe repair shops, and tailor shops.

“Public Utilities and Facilities” means all lines, buildings, easements, passageways, or structures used or intended to be used by any public or private utility related to the provision, distribution, collection, transmission, or disposal of power, oil, gas, water, sanitary sewage, communication signals, or other similar services at a local level.

“Recreation and Entertainment” means uses that provide recreation or entertainment activities. Accessory uses commonly include concessions, snack bars, parking, and maintenance facilities.

“Retail” means uses involving the sale of a product directly to the final consumer for whatever purpose but not specifically or exclusively for the purpose of resale. Examples commonly include bookstores, antique stores, bakeries, grocery stores, household product stores, and similar uses.

“Vehicles and Equipment” means a broad range of uses for the maintenance, sale, or rental of motor vehicles and related equipment. Accessory uses commonly include incidental repair, storage, and offices.

“Warehouse and Distribution” means uses that are engaged in the storage or movement of goods for themselves or other firms. Goods are commonly delivered to other firms or the final consumer, except for some will call pickups. There is little on-site sales activity with the customer present. Accessory uses commonly include offices, truck fleet parking, and maintenance areas.

### **Section 17.08.030 Definitions.**

In this title, the following terms shall have the following meanings unless a contrary meaning is required by the context or is specifically prescribed:

"Accessory dwelling unit" or "ADU" means an attached or detached residential dwelling unit that is incidental and subordinate in function and size to the principal building which is located on the same parcel as the principal building.

"Accessory use, building, or structure" means a subordinate use, building, or structure customarily incidental and subordinate in function to the principal use, building, or structure and located on the same lot as the principal use, building, or structure.

"Adjoining property and adjacent" includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within one hundred (100) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.

"Administrative permit" is a permit issued by the planning official after determining that the proposed use satisfies conditions specified in the municipal code for the particular use and does not run with the land. Permits may be denied or referred to the planning and zoning commission and city council with a conditional use permit application as described in Chapter 17.52.

"Agricultural production" means the production of a plant which will ultimately be sold at retail, and which utilizes the cultivating of soil, planting, raising, and harvesting crops.

"Alley" or "alleyway" means a minor public roadway upon which the rear of building lots generally abuts, and which is generally used for service purposes.

"Alteration" means any act or process that changes one or more of the exterior architectural features of a structure, including but not limited to, the erection, construction, reconstruction, or removal of any structure or substantial portion thereof. With regard to a mobile home park or travel trailer park, alteration would be any act or process that changes density, lot size, and boundaries.

"Alternative tower structure" means any man-made trees, clock towers, bell steeples, light poles, water towers, and similar alternative design mounting structures that camouflage or conceal the presence of antennas or towers.

“Animal production” means raising or fattening animals for the sale of animals or animal products. This use comprises establishments, such as ranches, farms, and feedlots primarily engaged in keeping, grazing, breeding, or feeding animals. These animals are kept for the products they produce or for eventual sale.

“Animal shelter” means a facility used to house or contain stray, homeless, abandoned, or unwanted animals and that is owned, operated, or maintained by a public body, established humane society, animal welfare society (such as the Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals), or other nonprofit organization devoted to the welfare protection and humane treatment of animals.

"Antenna" means any exterior apparatus designed for telephone, radio, or television communications through the sending and/or receiving of wireless communications signals.

"Antenna, dish" means dish (parabolic or cylindrical) antennas used for microwave and satellite transmission and reception for commercial purposes. This definition shall not apply to wireless cable satellite dish antennas or dish antennas less than one meter in diameter or measured diagonally.

"Antennas, panel" means an array of antennas, rectangular in shape, used to transmit and receive telecommunication signals.

"Antenna, whip" means a single antenna that is cylindrical in shape and omni-directional.

"Applicant" means any person making application for a land use change or other action encompassed by this title. See also "Person."

"Architectural feature salvage" means the storage yard of a dealer in interior or exterior architectural elements recovered from structures, and may include facilities, but not motor vehicles, for the administration or management of the business and for the maintenance of equipment used in the business. Such use shall not include unenclosed and/or exposed building materials on more than twenty-five (25) percent of the property.

“Art gallery” means an establishment engaged in the sale, loan, or display of paintings, photography, sculpture, or other works of art and may include art classes, art studio space, and special events. Art Gallery does not include libraries, museums, or non-commercial art galleries.

“Athletic facilities” means a developed recreation area that may contain a playground as well as fields for competitive sports such as baseball, football, or soccer. Bleachers or grandstands may be provided.

“Automotive, recreational vehicles, or marine sales and service” means the use of any building or land for a business involving the sale, leasing, and/or servicing of new or used motor vehicles, boats, snowmobiles, ATVs, OHVs, UTVs, or recreational vehicles. Such establishments may include office space, parking lots for the display and storage of vehicles available for sale, parking areas for customers and employees, vehicle repair facilities, facilities for body work, painting, or restoration, and sale of parts.

"Awning" means a movable shelter supported entirely from the exterior wall of a building and of a type that can be retracted, folded, or collapsed against the face of the supporting building.

"Bars and lounges" mean establishments whose primary activity is the sale of alcohol beverages, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, to be consumed on the premises. Bars and lounges include taverns, night clubs, private clubs, bottle clubs, and similar facilities serving alcohol beverages.

"Bed and breakfast establishment" means a building or portion thereof with kitchen facilities for the customary service of breakfast at no additional cost to patrons and with guest units designed to be used, let, or hired for occupancy by persons on a temporary basis and containing not more than five (5) such rooms.

"Block" means an area of land within a subdivision or proposed subdivision and bounded entirely by streets, roads, or other thoroughfares, except alleys or the external boundaries of the subdivision.

"Board of adjustment" means the board whose members are appointed by city council that is vested with the powers set forth in Chapter 17.88 of this title.

"Brewery" means an establishment that manufactures malt liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, on site. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to bars, restaurants, tasting rooms, or storage.

"Brewpub" means a restaurant that includes the manufacturing of malt liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, as an accessory use.

"Buffer" means a screen which provides a visual barrier and noise abatement around the perimeter of mobile home parks and travel trailer parks excluding areas of ingress and egress. The screen can consist of any combination of the following: a wood or masonry fence, essentially solid, with a minimum height of six feet; or landscaping or a landscaped berm consisting of trees, plants, flowers, or other natural vegetation. At no point can the screen be less than three feet in height. At the time of construction, sixty (60) percent of the perimeter area where the screen is to be placed must be at least six feet in height.

"Building" means any structure supported by columns and/or walls or other structures designed to enclose space.

"Building height" means the vertical distance as measured from the average finished grade to the point lying one-half the distance between the lowest and highest point on the roof of the building.

"Building official" means the city official(s) appointed or retained by the city to administer or enforce the building codes adopted by the city and other such codes and other regulations as the city may so designate.

"Café." See "Restaurant."



“Campground” means an area to be used for transient occupancy by camping in tents, camp trailers, travel trailers, motor homes, recreational vehicles, and/or similar movable or temporary sleeping quarters of any kind.

"Canopy" means a permanently roofed shelter wholly or partially covering a sidewalk, driveway, or another similar area, that may be wholly supported by a building or may be wholly or partially supported by columns, poles, or braces extended from the ground.

“Cemetery” means land used or dedicated to the burial of the dead, including crematoriums, mausoleums, necessary sales, and maintenance facilities. Mortuaries shall be included when operated within the boundary of such cemetery.

“Child care center” means a facility, by whatever name known, which is maintained for the whole or part of the day for the care of five (5) or more children eighteen (18) years of age or younger and not related to the owner, operator or manager thereof, whether such facility is operated with or without compensation for such care and with or without stated education purposes..

"Churches, places of worship or assembly " means any building which people regularly use to attend, participate in, or hold religious services, meetings, and other activities. This definition shall include buildings in which the religious services of any denomination are held. Accessory uses commonly include, but are not limited to, summer camps.

"City" or "the city" means the city of Leadville, Colorado.

"Collector street" means a street of limited continuity serving or intended to serve as a feeder of local traffic into one or more major thoroughfares.

“Commercial cutting and storage of firewood” means the falling, chopping, cutting, splitting, or otherwise preparing timber or logs for commercial sales and/or storage of these products on the premises.

"Commercial greenhouse" means a greenhouse for agricultural production.

“Commercial use” means activity involving the sale of goods or services carried out for profit.

"Common open space" means a parcel of land, an area of water or a combination of land and water within the site designated for a planned unit development designed and intended primarily for the use or enjoyment of residents, occupants, and owners of the planned unit development.

The "commission" or the "planning commission" means the Leadville planning and zoning commission.

“Community center” means a building or portion of a building used for nonprofit, cultural, educational, recreational, religious, or social activities which is open to the public, or a designated part of the public, usually owned and operated by a public or nonprofit group or agency. Examples of community centers are learning centers, senior centers, and similar uses.

"Comprehensive plan" means a master plan or comprehensive plan adopted by the Leadville planning commission and/or the city council and all attachments and/or amendments to that plan.

"Conditional use permit" means a use as defined in Chapter 17.52 and may indefinitely run with the land rather than ceasing upon sale of the business as long as the land use remains the same and there are no violations of the municipal code.

"Construction" means the act of adding an addition or modifications to an existing structure or the erection of a new principal or accessory structure on a lot or parcel.

"Convalescent home". See Nursing Home

"Cottage industry" means a commercial operation conducted within or adjacent to a dwelling unit, in which the dwelling unit is occupied as a residence. In order to qualify for treatment as a cottage industry, the dwelling unit must be continuously occupied as a residence; the absence or cessation of the occupation of the dwelling unit as a residence shall render the cottage industry a commercial operation, subject to all of the requirements of this title.

1. The cottage industry may offer articles for sale or delivery on the premises;
2. The cottage industry use must be contained within or adjacent to and integrated with the dwelling unit, but is not required to be operated entirely within the dwelling unit;
3. Up to three persons, in addition to those persons residing within the dwelling unit may be employed in the operation;
4. All signs must be in compliance with the applicable requirements for the zoning district in which the property is located;
5. No more than three motor vehicles, in addition to those owned and operated by the persons dwelling in the dwelling unit, may be parked or stored at or adjacent to the cottage industry premises for more than three hours continuously.

"Demolition" means any act or process that destroys in part or in whole a designated historic structure or a structure within the National Historic Landmark District.

"Density" means the number of dwelling units per acre of land.

"Detoxification center". See "Substance Abuse Treatment Facility".

"Development" means any construction or activity which changes the basic character or the use of the land on which the construction or activity occurs.

"Distillery" means an establishment where spiritous liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, are manufactured. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to tasting rooms open to the public.

"Distillery pub" means a restaurant that includes the manufacturing of spiritous liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, as an accessory use.

"Distribution facility" means a use where goods are received and/or stored for delivery to the ultimate customer at remote locations.

"District" means a physical or geographic area where a common set of land use regulations and/or development standards apply.

"Dwelling unit" or "dwelling" means a building or structure or portion therein, including a modular structure, designed to be used as the living quarters for one person, family or household.

"Dwelling, multifamily" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, that was designed to house or houses more than two families, as defined herein.

"Dwelling, single-family detached" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, designed for or occupied by a single-family as defined herein. Except as otherwise indicated, a "manufactured home" is also included within the definition of a "single-family dwelling, detached." However, a "mobile home" is not included within the definition of a single-family dwelling, detached."

"Dwelling, single-family attached" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, designed for occupancy and ownership by one family that is connected by a common wall to another single-family dwelling, such as a townhome.

"Dwelling, two-family" means a dwelling, which may be a modular structure, designed for occupancy by two families, such as a duplex.

"Educational institution" means public, private, or parochial institution at the primary, elementary, middle, high school, or post-secondary level, or trade or business schools, that provide educational instruction to students. Accessory uses include play areas, cafeterias, recreational and sport facilities, auditoriums, and before- or after-school day care.

"Electric vehicle (EV) charging station" means a motor vehicle parking lot where EVs can either recharge batteries for free or for a fee. EV charging stations may be allowed as an accessory use to any use where parking is required or provided.

"Electric vehicle (EV) charging station, private" means an EV charging station that is not open to the general public.

"Electric vehicle (EV) charging station, public" means an EV charging station that is accessible without restrictions on which drivers can utilize the station.

"Entertainment facility" means a structure, complex, or facility used for entertainment and amusement activities. Entertainment facilities, either indoor or outdoor, do not include any business defined as a sexually oriented business by this title or athletic facilities.

“Entertainment facility, indoor” means a structure, complex, or facility for the presentation of exclusively indoor amusement and entertainment, including indoor motion picture theaters, theaters for indoor live performances, studios for arts education, such as dance or painting, bowling alleys, video arcades, and shooting ranges or arcades.

“Entertainment facility, outdoor” means a structure, complex, or facility used for amusement and entertainment that is fully or partially outdoors, including concert facilities, rodeos, racing facilities, golf courses or golf driving ranges, fairgrounds, and amusement parks.

"Exterior architectural appearance" means the architectural character and general composition of the exterior of a structure, including but not limited to, the kind, color, and texture of the building material(s) and the type, design, and character of all windows, visible roof surfaces, doors, lighting fixtures, sign, and related elements.

"FAA" means the Federal Aviation Administration.

“Fabrication”. See “Manufacture of materials”.

"Family" means one or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and maintaining a common household but not including boarding or rooming houses, lodges, clubs, hotels or motels. Except as otherwise provided herein, "family" shall also include persons that are not related by blood, marriage, adoption, or legal custody occupying a residential dwelling unit and living as a single household if the occupants are handicapped persons as defined in Title VIII or the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988; or disabled persons as defined by Section 24-34-301, C.R.S.; additional necessary persons employed in the care and supervision of such handicapped or disabled persons.

“Family child care home” means a facility for child care operated with or without compensation or educational purposes in a place of residence of a family or person for the purpose of providing less than twenty-four-hour care for children under the age of eighteen years who are not related to the head of such home. “Family child care home” may include infant-toddler child care homes, large child care homes, experienced provider child care homes, and such other types of family child care homes designated under the General Rules for Child Care Facilities, 12 C.C.R. 2509-8, Section 7.701 et seq., as amended. For purposes of this definition, the term “place of residence” means the place or abode where a person actually lives and provides child care.

“Farm stand” means a temporary building or structure, not to exceed a gross floor area of 500 square feet, from which agricultural products produced on the premises are sold.

“Fence” means an artificially constructed barrier of any material or combination of materials erected to enclose, screen, or separate areas.

"FCC" means the Federal Communication Commission.

"Formula business" means any restaurant, café, bar and lounge, hotel, rooming or boarding house, any retail business, automotive sales and services, and any personal services that has seven or

more other establishments in operation, or with local land use or permit entitlements already approved and effective, located anywhere in the United States. Electric vehicle charging stations shall not be considered formula businesses. In addition to the seven establishments either in operation or with local land use or permit entitlements approved for operation, the business maintains two or more of the following features: A standardized array of merchandise, standardized array of services, a standardized facade, a standardized decor and color scheme, uniform apparel, standardized sign, a trademark, or a service mark.

1. "Standardized array of merchandise" means fifty (50) percent or more of in-stock merchandise from a single distributor bearing uniform markings.
2. "Standardized array of services" means as a common menu or set of services priced and performed in a consistent manner.
3. "Trademark" means a word, phrase, symbol or design, or a combination of words, phrases, symbols or designs that identifies and distinguishes the source of the goods from one party from those of others.
4. "Service mark" means a word, phrase, symbol or design, or a combination of words, phrases, symbols or designs that identifies and distinguishes the source of a service from one party from those of others.
5. "Facade" means the face or front of a building, including awnings, looking onto a street or an open space.
6. "Décor" means the style of interior furnishings, which may include but is not limited to, style of furniture, wall coverings or permanent fixtures.
7. "Color scheme" means a selection of colors used throughout the establishments, such as on the furnishings, permanent fixtures, and wall coverings, or as used on the facade.
8. "Uniform apparel" means standardized items of clothing including but not limited to standardized aprons, pants, shirts, smocks or dresses, hats, and pins (other than name tags), and standardized colors of clothing.

“Frontage, business” means the horizontal, linear dimension of that side of a building occupied by a single business or use which abuts a street, a mall, or other circulation area open to the general public and which has a public entrance to the building; in industrial districts, a building side with an entrance open to employees in a business frontage, where more than one business or use occupies a building, each such use having a public entrance (or, in industrial districts, an employee entrance) for its exclusive use is considered to have its own business frontage, which is the linear frontage of the portion of the building occupied by that business or use and containing the entrance.

"Garage, noncommercial" means a building designed for the shelter, storage or maintenance of motor vehicles owned and operated by the owner of such building where no activity is carried out for profit.

"Grade" means the mean point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between a structure (whether a building, sign structure, or other) and a point five feet distant from the structure, or the mean point of elevation of the finished surface of the ground between the structure and the property lines if it is less than five feet distant from the structure. In case the structure is within five feet of a public sidewalk, alley or other public way, the grade shall be the elevation of the sidewalk, alley or public way.

"Greenhouse" means a building with a roof and sides constructed of glass or other transparent or translucent material and in which the temperature and humidity can be regulated for the cultivation of plants.

"Gross density" means the average number of dwelling units per acre of a development or a proposed development.

"Gross floor area" means the total floor area of a structure as measured along the outside walls at floor level and including all floors but excluding open balconies and porches or enclosed parking areas and related features.

"Group homes" means a residential facility, whether or not licensed by the state, for the purpose of providing twenty-four-hour staff care, shelter, supervision, training and/or rehabilitation to eight or more developmentally disabled persons, mentally ill persons, or disabled persons, or a residential facility, whether or not licensed by the state, for any number of children, or for any number of persons sixty (60) years of age or older; provided, that such group home for elderly persons: (a) shall not be located within seven hundred fifty (750) feet of another such home; and (b) shall comply with any state, county, or municipal health, safety, and fire codes who do not need skilled and intermediate care facilities, plus no more than two live-in staff persons employed in the care and supervision of such elderly persons.

A group home or residential group home shall not include fewer than eight persons occupying a residential dwelling unit and living as a single household if the occupants are handicapped persons as defined in Title VIII or the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988; or disabled persons as defined by Section 24-34-501, C.R.S., and such additional necessary persons employed in the care and supervision of such handicapped or disabled persons.

"Guest unit" means any room, group of rooms, or other portion of a dwelling unit, accessory dwelling unit, hotel, motel, lodge, bed-and-breakfast establishment, time share estate, rooming or boarding house, or similar structure, that does not constitute the entire dwelling unit or other type of structure, is used or intended to be used for living and sleeping, has adequate egress, and is available for lease or rent as a single unit.

"Habitation" means occupancy of any dwelling unit, including dependent mobile homes, for more than twenty-four (24) hours in a seven-day period.

"Harboring of chickens" means activities, definitions, and regulations set forth in section 6.04.020 of the Leadville Municipal Code.

1. "Adjoining property and adjacent specific to harboring of chickens" includes all lots and parcels of land so long as any portion of the lot or parcel is located within twenty (20) feet of the outer boundary or perimeter of the property in question.

"Historic district" means the Leadville National Historic Landmark (NHL) district designated by the National Park Service.

"Home occupation" means any use within a dwelling and carried on by the inhabitants, which use is clearly additional and secondary to the use of the dwelling for residential purposes and which does not change the character thereof, nor generate traffic or parking requirements which significantly or adversely affect the residential character of the neighborhood. A family child care home is not considered a home occupation. A home occupation is an occupation or a profession that:

1. Is customarily carried on in a dwelling unit;
2. Is carried on by a member of the family residing in the dwelling unit with not more than one assistant who is not a resident of the premises;
3. Is clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the dwelling unit for residential purposes; occupying not more than twenty-five (25) percent of the total floor area of the dwelling;
4. Conforms to the following additional conditions:
  - a. The occupation or profession shall be carried on wholly within the principal building.
  - b. A sign shall not be lit, not exceed two square feet, and be constructed of wood and nonreflective paint or other such materials as may be allowed by planning officials.
  - c. No offensive noise, vibrations, smoke, dust, odors, heat or glare shall be produced.
  - d. No additions to or alterations of the exterior of the dwelling unit, including outside entrances for the purpose of the home occupation, shall be permitted.
  - e. The conduct of the home occupation and its external effects must not interfere with the peace, quiet, and dignity of the neighborhood and adjoining properties.

"Hospice". See Nursing Home.

"Hospital" means an institution designed for the diagnosis, treatment, and care of human illness or infirmity and providing health services, primarily for inpatients, including as related facilities, laboratories, outpatient departments, training facilities, and staff offices.

"Hostel" means an establishment providing transient, overnight accommodations, typically characterized by low cost, shared use of a self-service kitchen, common areas, guest units (either private or shared) and bathroom facilities.

"Hotel" means a building or portion thereof with guest units used or designated for use by or hired for occupancy by persons on a temporary basis and including at least 275 square feet.

"Improvements" means any utility, roadway, survey monument, building, structural or other changes to the land as may be required by or provided for in this title. "Junkyard" means a building, structure, or parcel of land or any combination thereof used for the collection, storage or sale of waste paper, rags, scrap metal, or discarded or abandoned materials and equipment or parts thereof or for the collecting, disassembly, storage or salvaging or demolition of vehicles, machinery or other materials and including the commercial sale of whole items or parts thereof, but not including architectural feature salvage.

"Kennel" means an establishment in which animals are boarded, groomed, bred, or trained for commercial gain. This does not include stables.

"Loading area" means a parking space other than a public street or alley for parking commercial vehicles for the purpose of loading or unloading materials or merchandise.

"Local street" means a street serving individual lots within a subdivision.

"Long-term rental unit" means any dwelling unit, including an accessory dwelling unit, or guest unit that is available for lease for a term of thirty (30) consecutive days or more.

"Lot" means a portion or parcel of land, including a portion of a platted subdivision, occupied or intended to be occupied by a building or use and its accessories, together with such yards as required under the provisions of this title, that is an integral unit of land held under unified ownership in fee or co-tenancy, or under legal control tantamount to such ownership.

"Lot area" means the total horizontal area within the lot lines of a lot.

"Lot depth" means the average distance from the front to the rear lot lines of a lot.

"Lot width" means the average distance between the side lot lines of a lot.

"Lumberyard" means an area used for the storage, distribution, and sale of finished or rough-cut lumber and lumber products, but not including the manufacture or fabrication of lumber, lumber products, or firewood.

"Majority" means a majority of the members of the planning commission or city council present for a regular or special meeting to conduct business pursuant to this title, unless otherwise specified in state statute or city ordinance.

"Manufactured home" means a single-family dwelling which: (1) is partially or entirely manufactured in a factory; (2) is installed on an engineered, permanent foundation; (3) has brick, wood, or cosmetically equivalent siding and a pitched roof; (4) is certified pursuant to the National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq., as amended; and (5) is built for the Colorado climate and snow load according to the Department



of Housing and Urban Development Standards established under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq.

“Manufacture of materials” means the mechanical or chemical transformation of materials or substances into new products, including the assembling of component parts, the manufacturing of products, and the blending of materials, such as lubricating oils, plastics, or resins.

“Marijuana hospitality business” means a facility, which may be mobile, licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Code to permit the consumption of marijuana in accordance with the Colorado Marijuana Code and the city's Code.

“Marijuana hospitality and sales business” means a facility, which cannot be mobile, licensed under the Colorado Marijuana Code to permit the consumption of only the retail marijuana or retail marijuana products it has sold pursuant to the provisions of the city's Code.

“Marijuana research and development facility” means a facility licensed pursuant to and used for the purposes set forth in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. 44-10-507.

“Mausoleum”. See Cemetery.

“Medical Clinic” means a building or group of buildings in which the primary use is the provision of health care services to patients or clients. Examples include but are not limited to medical and dental laboratories, blood banks, oxygen providers, integrative medicine and holistic or homeopathic therapies, and other miscellaneous types of medical services.

“Medical marijuana store” means a facility, licensed pursuant to C.R.S. § 44-10-501, where medical marijuana is sold to registered patients or primary caregivers as defined in section 14 of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution. This definition does not include primary caregivers.

“Medical marijuana products manufacturer” means a facility licensed pursuant to and described in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. § 44-10-503.

“Medical marijuana cultivation facility” means a facility licensed pursuant to and used for the purposes set forth in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. § 44-10-502.

“Medical marijuana testing facility” means a facility licensed pursuant to and used for the purposes set forth in the Colorado Marijuana Code at C.R.S. § 44-10-504.

“Medical marijuana transporter premises” means the premises permitted under C.R.S. § 44-10-505 to be maintained and operated by a person licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Code to operate a business as described in C.R.S. § 44-10-505.

“Membership clubs and lodges” means permanent, headquarters-type, and meeting facilities for organizations operating on a membership basis for the promotion of the interests of the members, including facilities for: business associations; civic, social, and fraternal organizations; country clubs (golf courses separately defined); labor unions and similar organizations; political organizations; professional membership organizations; other membership organizations.

“Mobile home, dependent” means any vehicular camping unit, travel trailer unit or similar mobile vehicular unit, including buses, equipped with or without a working flush toilet and working bathtub or shower.

“Mobile home, independent” means a structure that: (1) is transportable in one or more sections; (2) is less than twenty-four (24) feet in width or thirty-six (36) feet in length; (3) is built on a permanent chassis; (4) is designed to be used as a place of living for a single-family, with or without a permanent foundation, when connected to the required utilities; and (5) includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical systems contained therein. "Manufactured home" is not included within the definition of "mobile home." However, structures commonly called "single-wide mobile homes" (whether certified pursuant to the National Mobile home Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. Section 5401, et seq., as amended, or not) and any other form of transportable housing which does not meet the definition of a "manufactured home" under this title is included within the definition of "mobile home."

"Mobile home park" means a site or facility containing or proposed to contain two or more spaces for mobile homes.

"Mobile home space" means a plot of ground or a lot within a mobile home park designed to be occupied by one independent mobile home.

"Modular structure” means a structure consisting of prefabricated modules that are primarily built off-site in a factory and are assembled on-site. Modular structures may be any type of residential structure or commercial structure. Modular structures may comprise an entire structure or a portion of a structure. A modular structure is not a manufactured home or a mobile home.

"Motel”. See “Hotel”.

“Motor vehicle parking lot" means an open space or an enclosed structure, exclusive of drives, turning areas or loading spaces, devoted to the parking of one or more motor vehicles.

“Museum” means an establishment operated as a repository for a collection of nature, scientific, literary curiosities, or objects of interest or works of art, not including the regular sale or distribution of the objects collected. Museums may include incidental retail and food/beverage sales.

"Nonconforming" means any preexisting building, structure or use conflicting with one or more provisions of this title applicable to the zoning district in which the building, structure or use is located.

“Nursery” means any land used to raise trees, shrubs, flowers, and other plants for sale or for transplanting.

“Nursing Home” means any facility which provides meals, lodging, and nursing care for compensation.

"Nudity" or "state of nudity" means:

1. The appearance of human bare buttocks, anus, male genitals, female genitals, or the areola or nipple of the female human breast; or
2. A state of dress that fails opaquely and fully to cover the human buttocks, anus, male or female genitals, pubic region, or areola or nipple of the female breast.

"Open space" means the land area within a subdivision, proposed subdivision, or other development designated, reserved, and dedicated to outdoor uses, including but not limited to recreation, flood control, scenic uses, pathways, and related uses but excluding roadways.

"Orchard" means the establishment, care, and harvesting of more than 25 fruit-bearing trees for the purpose of selling the fruit to others.

"Outdoor guiding" means a use where professional outdoor guides lead groups on outdoor activities such as hunting, fishing, skiing, camping, photography, or other outdoor recreational activities. This may include accessory retail or rental of equipment for the patrons participating in the outings. Outdoor guiding does not include outdoor recreational equipment rentals.

"Outdoor recreation equipment rental" means any use where motorized recreation equipment such as snowmobiles, off-highway vehicles, or utility vehicles are stored or displayed outdoors for rental purposes. This use may include office space and repair and maintenance of rental equipment."

"Outdoor storage" means the storage of materials, refuse, junk and/or other similar items outside of a building.

"Outdoor storage of snow" means the storage of snow outside a building.

"Outdoor storage screened" means all outdoor storage required to be screened from view from adjacent streets or the first floor of adjacent buildings.

"Outdoor storage, unscreened" means all outdoor storage not required to be screened from view from adjacent streets or the first floor of adjacent buildings.

"Outfitting". See "Outdoor guiding."

"Owner" means any person with fee title to any parcel of land within the city who desires to permit the development of or to construct, install or erect a telecommunications facility upon such owner's property.

"Parapet wall" means that part of a wall or railing which is entirely above the roof.

"Park" means an area or facility to be used for recreation, exercise, sports, education, rehabilitation, or similar activities, or an area intended to enhance the enjoyment of natural features or natural beauty.

"Parking area." See "Motor vehicle parking lot."

"Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, company or other public or corporate body including the federal government and any political subdivision, agency, instrumentality or corporation of the state.

"Personal services" means establishments primarily engaged in providing services involving the care of a person or his/her personal goods, including but not limited to, dry cleaning, cosmetics, beauty and barbershops, funeral services, and domestic services.

"Pet store" means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of household pets.

"Planned unit development" means an area of land, controlled by one or more landowners, to be developed or developed under unified control or a unified plan of development for a number of dwelling units, commercial, educational, recreational or industrial uses, or any combination of the foregoing, the plan for which does not necessarily correspond in lot size, bulk, or type of use, density, lot coverage, open space or other restriction to the provisions contained elsewhere in this chapter.

"Planning commission" means the Leadville planning and zoning commission.

"Planning official" means the city officials(s) appointed or retained by the city to administer or enforce this title and associated regulations and other such codes and regulations as the city may so designate.

"Playground." See "Park."

"Playing field." See "Athletic facility."

"Processing." See "Manufacture of materials."

"Professional and business offices" means professional or government offices including accounting, auditing, and bookkeeping services; advertising agencies; architectural, engineering, planning, and surveying services; attorneys; counseling services; court reporting services; data processing and computer services; detective agencies and similar services; educational, scientific, and research organizations; employment, stenographic, secretarial, and word processing services; government offices including agency and administrative office facilities; management, public relations, and consulting services; photography and commercial art studios; writers and artists offices outside the home. This does not include medical offices or offices that are incidental and accessory to another business or sales activity that is the principal use.

"Public entrance" means an entrance to a building or premises that is customarily used or intended for use by the general public and excludes fire exits, special employee entrances, and loading dock entrances not generally used by the public.

"Public utility facility" means major buildings, structures, and facilities including but not limited to generating and switching stations, electrical substations, water or sewer pumping stations, and telephone exchanges, related to the furnishing (storage and transportation) of utility services, including but not limited to electric, gas, telephone, cable, water, sewer, and public transit, to the

public. Major public utility facilities located in rights-of-way or easements are not uses required to be zoned.

“Public and government facility, service, or building” means the use of a property for a public purpose by any department or branch of government. Examples include but are not limited to libraries, post offices, law enforcement, and emergency services.

"Recycle center" means a totally enclosed structure in which used materials are collected prior to shipment to others who will use those materials to manufacture new products.

"Referral agency" means an agency, organization, unit of government, political subdivision, group or organization to whom submittal materials and related text maps and graphic items are submitted for review, comment and/or recommendations to be returned to the Leadville planning commission or the Leadville city council.

“Rental shop” means an establishment that conducts business with customers under conditions and terms agreed upon in a rental agreement or contract, which may be implied, explicit, or written.

“Restaurant” means an establishment where food and drink are prepared, table service is provided, and consumption takes place primarily within the principal structure, including but not limited to cafés.

“Restaurant with drive up windows” means a restaurant accommodating the patron’s automobile from which the occupants may receive a service or in which products purchased from the restaurant may be received.

“Retail marijuana cultivation facility” has the same meaning as “marijuana cultivation facility” as defined in section 16(2)(h) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.

“Retail marijuana products manufacturer” has the same meaning as “marijuana product manufacturing facility” as defined in section 16(2)(j) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.

“Retail marijuana store” has the same meaning as defined in section 16(2)(n) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution.

“Retail marijuana testing facility” means “marijuana testing facility” as defined in section 16(2)(l) of article XVIII of the Colorado constitution and that is licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Code.

"Retail marijuana transporter premises" means the premises permitted under C.R.S. § 44-10-605 to be maintained and operated by a person licensed by the Colorado Marijuana Code to operate a business as described in C.R.S. § 44-10-605.

“Retail sales, general” means a facility or area for the retail sale of general merchandise or food to the general public for direct use and not for wholesale. This use includes but is not limited to

sale of general merchandise, clothing and other apparel, flowers and household plants, dry goods, convenience and specialty foods, hardware, alcohol beverages, and similar consumer goods.

“Retirement home.” See “Senior living facility.”

"Roadway" means that portion of a street right-of-way designated for vehicular traffic.

"Roof line" means the highest portion on any building where an exterior wall encloses usable floor space (including roof areas for housing mechanical equipment) or the highest point on any parapet wall if the parapet wall extends around the entire perimeter of the building.

"Rooming or boarding house" means a building or portion thereof with guest units designed to be used, let or hired for occupancy by persons as long-term rental units or on a permanent basis and containing between one and five such guest units.

“Sawmill” means an operation or facility which has, as its predominant purpose, the sawing or planning of logs or trees into rough slabs.

“Scenic railways” means a railway that, in provides opportunities for the enjoyment of natural and/or man-made scenic resources and access or direct views to areas or scenes of exceptional beauty or historic or cultural interest. The aesthetic values of scenic routes often are protected and enhanced by regulations governing the development of property or the placement of outdoor advertising.

"School" means a facility that provides a curriculum of academic instruction, including kindergartens, elementary schools, middle schools, junior high schools, high schools, or the campus of a college or university.

“Self-storage facility” means a building or group of buildings that are rented and designed, through individual compartments or controlled stalls, for self-service storage purposes.

“Senior living facility” means a multifamily dwelling or complex containing dwelling units designed for and principally occupied by senior citizens. Such facilities commonly include a congregate meals program in a common dining area but exclude institutional care facilities such as nursing homes as elsewhere defined.

“Service station” means an establishment primarily engaged in the repair or maintenance of motor vehicles, trailers, and similar large mechanical equipment, including paint, body and fender, and major engine and engine part overhaul, provided it is conducted within a completely enclosed building.

“Service station, gasoline” means any building, structure, or area of land used for the retail sale of automobile fuels, oils, and accessories, where repair service, if any, is incidental. May include the sale of propane or kerosene as accessory uses.

"Setback" means the distance required by the provisions of this title between the face of a building and the lot line opposite that building face, measured perpendicular to the building. In computing the minimum setback requirement, the following architectural features shall not be

considered: open fire escapes projecting up to a distance of four feet from the face of a building, walls, rails or fences. Setback distances shall be measured from the edge of the eaves of the structure. Where angled buildings or lots exist or streets are curved, setbacks shall be measured from the shortest distance to the lot line.

"Sexually oriented business" means any adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty store, adult video store, adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, nude modeling studio, or sexual encounter center:

1. "Adult arcade" means any commercial establishment to which the public is permitted or invited where, for any form of consideration, one or more still or motion picture projectors, or similar machines, or other image producing machines, for viewing by five or fewer persons per machine at any one time, are used to regularly show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic, digital, or electronic reproductions depicting specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas.
2. "Adult bookstore, adult novelty store," or "adult video" store means a commercial establishment that devotes a significant or substantial portion of its business to any one or more of the following:
  - a. The sale, rental or viewing (for any form of consideration) of books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides, or other visual representations which are characterized by the depiction or description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas; or
  - b. The sale or rental of instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use or marketed primarily for engaging in specified sexual activities; or
  - c. A significant or substantial portion of its business is shown by characteristics including, but not limited to, some or all of the following:
    - i. A significant or substantial portion of its stock in trade consists of the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above; or
    - ii. A significant or substantial portion of its revenues is derived from the rental or sale of items listed in subsections a. and/or (b) above; or
    - iii. A significant or substantial portion of its floor space, shelf space or storage space is devoted to the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above; or
    - iv. A significant or substantial portion of its advertising is devoted to the items listed in subsections a. and/or b. above.
3. "Adult cabaret" means a nightclub, bar, restaurant, concert hall, auditorium, or other commercial establishment which regularly features live performances that are

characterized by the exhibition of specified sexual activities or the exposure of specified anatomical areas.

4. "Adult motel" means a motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which offers public accommodations, for any form of consideration, and provides patrons with closed circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or description of specified sexual activities or specified anatomical type of material by means of a sign visible from the public right-of-way, or by means of any off premises advertising including, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television, and offers a sleeping room for rent for a period of time less than five hours.
5. "Adult motion picture theater" means any commercial establishment to which the public is permitted or invited, where for any form of consideration, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, slides or similar photographic reproductions are shown for more than one hundred (100) days annually that have an emphasis on depicting or describing specified sexual activities or specified anatomical areas. Any establishment meeting the definition of an adult arcade is not an adult motion picture theater.
6. "Nude modeling studio" means any place where a person who appears in a state of nudity or displays specified anatomical areas is provided for money or any form of consideration to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed, or similarly depicted by other persons. The provisions of this definition shall not apply to:
  - a. A college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or
  - b. A private college or university that maintains and operates educational programs in which credits are transferable to a college, junior college, or university supported entirely or partly by taxation; or
  - c. A business located in a structure that has no sign visible from the exterior of the structure and no other advertising that indicates a nude person is available for viewing.
7. "Sexual encounter center" means a business or commercial enterprise that regularly offers, for any form of consideration, activities between male and female persons and/or persons of the same sex when one or more of the persons are in a state of nudity or semi nudity. This definition does not apply to any actions in compliance with any treatment or examination of another person for a bona fide medical purpose when such treatment or examination is conducted in a manner substantially consistent with reasonable medical practices, or to bona fide private parties not open to the general public.
8. "Specified anatomical areas" means:
  - a. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus, or female breasts below a point immediately above the areola; or



- b. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered.
9. "Specified sexual activities" means:
- a. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal, or tumescence;
  - b. Masturbation, actual or simulated;
  - c. Sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or simulated, including intercourse, oral copulation, or sodomy; and
  - d. Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, anus, buttocks, or female breasts.

"Short-term rental" or "short-term rental unit" shall have the same meaning as defined in Section 5.12.030.

"Solar energy system" means an energy system, including but not limited to a ground-mounted solar energy system, which converts solar energy to usable thermal, mechanical, chemical, or electrical energy to meet all or a significant part of a structure's energy requirements. Solar energy systems may be comprised of devices such as solar panels, arrays, and related equipment, pipes, batteries, and wiring.

"Special event" means an organized event or a group activity including, but not limited to a performance, live music, broadcast music, commercial entertainment, assembly, contest, exhibit, ceremony, athletic competition, reading, or other similar gatherings where anything of value is exchanged in return for attendance or entry into the event. Special events do not include wedding events.

"Stable" means an establishment designed for feeding, housing, and exercising of horses not owned by the owner of the premises and for which the owner of the premises may receive compensation.

"Street" means a way for vehicular traffic, whether designated as or called a street, highway, road, avenue, parkway or however else named or designated.

"Structural alteration" means any addition to or subtraction of parts of a building or structure.

"Structure" means anything constructed or erected upon the ground except utility poles and like protrusions, flag poles or walls and fences up to six feet in height.

"Subdivision" means a tract of land which is divided into two or more lots, tracts, parcels, sites, separate interests (including leasehold interests), interests in common or other division for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of transfer of ownership or for building or other development or for street use by reference to such subdivision or recorded plat thereof; or a tract of land, including

land to be used for condominiums, apartments or any other multiple-dwelling units, or for time-sharing dwelling units.

“Substance abuse treatment facility” means a facility for the purposes of temporary or long-term inpatient treatment of victims of alcohol or drug use or addiction.

"Telecommunication facility" means a facility that transmits and/or receives electromagnetic signals. It includes antennas, cables, wires, conduit, microwave dishes, and other types of equipment for the transmission or receipt of such signals, telecommunication towers or similar structures supporting said equipment, equipment buildings, parking area, and other accessory development. A telecommunication facility operates at less than one thousand (1,000) watts of effective radiated power. A telecommunication facility does not include:

1. Residential television antennas;
2. Wireless cable satellite dish antennas;
3. Amateur radio antennas; or
4. Dish antennas less than one meter in diameter or measured diagonally.

"Telecommunication facility, accessory equipment" means equipment, including buildings and cabinets, used to protect and enable the operation of radio switching equipment, backup power, and other devices, but not including antennas, that are necessary for the operation of a telecommunication facility.

"Telecommunication facility, building roof-mounted" means a telecommunication facility that is supported and/or projects above the roof of a legally existing building or transmission structure.

"Telecommunication facility, building wall, or facade-mounted" means a telecommunication facility that is supported and/or mounted on the wall of a legally existing building or transmission structure and does not project above the roof line. Facilities mounted on the side of a penthouse, mechanical screening, or other appurtenance, provided it would not project above the side of the appurtenance, and facilities mounted on towers for high voltage electrical transmission shall also be considered wall-mounted telecommunication facilities.

"Telecommunication facility, freestanding" means a telecommunication facility that consists of a stand-alone support structure or tower, antennas, and accessory equipment.

“Temporary use” means a use established for a limited duration of time with the intent to discontinue such use upon the expiration of the time period. Such use may or may not be permitted under the regulations for a given zoning district but may be allowed on a nonpermanent and temporary basis following the procedures in Chapter 17.64, Temporary Buildings and Uses.

"Time share estate" means any interest in real property, including condominiums, owned or leased by five or more persons or other devices including ownership in a corporation, cooperative,

partnership, or joint venture whereby the owners or lessees have formally or informally agreed that such owners or lessees shall have the preferred or exclusive use during specified periods of time. Any conveyance of a fractional fee estate or undivided interest by separate deed is within this definition and is hereby regulated within this title. A time share estate shall be deemed to be created upon the marketing, promotion, selling, or offering for sale a specified period or periods of time of occupancy in one or more residential units.

"Tower" means any structure that is designed and considered primarily for the purpose of supporting one or more antennas, including self-supporting lattice towers, guy towers, or monopole towers. The term includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers, common-carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, alternative tower structures, and the like.

"Tower, lattice" means a tower or structure designed and constructed primarily to support antenna or antennae and comprised of interconnected poles, pipes, bars, beams, strips, wires, or cross-members. A lattice tower shall include any type or form of a tower that incorporates guy or supporting wires. A lattice tower is not a monopole tower.

"Tower, monopole" means a structure designed and constructed to support antennae or antennae for the purpose of providing telecommunications services and which consists solely of a stand-alone, ground-mounted support pole, pipe, or other solid structure. A monopole tower shall not include any tower supported or attached to the guy or support wires. A monopole tower is not a lattice tower.

"Tract" means a parcel of land or a contiguous combination thereof.

"Transmission line" means any electric transmission line and its related facilities which emanate from a power plant or from a substation and terminate at a substation and which are designed for or are capable of the transmission of electricity at sixty-nine (69) kilovolts (KV) or more.

"Travel trailer park" means a site or facility containing or proposed to contain two or more travel trailer unit spaces.

"Travel trailer space" means a plot of ground or a lot within a travel trailer park or portion of a mobile home park designed to be occupied by one travel trailer unit or one camping unit.

"Travel trailer unit" means any pickup camper, a pickup with shell, motorhome, travel trailer, tent trailer, or similar mobile unit with sleeping quarters and not exceeding eight feet in body width at its widest point or forty (40) feet in body length and designed and used principally for recreational purposes or for the support of recreational or commercial uses.

"Use" means the purpose or function for which any land, structure or building is designed, constructed, maintained, or occupied.

"Use, accessory". See "Accessory use, building, or structure."

"Use by right" means permitted uses designated as use by right are subject to all other applicable regulations of this code and state and federal law.

"Use, principal" means the main use to which the premises is devoted and the principal purpose for which the premises exists.

"Use variance" means a deviation from Chapter 17.48 listing of prohibited uses by zoning district whereby an otherwise prohibited use in a given zoning district may be treated as a conditional use, and processed accordingly, for purposes of historic conservation. See also "variance" and section 17.44.080 and Chapters 17.48 and 17.52.

"Vacation lodge". See Hotel.

"Vacation rental". See Short-term rental.

"Variance" means any deviation, except a use variance, from the requirements of this title as allowed for by the board of adjustment. See also "use variance."

"Veterinary hospital" means an establishment that provides medical treatment and care to animals and which may include temporary or overnight boarding of animals that are recuperating from treatment. Common accessory uses may include but are not limited to kennels, parking, and storage.

"Wholesale" means the sale of goods and merchandise for resale instead of for direct consumption.

"Winery" means an establishment where vinous liquors, as that term is defined in the Colorado Liquor Code, are manufactured. Accessory uses may include but are not limited to bars, restaurants, tasting rooms, or storage.

"Yard" means the space on the same lot as a building or structure that is usually unoccupied and open to the sky except for landscaping improvements.

**Section 4. Repeal and Replace of Section 17.48.010 and 17.48.020 of the Leadville Municipal Code.** Section 17.48.010 of the Leadville Municipal Code, titled Designated, and Section 17.48.020, titled Uses Not Itemized, are hereby repealed and replaced to read in full as follows:

*(begins on next page)*

**17.48.010 – Designated**

The table below indicates which principal use(s) are allowed by right, which require an administrative permit, and which uses are conditional uses (that is, uses which the city may allow following detailed review). Any use not included in the table shall reviewed for compliance with 17.48.20. A blank square in the table below indicates that a use is prohibited.

TABLE 1

By-Right, Conditional and Prohibited Uses by Zoning District

R = A use allowed by Right

A = A use requiring an Administrative Permit as defined in Chapter 17.50

C = A use requiring a Conditional Permit as defined in Chapter 17.52

| Use Category            | Use Type                                         | Zoning Districts |     |    |    |   |    |
|-------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|---|----|
|                         |                                                  | R-1              | R-2 | TR | RC | C | TC |
| <b>Residential Uses</b> |                                                  |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
| Household Living        | Dwellings above or below commercial use          |                  | A   | A  | R  | A | R  |
|                         | Multifamily dwelling (3-4 units)                 | C                | R   | R  |    | R | R  |
|                         | Multifamily dwelling (5+ units)                  |                  | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                         | Single-family dwelling (attached and detached)   | R                | R   | R  |    | C | R  |
|                         | Two-family dwelling                              | R                | R   | R  |    | C | R  |
|                         | Mobile home park                                 |                  |     | C  |    |   |    |
| Group Living            | Group Homes                                      |                  | C   | C  |    |   | C  |
|                         | Retirement Home, Senior living facility          |                  | R   | C  |    | C | C  |
| Lodging Facilities      | Short-Term Rentals ( <i>Refer to Sec. 5.12</i> ) | A                | A   | A  | A  | A | A  |

| Use Category                                 | Use Type                                                                           | Zoning Districts |     |    |    |   |    |
|----------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|---|----|
|                                              |                                                                                    | R-1              | R-2 | TR | RC | C | TC |
| <b>Public, Institutional, and Civic uses</b> |                                                                                    |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
| Community and Cultural Facilities            | Cemeteries or mausoleums                                                           |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                              | Churches, place of worship or assembly                                             | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                                              | Community Center                                                                   | A                | A   | A  | R  | R | R  |
|                                              | Membership clubs and lodges                                                        |                  | C   | C  | R  | R | R  |
|                                              | Museums                                                                            | C                | C   | C  | R  | R | R  |
| Child Care Facilities                        | Childcare center                                                                   | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
| Educational Facilities                       | School and/or educational institutions                                             | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
| Parks and Open Space                         | Parks, Playgrounds, athletic facilities                                            | R                | R   | R  | C  | R | R  |
| Public Utilities and Facilities              | Public utility facility                                                            | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                                              | Public and government, facilities, services or buildings.                          | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                                              | Recycle Center                                                                     |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
|                                              | Solar energy facility                                                              |                  |     | A  |    | A | A  |
|                                              | Telecommunication facility                                                         | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
| Healthcare Facilities                        | Hospitals, medical clinics, nursing homes, or substance abuse treatment facilities |                  | C   | C  | C  | R | C  |
| Animal Services                              | Animal shelter                                                                     | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
| <b>Commercial Uses</b>                       |                                                                                    |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
| Agricultural Uses                            | Agricultural production                                                            |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
|                                              | Agricultural production related to the commercial production of animals            |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                              | Commercial cutting and storage of firewood                                         |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                              | Commercial greenhouses <500sf                                                      | A                | A   | A  | C  | A | A  |
|                                              | Commercial greenhouses >500sf                                                      |                  | C   | C  |    | C | C  |
|                                              | Lumber yard or sawmill                                                             |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                              | Orchards, nurseries, and/or related uses for                                       |                  |     | C  |    | C | C  |

| Use Category                 | Use Type                                                     | Zoning Districts |     |    |    |   |    |
|------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|---|----|
|                              |                                                              | R-1              | R-2 | TR | RC | C | TC |
|                              | commercial purposes                                          |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
|                              | Farm stand                                                   |                  |     | C  | C  | C | C  |
| Food and Beverage            | Bars and lounges, Brew pub, Distillery pub                   |                  |     | C  | R  | R | C  |
|                              | Restaurants                                                  |                  |     | C  | R  | R | R  |
|                              | Restaurant with drive up windows                             |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
| Lodging Facilities           | Bed and Breakfast establishments                             | C                | C   | R  | C  | C | R  |
|                              | Hotels and hostels                                           |                  |     | C  | R  | R | C  |
|                              | Rooming and boarding house or retirement home                |                  | C   | C  | C  | C | R  |
|                              | Time share estate                                            | A                | A   | A  | A  | A | A  |
| Marijuana Industries         | Medical and/or retail marijuana store                        |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
|                              | Marijuana hospitality business                               |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
|                              | Marijuana hospitality and sales business                     |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
| Offices                      | Professional and business offices                            |                  | C   | R  | R  | R | R  |
| Parking Facilities           | Motor vehicle parking lots                                   |                  | C   | C  | C  | R | C  |
| Personal Services            | Personal services                                            |                  | C   | C  | R  | R | R  |
| Recreation and Entertainment | Entertainment facility, indoor                               |                  |     | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                              | Entertainment facility, outdoor                              | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                              | Art Gallery                                                  |                  |     | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                              | Outdoor Guiding                                              |                  |     | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                              | Outdoor recreation equipment rental, with outdoor storage    |                  |     | C  | C  | R | C  |
|                              | Outdoor recreation equipment rental, without outdoor storage |                  |     | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                              | Stables (not permitted per Sec. 6.04.030)                    |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
|                              | Scenic railways                                              | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                              | Campgrounds and travel trailer park (See Ch. 17.56)          |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
| Retail                       | General retail sales >1500sf                                 |                  | C   | C  | R  | R | C  |
|                              | General retail sales <1500sf                                 |                  | C   | C  | R  | R | R  |
|                              | Architectural feature salvage                                |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
|                              | Rental Shop                                                  |                  | C   | C  | R  | R | R  |

| Use Category                    | Use Type                                                                                                                                                                                              | Zoning Districts |     |    |    |   |    |
|---------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|---|----|
|                                 |                                                                                                                                                                                                       | R-1              | R-2 | TR | RC | C | TC |
|                                 | Sexually oriented business                                                                                                                                                                            |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
| Vehicles and Equipment          | Automotive, recreational vehicles, or marine sales and service, excluding service stations                                                                                                            |                  |     |    | C  | R | C  |
|                                 | EV Charging Station, Public or Private                                                                                                                                                                |                  |     | C  | C  | R | R  |
|                                 | Motor vehicle parking lot                                                                                                                                                                             |                  | C   | C  | C  | R | C  |
|                                 | Service Station                                                                                                                                                                                       |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
|                                 | Service station, gasoline                                                                                                                                                                             |                  |     |    |    | R |    |
| Animal Services                 | Kennels, veterinary hospitals and pet stores                                                                                                                                                          |                  |     |    |    | C | C  |
| <b>Industrial Uses</b>          |                                                                                                                                                                                                       |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
| Manufacturing and Production    | Brewery, Distillery, Winery                                                                                                                                                                           |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                 | Cottage Industry                                                                                                                                                                                      | A                | A   | A  | A  | R | R  |
|                                 | Manufacture of materials not otherwise listed and <i>which will cause</i> noise, heat, dust, fumes or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood.                                   |                  |     | C  |    | C | C  |
|                                 | Manufacture of materials not otherwise listed and <i>which will not cause</i> noise, heat, dust, fumes, excessive traffic or parking or other adverse consequences that will impact the neighborhood. |                  |     | A  | A  | R | R  |
| Industrial Service and Research | Repair or servicing of agricultural, industrial, business, or consumer machinery, equipment, products, or by-products                                                                                 |                  |     | C  |    | C | C  |
| Warehouse and Distribution      | Non-commercial garages                                                                                                                                                                                | C                | C   | C  | C  | C | C  |
|                                 | Outdoor storage of snow                                                                                                                                                                               | R                | R   | R  | A  | R | R  |
|                                 | Screened or un-screened outdoor storage                                                                                                                                                               |                  |     | A  |    | C | A  |
|                                 | Self-storage facilities                                                                                                                                                                               |                  |     |    |    | R | C  |
|                                 | Wholesale and/or distribution facility with outdoor storage                                                                                                                                           |                  |     | C  |    | R | C  |



| Use Category                       | Use Type                                                       | Zoning Districts |     |    |    |   |    |
|------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----|----|----|---|----|
|                                    |                                                                | R-1              | R-2 | TR | RC | C | TC |
|                                    | Wholesale and/or distribution facility without outdoor storage |                  | C   | C  | R  | R | C  |
| Marijuana Industries               | Medical and/or retail marijuana cultivation facility           |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                    | Medical and/or retail marijuana products manufacturer          |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                    | Medical and/or retail marijuana testing facility               |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                    | Marijuana research and development facility                    |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
|                                    | Medical and/or retail marijuana transporter premises           |                  |     |    |    | C |    |
| <b>Accessory Uses</b>              |                                                                |                  |     |    |    |   |    |
| Accessory Uses                     | Accessory dwelling unit (Refer to Ch. 17.60)                   | R                | R   | R  |    | C | R  |
|                                    | Accessory use, building, or structure (Refer to Ch. 17.60)     | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Harboring of chickens                                          | A                | A   | A  |    | A | A  |
|                                    | Home occupation                                                | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Outdoor Storage                                                | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Short-Term Rentals (Refer to Sec. 5.12 of LMC)                 | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Solar energy system                                            | A                | A   | A  | A  | A | A  |
|                                    | Family child care home                                         | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Garages, noncommercial                                         | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Greenhouses                                                    | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Swimming pools and hot tubs                                    | R                | R   | R  | R  | R | R  |
|                                    | Satellite dishes                                               | R                | R   | R  | A  | R | R  |
|                                    | Fences up to 6 ft. in height                                   | R                | R   | R  | A  | R | R  |
|                                    | Fences exceeding 6 ft. in height                               | A                | A   | A  | A  | A | A  |
|                                    | Amateur radio and television towers                            | R                | R   | R  | A  | R | R  |
|                                    | Individual storage sheds                                       | A                | A   | A  | A  | A | A  |
| Fallout shelters for personal uses | R                                                              | R                | R   | R  | R  | R |    |

**17.48.020 Uses not listed.**

- A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to promote the health, safety, convenience, and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of the city by protecting and enhancing the character of the city's zoning districts and providing for efficient and fair development that respect property rights and ensure quality development.
- B. Generally. If a proposed use is not listed in section 17.48.010, then the planning official shall decide whether the proposed use is either functionally comparable to, or a subcategory of, a by-right, conditional, administratively permitted, or prohibited use. The planning official shall apply the following criteria to decide how the use will be regulated by this title:
1. A proposed use is a subcategory of a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use if, with regard to each of the decision criteria enumerated in subsection B, the proposed use's impacts are not materially greater than the by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use with the more general NAICS code.
  2. A proposed use is functionally comparable to a by-right, conditional, administratively permitted use if it is reasonably comparable to the by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use, and with regard to each of the decision criteria enumerated in subsection B., the proposed use has no greater impacts than the by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use with which it is functionally comparable.
- C. Decision Criteria. The following decision criteria shall be evaluated when the planning official decides whether a proposed use is a subcategory of, or is functionally comparable to, a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use:
1. Parking demand;
  2. Average daily and peak hour trip generation (cars and trucks);
  3. Impervious surface;
  4. Noise;
  5. Lighting;
  6. Dust;
  7. Odors;
  8. Potentially hazardous conditions, such as projectiles leaving the site;
  9. Use and storage of hazardous materials;
  10. Character of buildings and structures;
  11. Character of operation; and
  12. Hours of operation.

D. Effect of Determination.

1. If the planning official approves an application for a decision pursuant to this section, then the use is allowed as a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use, with the same restrictions as the use to which it was compared for the purposes of the favorable decision.
2. If the planning official determines that a proposed use is not a subcategory of, or functionally comparable to, a by-right, conditional, or administratively permitted use, then the proposed use is a prohibited use.

**Section 5.** Amendments to Section 17.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code. Section 17.48.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code, titled Manufactured Homes and Mobile Homes, is hereby amended as follows with ~~striketrough text~~ showing deletions and **bold, underlined text** showing additions:

**17.48.030 – Manufactured homes and mobile homes.**

[...]

B. Mobile homes.

1. Independent mobile homes, as defined in Section 17.08.020, are allowed to be placed only in approved mobile home parks ~~or in the industrial zoning district by a conditional use permit pursuant to Chapter 17.36.~~

[...]

**Section 6.** Amendments to Chapter 17.50 of the Leadville Municipal Code. Chapter 17.50 of the Leadville Municipal Code, titled Administrative Permits, is hereby amended as follows with ~~striketrough text~~ showing deletions and **bold, underlined text** showing additions:

**17.50.010 – Introduction.**

The administrative permit enumerated in Chapter 17.48 may be allowed in an eligible zoning district upon review ~~and recommendation by the planning commission chair~~ and action by the planning official to issue an administrative permit. Issuance of an administrative permit shall be subject to such reasonable conditions and safeguards in order that the administrative permit comply' s with the general intent and specific provisions of this chapter and be in harmony with the character of the surrounding area. Specific decision-making criteria are contained below.

Administrative permits shall be permitted ~~for a duration of time, up to indefinite,~~ **indefinitely unless otherwise** specified by the planning official or until the land use changes or is terminated, whichever occurs first. **The planning official may reclassify the application to a conditional use permit as deemed necessary by the planning official.** Each administrative permit approved by the planning official is subject to review as often as city council deems appropriate and reasonable. In addition, city council may, for proper cause, revoke a ~~CUP~~ **an administrative permit.**

#### **17.50.020 – Submittal requirements.**

Application for an administrative permit shall require submission of: (a) an application on a form provided by the city; (b) submission of a letter of intent; (c) submission of written answers to the **approval** criteria ~~points~~; and (d) submission of site plan.

The appropriate filing fees (see Chapter 17.96) shall accompany the submission of the above materials.

#### **17.50.030 – Procedures for review and action on administrative permit applications.**

- A. Administrative permit applications, with all supporting documents and fees, shall be submitted to the planning official to review for compliance with the requirements of this title.
- B. **After** an application **is** determined to be complete by the planning official, **it shall be reviewed for compliance with the criteria for approval stated below** ~~will be forwarded to the commission chair for second review. If the commission chair finds the application incomplete, it will be returned to the planning official for appropriate action. If the commission chair finds the application complete and adequate, it will authorize the planning official to move forward with issuing an administrative permit.~~
- ~~C. The applicant shall provide the city with the names and addresses of all adjacent property owners, as shown in the records of the Lake County assessor's office, and shall provide the planning official with a certificate of mailing.~~
- ~~D. The applicant shall notify all adjacent property neighbors within a twenty (20) foot radius of the chicken administrative permit request by sending the City of Leadville Notice of Consent Form by certified mail.~~
- CE.** A letter, **which shall include any conditions of approval**, typed or printed on city stationary and signed by the planning official shall be considered to be a formal permit authorizing an administrative permit under this chapter.
- DE.** An administrative permit will be revoked if the use has not been established within two years of the approval.

**17.50.040 – Criteria for approval of action on an administrative permit application.**

All actions by the ~~planning commission chair and~~ planning official in reviewing and approving an administrative permit application shall be based in general upon the provisions of this chapter and specifically on the following criteria:

[...]

**17.50.050 – Review and revocation of an administrative permit.**

At such intervals as the planning official ~~and the planning and zoning chair~~ may have specified in its initial decision, or when there is an alleged violation of the provisions of an administrative permit, the planning official shall review the terms, conditions or other provisions of the issued administrative permit. **If the planning official determines that a violation exists, the planning official shall provide written notice of the violation to the property owner.** ~~Upon review of the permit provisions, the planning official may~~ **Such notice shall** specify time period(s) in which any violations ~~of the terms or conditions~~ shall be corrected.

~~Review of alleged violations of the terms, conditions or other provisions of an administrative permit shall occur at time of notification and be completed within in thirty (30) business days.~~

~~The planning official shall forward all recommendations, the reasons for such recommendations, and specific time period(s) in which violations of the provisions of the permit, if any, must be corrected to planning and zoning chair and the permit holder within five days of the review. In the event the planning official recommends revocation of any administrative permit, or if the violations of the terms or conditions are not corrected within the time period(s) specified by the planning official, such recommendation, the reasons for it, or a notice of noncompliance shall be forwarded to the planning and zoning chair within five days of the review. Within thirty (30) days the planning official shall render a decision.~~

~~Following the review and recommendation to the permit holder the planning official shall act to revoke, not to revoke or to impose additional or amended conditions or sanctions on the administrative permit holder. Failure of the administrative permit holder to comply within the stipulated time period(s) with any of the conditions under which the permit was issued, or to comply with the original application provisions, shall be adequate reason for revocation of any administrative permit. **If the violation is not corrected within the required time period, the planning official shall revoke the permit by providing written notice to the property owner of revocation and the effective date of revocation.**~~

[...]

**Section 7.** Amendments to Chapter 17.60 of the Leadville Municipal Code. Chapter 17.60 of the Leadville Municipal Code, titled Accessory Buildings and Uses, is hereby amended as follows with ~~strikethrough text~~ showing deletions and **bold, underlined text** showing additions:

## **Chapter 17.60 – ACCESSORY USES, BUILDINGS AND ~~USES~~STRUCTURES**

### **17.60.010 – Introduction.**

~~Integrated and detached accessory buildings must meet the same setback requirements as principal buildings. The following accessory uses are permitted in the following zoning districts, provided that they are incidental to and on the same premises as a permitted or conditional use. The following sections provide requirements for accessory uses, buildings, and structures in the city's zoning districts.~~

### **17.60.020 – ~~R-1, R-2, TR and TC zoning districts~~ Accessory dwelling unit (ADU) requirements.**

**Unless otherwise stated, the following requirements shall apply to all zoning districts:**

- ~~A. Garages for the storage and owner maintenance of automobiles light trucks and recreational vehicles.~~
- ~~B. Accessory buildings, structures or uses normally required in addition to or in conjunction with any use by right or approved conditional use in the district, including but not limited to accessory dwelling units in the R-1, R-2, TR, and TC zoning districts as a use by right but only with a conditional use permit in the C zoning district. Accessory dwelling units are prohibited in the RC zoning district.~~
- AC.** Detached accessory dwelling units **ADUs** shall be placed on an approved foundation in compliance with applicable adopted building codes and regulations.
- BD.** Accessory dwelling units **ADUs** shall be no larger than fifty (50) percent of the size of the principal building and no smaller than one hundred (100) square feet.
- CE.** Design Standards. An **In all zoning districts except the C zoning district,** ADUs, either integrated or detached, shall be consistent in design and appearance with the primary structure. Specifically, the roof pitch, siding materials, color and window treatment of the ADU shall be complementary with the primary structure. **In the C zoning district, any exterior treatments of an ADU shall complement the principal building.**
- DE.** Each accessory dwelling unit **ADU** shall have a bathroom with a sink, toilet, and shower or bath at a minimum.
- EG.** Each accessory dwelling unit **ADU** shall have a kitchen with an oven, stove (two-burner minimum), refrigerator and sink at a minimum.

~~FH.~~ Each accessory dwelling unit ADU shall have a maximum of two bedrooms.

~~GI.~~ The owners of property upon which an accessory dwelling unit ADU is located shall have an obligation to notify the applicable water and sanitation district of the existence and occupation of the accessory dwelling unit and shall comply at all times with the regulations of such water and sanitation district.

~~HJ.~~ Each accessory dwelling unit must pass the inspection of the building official, **and** any subsequent structural standards which may be adopted by the City of Leadville.

~~IK.~~ Setbacks and heights of buildings that contain detached ADUs must adhere to applicable zoning regulations of the zoning district.

**J. For purposes of allowed density, each ADU shall be counted as one (1) unit of density.**

**K. A maximum of one (1) ADU shall be permitted per primary building.**

~~17.60.030 C zoning districts.~~

~~A. Garages as allowed in other districts.~~

~~B. Any accessory buildings, structures or uses required in addition to and in conjunction with any use by right or approved conditional use, including, but not limited to accessory dwelling units necessary to the maintenance or protection of a facility in the TC zoning district as a use by right but only with a conditional use permit in the C zoning district.~~

~~C. Solar energy devices shall maintain the same setbacks as are required for principal buildings, shall not be located within the front yard, and, if freestanding, shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height.~~

~~D. Detached accessory dwelling units shall be placed on an approved foundation in compliance with applicable adopted building codes and regulations.~~

~~E. Accessory dwelling units shall be no larger than fifty (50) percent of the size of the principal building and no smaller than one hundred (100) square feet.~~

~~F. Any exterior treatments of an accessory dwelling unit shall complement the principal building.~~

~~G. Each accessory dwelling unit shall have a bathroom with a sink, toilet, and shower or bath at a minimum.~~

~~H. Each accessory dwelling unit shall have a kitchen with an oven, stove (two burner minimum), refrigerator and sink at a minimum.~~

~~I. Each accessory dwelling unit shall have a maximum of two bedrooms.~~

- ~~J. The owners of property upon which an accessory dwelling unit is located shall have an obligation to notify the applicable water and sanitation district of the existence and occupation of the accessory dwelling unit and shall comply at all times with the regulations of such water and sanitation district.~~
- ~~K. Each accessory dwelling unit must pass the inspection of the building official, or any subsequent structural standards which may be adopted by the City of Leadville.~~
- ~~L. Setbacks and heights of buildings that contain detached ADUs must adhere to applicable zoning regulations of the zoning district.~~

**17.60.040030 – Requirements for Other accessory uses, buildings, and structures.**

~~No additional accessory uses are permitted in any district except that household pets, private greenhouses, swimming pools and hot tubs, satellite dishes, fences, amateur radio and television towers, individual storage sheds and fallout shelters for personal uses are allowable accessory uses in all zoning districts so long as such accessory uses pose no threat to human health, safety and welfare to owners, users or adjacent residents and so long as they meet all applicable building, electrical and plumbing codes and have received all required permits. **Integrated and detached accessory buildings and structures must meet the same setback requirements as principal buildings.**~~

~~Fences which are not over six feet in height, and living fences of any height so long as they are not a traffic obstruction shall be considered permitted accessory uses in all districts. Taller fences are permitted accessory use upon inspection by the building official, who shall issue a permit for such fences upon determination that they would **Fences exceeding six (6) feet in height shall** not block light, sun, air, vision, or otherwise pose a health or safety hazard or a nuisance **to adjacent properties.**~~

~~No fence, shrubs, trees, sign or any other obstruction shall be permitted in any setback area if it obstructs the sight of drivers at any intersection. Cut firewood stacked in rows shall not be defined as a fence for the purposes of this chapter and shall not be so regulated so long as it does not obstruct the sight of drivers at an intersection.~~

~~Any accessory building, the floor area of which is two hundred (200) square feet in size or less, shall not require a building permit.~~

~~Any accessory dwelling structure, integrated or detached, intended for habitation shall require a building permit. **Solar energy systems shall maintain the same setbacks as are required for principal buildings, shall not be located within the front yard, and, if freestanding, shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height.**~~



**17.60.070040 – Rentals in all zone districts.**

Accessory dwelling units in all zone districts where permitted may be used as long-term rental units of thirty (30) consecutive days or more and as short-term rental units of less than thirty (30) consecutive days. Such rentals shall be subject to the requirements of Chapter 17.48 and Chapter 5.12 of this code, as applicable.

**Section 8. Remaining provisions.** Except as specified in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Leadville Municipal Code shall continue in full force and effect. This Ordinance makes no amendments to the Leadville Municipal Code and temporarily suspends the provisions specified herein only.

**Section 9. Severability.** Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Ordinance be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various sections and provisions are severable.

**Section 10. Repeal.** Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall not revive any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or superseded and this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this ordinance.

**Section 11. Safety Clause.** The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the City of Leadville, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare. The City Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation to the proper legislative object sought to be attained.

**Section 12. Effective Date.** This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after publication following final passage.

**INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on first reading this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2023 by a vote of \_\_\_\_ in favor and \_\_\_\_ against.**

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:

---

Greg Labbe, Mayor

ATTEST:

---

Deputy City Clerk

PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the

City of Leadville, Colorado, on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2023.

**PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED,  
with any amendments, this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2023.**

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:

---

Greg Labbe, Mayor

ATTEST:

---

Deputy City Clerk

PUBLISHED by title only in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2023.